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Directors and Senior Management

e AR

As at 19 March 2024, the date of this annual report, the
biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

XU WENSHENG, Chairman

Mr. Xu, age 55, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of the
Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
He graduated from the Dalian University of Technology with
a bachelor’s degree in computer science and engineering and
has extensive experience in computer systems integration of the
financial industry. Mr. Xu is also a director of Hi Sun Limited
(“HSL"), a substantial shareholder of the Company. Prior to joining
the Group in 2003, Mr. Xu was the president of a system integration
company.

KUI MAN CHUN, Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kui, age 57, is the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. He graduated from the Peking University with a
master’s degree in international relations and has over 32 years of
experience in the information technology industry and investment
activities. Mr. Kui is also the chairman, chief executive officer and
a director of HSL. Prior to joining the Group and HSL in 2000, Mr.
Kui was the president of an enterprise in the PRC.

LI WENJIN

Mr. Li, age 60, is an Executive Director and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated from the Peking
University with a master’s degree in law. He has over 31 years
of experience in investment and administrative affairs. Mr. Li is
also a director of HSL. Prior to joining HSL in 1999, he worked
for several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong. Mr. Li has also
been appointed as an executive director of PAX Global Technology
Limited, an associated corporation of the Company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since 24 February 2010. He
joined the Group in 2000.
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Directors and Senior Management

XU CHANGJUN

Mr. Xu, age 57, is an Executive Director and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He graduated from the Peking
University with a master’s degree in international economics. Prior
to joining the Group in 2001, Mr. Xu worked for several companies
in the PRC and Hong Kong. He has over 31 years of experience in
corporate management of enterprises in Hong Kong and the PRC.

HUI' LOK YAN

Ms. Hui, age 45, is an Executive Director, the Chief Financial
Officer and Joint Company Secretary of the Company and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She graduated
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s
degree in business administration. Ms. Hui is currently a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Prior to joining the Group in 2007, she was a manager
of an international public accountancy firm.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

TAM CHUN FAI

Mr. Tam, age 61, is an Independent Non-Executive Director. He
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
bachelor of arts degree in accountancy. Mr. Tam is a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member
of Chartered Financial Analyst and has over 32 years of experience
in auditing, corporate advisory services as well as financial
management and compliance work. Mr. Tam is currently an
executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (a major
red chip company) and an independent non-executive director of
KWG Group Holdings Limited, both of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in 2004.

LEUNG WAI MAN, ROGER

Mr. Leung, age 67, is an Independent Non-Executive Director. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in law and a postgraduate certificate
in laws from the University of Hong Kong. He also obtained a Juris
Doctor degree from the University of Western Ontario, Canada.
Mr. Leung has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong since
1984 and is now a partner of the law firm, Messrs Foo, Leung &
Yeung. He was also admitted as a solicitor in England and Wales
and as a barrister, solicitor and notary public in Ontario, Canada.
Mr. Leung has extensive working experience in law both in Hong
Kong and Canada. He served as a member of the Inland Revenue
Board of Review from 1997 to 2005 and has been appointed as a
China-appointed Attesting Officer since January 2003. Mr. Leung
is currently an independent non-executive director of China Boton
Group Company Limited and an independent non-executive
director of UBTECH ROBOTICS CORP LTD, both of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in 2004.
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Directors and Senior Management
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LI HEGUO

Mr. Li, age 58, is an Independent Non-Executive Director. Mr. Li
graduated from the Peking University with a bachelor’s degree in
international economics and a master’s degree in economics. From
July 1992 to June 2007, Mr. Li worked for China Baoan Group
Co., LTD., a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and its
subsidiaries, including Beijing Heng-Feng Real Estate Development
Company Limited QL R1EE FEMhZE 2 5]) serving as the President
and General Manager. Mr. Li has over 29 years of experience
in corporate management and strategic development. Mr. Li is
currently serving as the General Manager in strategic development
department of Fu Shou Yuan International Group Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in
2021.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LI HUIMIN

Mr. Li, age 44, is the President of BE1T{IZ I BBRAE (unofficial
English translation being VBill Payment Co. Ltd.) (“VBill OPCO").
He graduated from the Hubei University of Technology with a
bachelor’s degree in electrical technology. He has over 17 years of
experience in third-party payment industry management. He joined
the Group in 2008.

LIU SHAOQING

Mr. Liu, age 45, is the Vice President of JbEBE{E BRI HIR
‘A8l (“Beijing Suixin Yunlian”). He graduated from the Hunan
University of Arts and Science with a bachelor’s degree in internet of
things engineering. He has over 21 years of experience in business
expansion cooperation with banks, marketing and third-party
payment industry management. He joined the Group in 2017.

FENG FAN

Mr. Feng, age 31, is the Chief Executive Officer of Hunan Hisun
Mobile Pay IT Limited. He graduated from the Peking University
with a bachelor’s degree in finance and a master’s degree in finance.
He has over 9 years of experience in the corporate service and
information technology industry. He joined the Group in 2021.
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Directors and Senior Management

LIANG JING JING

Mr. Liang, age 42, is the President of Shenzhen Hi Sun FinTech
Global Limited (“Shenzhen Hi Sun”). He graduated from the Central
South University with a bachelor’s degree in telecommunications
engineering. He also received a master’s degree in Engineering
Project Management from the Shanghai Jiao Tong University and a
master’s degree in business administration from the China Europe
International Business School. He has over 20 years of experience
in the information technology industry. He joined the Group in
2003.

LIU XIAOZHEN
Mr. Liu, age 41,
Business Solutions Information Technology Limited (“BJ ABS”). He
graduated from the Shenzhen University with a bachelor’s degree
in engineering. He has over 19 years of experience in the financial
technology industry. He joined the Group in 2004.

is the President of Beijing Hi Sun Advanced
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Letter from the Board

HEE G

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | would like to present to our
shareholders the annual report of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023 (“FY2023").

KEY INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The Completion of the repurchase, redemption and/or cancellation
of all the VBill Shares held by the Investor (the “Put Option
Completion”), at the Maximum Put Price Amount of approximately
US$109.3 million which is determined in accordance with the
terms of the Amended Shareholders’ Agreement, took place in
February 2023. Immediately after the Put Option Completion, VBill
(Cayman) becomes wholly-owned by the Company.

On 29 June 2023, Megahunt, an associated company of the
Company, formally submitted and the Shanghai Stock Exchange
formally accepted the application for listing of the shares of, on the
Science and Technology Innovation Board of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (“SSE STAR Market”) in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") (the “Proposed Listing”). The Proposed Listing and the
final structure of the Proposed Listing will be subject to, among
other things, obtaining approvals from the relevant regulatory
authorities in accordance with all applicable regulations and the
prevailing market conditions

OVERALL PERFORMANCE

In 2023, China successively introduced a number of measures
to restore and expand consumption. China’s economic operation
generally continued to recover, and the effect of policies to stabilise
growth, stabilise employment, and stabilise prices continued to
emerge. However, the international environment is complex and
severe, with increasing uncertainties and difficulties for business
entities. Despite the pressure and challenges, under the premise
of “withstanding external pressure and overcoming internal
difficulties”, China’s economy rebounded. We are optimistic
about the momentum of national economic recovery and expect
the economic outlook and operating environment to remain
challenging in 2024.
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Consolidated turnover of the Group from continuing operations
amounted to HK$2,709.2 million, representing a decrease of 21%
in FY2023 as compared to HK$3,432.7 million in FY2022. The
Group's share of results from an associated company, PAX Global
in FY2023, increased by 5% as compared to FY2022. Profit for
FY2023 totaled HK$514.4 million as compared to HK$1,114.6
million in FY2022.

Combined with our strong financial position, management will
remain focused on financial and operation disciplines and take hold
of various opportunities for the Group’s business growth in 2023.
On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend a very warm welcome to Ms. Hui Lok Yan (“Ms. Hui"), the
chief financial officer of the Company, who has been elected and
appointed as an executive director of the Company with effect from
14 March 2024.

Meanwhile, we would like to take this opportunity to express our
utmost gratitude to our customers, bankers, suppliers, business
associates and most valued shareholders for their continuous trust
and support to the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Xu Wensheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
OUTLOOK

AND BUSINESS

Review of business performance of the Group during the reporting
year and the Group’s business outlook are disclosed in the section
titled “Business Review” in the Report of the Directors.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group reported total assets of
HK$13,031.7 million (2022: HK$11,455.3 million), which
were financed by total liabilities of HK$5,253.7 million (2022:
HK$3,901.0 million) and total equity of HK$7,778.0 million (2022:
HK$7,554.3 million). The net asset value was HK$7,778.0 million
(2022: HK$7,554.3 million). Net assets per share amounted to
HK$2.801 as compared to HK$2.720 per share as at 31 December
2022.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had restricted bank balances
of HK$3,542.3 million (2022: HK$1,064.9 million), cash and cash
equivalents of HK$3,482.0 million (2022: HK$3,537.5 million)
and short-term bank borrowings of HK$42.7 million (2022:
HK$55.7 million). The net cash position was HK$3,439.3 million
(2022: HK$3,481.8 million). The gearing ratio is calculated as
total debt divided by total capital, while total debt includes bank
borrowings, lease liabilities, written put option liabilities and asset-
backed securities of the Group. The gearing ratio was 1.1% (2022:
13.8%). The gearing ratio is considered healthy and suitable for the
continuing growth of the Group’s business.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND DETAILS OF CHARGES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had bank borrowings of
HK$42.7 million (2022: HK$55.7 million) carrying fixed interest
rates (2022: same) and banking facilities of approximately
HK$277.0 million (2022: HK$284.0 million). As at 31 December
2023, banking facility amounted to HK$23.9 million was secured
by leasehold land and buildings (2022: HK$24.6 million), with a
net carrying amount of HK$2.6 million (2022: HK$2.7 million) and
HK$2.6 million (2022: HK$3.6 million) respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s restricted bank balances and cash and cash equivalents
were principally denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollar,
US dollar, Euro, British Pound, Singapore dollar, Japanese Yen
and Czech Koruna in the respective amount of approximately
HK$5,793.6 million, HK$573.1 million, HK$558.2 million,
HK$54.2 million, HK$32.9 million, HK$2.4 million, HK$6.6
million and HK$2.0 million as at 31 December 2023.

Approximately HK$2,693.6 million, HK$681.7 million,
HK$1,125.4 million, HK$71.5 million, HK$18.5 million, HK$5.3
million, and HK$6.4 million of the Group’s restricted bank balances
and cash and cash equivalents were denominated in Renminbi,
Hong Kong dollar, US dollar, Euro, British Pound, Singapore dollar
and Japanese Yen respectively as at 31 December 2022.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in note (F) under the section titled “Overall
Financial Results and Position” in the Report of Directors on
pages 37 to 38, the Group held no significant investment as at
31 December 2023.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section titled “Key Investing and Financing
Activities” on pages 47, the Group had no material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets
as at 31 December 2023.

EXCHANGE RATES EXPOSURE

The Group derives its revenue, makes purchases and incurs
expenses denominated mainly in US dollar, Renminbi, Euro,
British Pound, Japanese Yen, Singapore dollar, Czech Koruna and
Hong Kong dollar. Currently, the Group has not entered into any
agreements or purchased any instruments to hedge the Group's
exchange rate risks. Any material fluctuation in the exchange rates
of Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi may have an impact on the
operating results of the Group.

BB 2 o B 5 B

AZE=F+ A=+ —H AEEZZRFIER
THEBURRERIRSEBYFEUARE BT,
7T BRoT ~ I8 Fins o s H o ki e e BAG(E
£ &89 B495,793,600,00078 7T ~ 573,100,00078 7T
558,200,0007 7T * 54,200,000 7 ~ 32,900,0007 7T
2,400,000 7T ~ 6,600,00078 7T 522,000,00078 7T ©

MN_E_"F+"HB=+—H > KEBZZRHIE
1THERR A B IR & R 3R & 25 (EW492,693,600,0007 7T
681,700,000 7T ~ 1,125,400,0005 7T * 71,500,000
7T~ 18,500,000 7T ~ 5,300,00078 7T 52 6,400,000 7T
Th D BN REE~ Bro~ E7o~Blre ~ W%~ Ml T
K REF1E -

EARE

BREE37E38EEF TR ERER ERYFHEERR
T —EVETMEEMMREEN R2T =+
B=+—H AERIREEERAEAKRE-

SEARERLERBAR BEQTRRE
BibE

RBEZZ_=ZF+"RA=1T—HILFE KF47
BEREATERERME R —HFTREEN &
EREUESAWEIHERBAT - BMERATDRE
Ab¥o

EARENEFEEZRREE

N TET=F+ZA=+—H FEELEMREK
RENEXABERETMARES -

B 2= B

KREBMEEZWAFIERBRZNZEREEN
Er AR BT 185 BE KT R
BAR A TTYE BRI 2B W HMET AR
BEM T AN AARER 2 EXRERE B TIA
REZEXEREFMERE I EHAEE Y

s
REREERT B

BFEH (E) BRAR T =EFR

11



12

Management Dlscussmn and Analysis

E’@@Z ol i B

g5 A

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(A) Performance Guarantee Agreement with a customer

(B)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

In 2015, the Company entered into a performance guarantee
agreement with a customer (the “Performance Guarantee
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to
provide the customer with a guarantee in relation to the due
and punctual performance of a service project of a subsidiary
of the Company with a surety of not more than HK$60 million
and to indemnify the customer against any third-party claim
of intellectual property right infringement resulting from the
acts of the said subsidiary. Following the completion of the
service project, the Performance Guarantee Agreement was
accordingly terminated and there will be no obligation on the
part of the Company in relation thereto. As at 31 December
2023, the Company did not recognise any liability in relation to
the Performance Guarantee Agreement.

Guarantee Agreements with associates of the Company

(i) In 2019, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement
(the “2019 Manufacturer Guarantee Agreement”) with
3 then subsidiaries of the Company (two of which have
become associates of the Company since May 2022),
pursuant to which the Company shall guarantee to
repay the due and unsettled debts of the said associates
individually and/or collectively of up to US$10 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$78 million) incurred in
relation to manufacturing orders placed against a named
manufacturer, should any of the said subsidiary/associates
individually and/or collectively cease or fail to honour its
payment obligations.

In respect of the further expansion of order scale, the
Company entered into another guarantee agreement in
2021 (the “2021 Manufacturer Guarantee Agreement”)
with the same counterparties, pursuant to which the
amount of guarantee was increased to up to US$20 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$156 million) and the
2019 Manufacturer Guarantee Agreement was terminated
and the entirety of the Company’s obligations and liability
thereunder, if any, was effectively transferred to the 2021
Manufacturer Guarantee Agreement. As at 31 December
2023, the Company did not recognise any liability in
relation to the 2021 Manufacturer Guarantee Agreement.
The Directors considered the possibility of reimbursement
not probable.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(ii) In 2020, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement

(the “2020 OEM Guarantee Agreement”) with a then
subsidiary of the Company (an associate of the Company
since May 2022) and an independent manufacturer
(“OEM”), pursuant to which the Company shall guarantee
to repay the said associate’s due and unsettled debts
of up to US$10 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$78 million) owed to the OEM incurred in relation to
manufacturing orders placed against the OEM should the
associate cease or fail to honour its payment obligations.
As at 31 December 2023, the Company did not recognise
any liability in relation to the 2020 OEM Guarantee
Agreement. The Directors considered the possibility of

(i)
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Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent
liability as at 31 December 2023.

EMPLOYEES

FERR_ZE_=ZF+_RB=+—HZEERHS
2,638 N\ REIZBEFIHADUT :

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December
2023 was 2,638. The breakdown of employees by division is as
follows:

Payment and digital services XA R ERRTS 1,002
Fintech services & RS AR TS 126
Platform operation solutions ToESmRAE 726
Financial solutions TRARR T E 544
Others HAth 198
Corporate office 4z 42

2,638

Bl (E) ARAT —Eo=HER 13
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The Group ensures that its employees’ remuneration packages are
comprehensive and competitive. Directors are entitled to a fixed
director’s fee, discretionary bonus and other benefits, which are
determined with reference to the performance of the individual and
the Company, market practice and conditions as well as the Group’s
corporate goals and objectives in accordance with the remuneration
policy of the Company. Employees are remunerated with fixed
monthly income plus annual performance related bonuses. The
Group also operates share option schemes and share award scheme
for the purpose of attracting, retaining, motivating and rewarding
the employees. The Group also sponsors selected employees to
attend external training courses that suit the needs of the Group's
businesses.

Disclaimer:
Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles)
measures, such as EBITDA, are used for assessing the Group’s
performance. These non-GAAP measures are not expressly
permitted measures under GAAP in Hong Kong and may not
be comparable to similarly titled measures for other companies.
Accordingly, such non-GAAP measures should not be considered as
an alternative to operating income as an indicator of the operating
performance of the Group or as an alternative to cash flows from
operating activities as a measure of liquidity. The use of non-GAAP
measures is provided solely to enhance the overall understanding
of the Group’s current financial performance. Additionally, as
the Group has historically reported certain non-GAAP results to
investors, the Group considers the inclusion of non-GAAP measures
provides consistency in our financial reporting.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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The Directors hereby present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group are provision of payment and
digital services, fintech services, platform operation solutions and
financial solutions.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 116.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year (2022: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in notes 28 and 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS, SHARE AWARDS
AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the share capital are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Schemes of the Company
The Company operated the following share schemes during the year
ended 31 December 2023:

e the share option scheme adopted on 18 May 2021 and
terminated with effect from 12 June 2023 (the “2021 Share
Option Scheme”), pursuant to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
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e the share option scheme adopted on 12 June 2023 (the “New
Share Option Scheme”), pursuant to Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules

e the share award scheme adopted on 29 June 2021 (the “Share
Award Scheme”)

The 2021 Share Option Scheme

The Company operated the 2021 Share Option Scheme for the
purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating talented employees
of the Group or associated companies (including executive and
non-executive directors) in order to strive for future developments
and expansion of the Group.

In view of the amendments to the Listing Rules relating to share
schemes which took effect on 1 January 2023 (the “Share Schemes
Amendments”), the 2021 Share Option Scheme was terminated and
the New Share Option Scheme was adopted by Shareholders at the
special general meeting of the Company held on 12 June 2023 with
immediate effect.

Participants included the full-time employees, executive and non-
executive directors of the Group and the associated companies of
the Company.

The number of shares of the Company (“Shares”) issued and may
be issued upon exercise of all exercised and/or outstanding options
granted to each grantee in any 12-month period should not in
aggregate exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue. For options
granted to a substantial Shareholder or an Independent Non-
Executive Director, or any of their respective associates, the said
limit is reduced to 0.1% and HK$5 million in aggregate value based
on the closing price of the Shares on the date of grant. Any further
grant of options in excess of such limits must be approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting with the relevant grantee, his/her
associates or close associates (as the case maybe) and/or all core
connected persons of the Company (as the case maybe) abstaining
from voting.

The exercise period of the options granted should be determined at
the discretion of the Board and in any event should expire within 10
years from the date of grant.

There was no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it could be exercised.

Each grantee should, within 21 days of the offer, pay HK$1 to the
Company upon acceptance of the options granted.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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The exercise price of an option should be determined at the
discretion of the Board, which should be not less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Shares on the date of grant (which must
be a trading day); (ii) the average closing price of the Shares for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

No option was granted, vested, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under
the 2021 Share Option Scheme since its adoption, including the
period from 1 January 2023 to its termination on 12 June 2023.
277,683,383 options were available for grant under the 2021 Share
Option Scheme as at 1 January 2023. Following termination of the
scheme, no options were available for grant as at end of the year
and no Shares were available for issue thereunder as at the date of
this annual report.

Further details of the scheme can be found in the circular of the
Company dated 13 April 2021.

The New Share Option Scheme

The Company operates the New Share Option Scheme for the
purpose of incentivizing and rewarding the participants for
their contribution or potential contribution to the growth and
development of the Group, recruiting and retaining high-calibre
participants and attracting human resources that are valuable to the
Group.

Participants include directors and employees of (a) the Group
(including persons who are granted options under the scheme as an
inducement to enter into employment contracts with any member
company of the Group) (“Group Employee Participants”); and (b) the
holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or associated companies of
the Company. The scheme, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years from its
adoption until 11 June 2033.
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The number of Shares issued and may be issued upon exercise
of all options and awards granted (excluding any lapsed options
and awards) under the share schemes of the Company to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not in aggregate exceed
1% of the number of Shares in issue. For options granted to a
substantial Shareholder or an Independent Non-Executive Director,
or any of their respective associates, the said limit is reduced to
0.1%. Any further grant of options in excess of such limits must be
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting with the relevant
participant, his/her associates or close associates (as the case
maybe) and/or all core connected persons of the Company (as the
case maybe) abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the options granted shall be determined at
the discretion of the Board and shall expire within 10 years from the
date of grant.

The vesting period in respect of any option granted shall not be
less than 12 months, save that the Remuneration Committee or
the Directors (as the case maybe) may determine a shorter vesting
period for any Group Employee Participant if a shorter vesting
period is considered appropriate to align with the purpose of the
scheme.

Each grantee shall, within 21 days of the offer, pay a nominal
consideration of HK$1 to the Company upon acceptance of the
options granted.

The exercise price of an option shall be determined at the discretion
of the Board and shall not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Shares on the date of grant, which must be a trading
day; and (ii) the average closing price of the Shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant.

No option was granted, vested, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
since the adoption of the scheme and during the year ended 31
December 2023. 227,683,383 options were available for grant as
at its adoption on 12 June 2023 and 31 December 2023. As at the
date of this annual report, 277,683,383 Shares were available for
issue under the scheme, representing 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue.

Further details of the scheme can be found in the circular of the
Company dated 25 May 2023.
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Share Award Scheme of the Company

The Company operates the Share Award Scheme for the purpose of
(i) recognising and rewarding the contribution of the participants to
the growth and development of the Group and to provide incentives
in order to retain them for continual operation and development
of the Group; and (ii) attracting suitable personnel for further
development of the Group. The scheme, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from 29 June 2021 (the “Adoption Date”) until 29 June 2031.

Participants include any (i) employee, (i) non-Executive Directors
(including Independent Non-Executive Directors) or (iii) adviser
(professional or otherwise), consultant to or expert in any area of
business or business development of any member of the Group
or any entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity
interest; and (iv) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture, business
alliance or other business arrangement to the development and
growth of the Group.

The scheme is operated by an independent trustee which may
purchase the existing Shares from and/or off the market by utilising
the funds allocated by the Board out of the Company’s resources
and be held in trust for the relevant selected participants until such
Shares are vested. For the avoidance of doubt, no new Share(s) will
be issued and allotted by the Company pursuant to the scheme.

The total number of Shares which may be issued subject to any
awards granted to each participant shall not exceed 1.5% of the
issued Shares as at the Adoption Date.

Awards granted are subject to such vesting conditions and/or vesting
periods as determined by the Board.

Each participant shall pay a nominal consideration of HK$1 to the
Company upon acceptance of the award granted.

Further details of the scheme are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 29 June 2021.
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Details of the movement of the awards during the year ended 31  #ZE

a¥|ﬁ§D—F$§FﬁfT\ :

December 2023 are set out in the table as follows:

=F+RB=+—HLFERBHEE

Number of ordinary Shares sublect to the awards granted

P& Rz EBRUE

Number of
Closing price~ Number of ~ Number of ~ Number of awards  Number of
of Shares unvested awards awards lapsed/ unvested
immediately  awards as at granted vested cancelled  awards as at
before the 1 January during during during 31 December
Name Date of grant date of grant 2023 the year the year the year 2023
i :E:‘E
Z2-= +=H
—B—8 N =+-H
2 B2 ERKR/ | A2
_ EHBESE AEBEE EREH FRER S RKERRE
ez KB RipKHE B ®#BHE ®#BHE ®#BHA B
(HKS)
(87
Directors and chief executive*
BEERITHAH
Kui Man Chun? 17 November 2023 0.48 - 8,000,000 8,000,000" - -
REE "B =F+-AttH
Xu Wensheng 17 November 2023 0.48 - 7,400,000 7,400,000 - -
(& “ECZE+-A+tH
Li Wenjin 17 November 2023 0.48 - 7,400,000 7,400,000 - -
FXE “E_=F+—-AttH
Xu Changjun 17 November 2023 0.48 - 7,395,000 7,395,000 - -
HEE 2T =F+—A+tA
Hui Lok Yan® 17 November 2023 0.48 - 1,800,000 1,800,000 - -
FERe “2_=F+—A+tH
Total for Directors - 31,995,000 31,995,000 = =
EHE:
The 5 highest paid individuals
R BREHAL
(in ai%regate) 17 November 2023 0.48 - 31,995,000 31,995,000 - -
GE “Z_=F+—A+tH
Total for all grantees - 31,995,000%  31,995,000* = =
Notes: MsE -

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Mr. Kui Man Chun is also the chief executive officer of the Company.

All awards granted were accepted and taken up upon payment of a
nominal purchase price of HK$1 by each grantee to the Company and a
total of 31,995,000 Shares were issued pursuant of the awards. Fair value
of the awards as at the date of grant was approximately $15,038,000.
Details of the accounting standard and policy adopted can be referred to
the section titled “Equity Settled Share-Based Transactions” in Note 8 to
the Consolidated Financial Statement.

All awards granted were not subject to performance targets and vested in
full on the date of grant, save that no dealing of such Shares subject to the

awards shall be effected during a period of 12 months therefrom.

Ms. Hui Lok Yan was appointed as an Executive Director on 14 March
2024.
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As at the date of this annual report, 245,688,383 Shares were
available for issue under the Share Award Scheme, representing
approximately 8.85% of the total number of Shares in issue.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, 31,995,000 awards and
no options were granted under the share schemes of the Company,
representing 1.15% of the Shares in issue. No further Shares may
be issued in respect of options and awards granted under all share
schemes of the Company during the year since the awards granted
during the year were vested in full.

Share Option Schemes of VBill (Cayman)
VBill (Cayman) Limited operated the following share option
schemes during the year ended 31 December 2023:

e the share option scheme adopted on 18 November 2020 and
terminated with effect from 12 June 2023 (the “2020 VBill
(Cayman) Share Option Scheme”), pursuant to Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules; and

e the share option scheme adopted on 12 June 2023 (the “New
VBill (Cayman) Share Option Scheme”), pursuant to Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules

The 2020 VBill (Cayman) Share Option Scheme

VBill (Cayman) operated the 2020 VBill (Cayman) Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of incentivizing and rewarding the
participants for their contribution or potential contribution to the
VBill (Cayman) and its subsidiaries (the “VBill (Cayman) Group”).

In view of the Share Schemes Amendments, the 2020 VBill
(Cayman) Share Option Scheme was terminated as resolved by the
Board and the board of directors of VBill (Cayman) pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the scheme, effective upon adoption of the
New VBill (Cayman) Share Option Scheme by the Shareholders at
the special general meeting of the Company held on 12 june 2023.

Participants included any director, senior management and
employee of the Company and VBill (Cayman) Group.
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The number of shares of VBill (Cayman) (the “VBill (Cayman)
Shares”) issued and might be issued to each participant upon
exercise of options granted under the 2020 VBill (Cayman) Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the VBill
(Cayman) (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period should not exceed 1% of the number of
VBill (Cayman) Shares in issue. For options granted to a substantial
Shareholder or an Independent Non-Executive Director, or any
of their respective associates, the said limit should be reduced to
0.1%. Any further grant of options in excess of such limits should be
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting with the relevant
participant, his/her associates or close associates (as the case
maybe) and/or all core connected persons of the Company (as the
case maybe) abstaining from voting.

The exercise period should be determined by the board of directors
of VBill (Cayman), which should be within 10 years from the date of
grant.

The board of directors of VBill (Cayman) should determine on a
case-by-case basis or generally any minimum holding period for
which an option may be exercised.

Each grantee shall, within 7 days after the grant, pay a nominal
consideration of HK$1 to VBill (Cayman) upon acceptance of the
option granted.

The subscription price should be determined by the board of
directors of VBill (Cayman) in its absolute discretion, with reference
to factors which may include the business performance, value of
VBill (Cayman) Group and individual performance of the relevant
participant, but in any event, the subscription price should not
be less than the net asset value of the interests of VBill (Cayman)
subject to the relevant option calculated from the latest audited
accounts of VBill (Cayman).

No option was granted, vested, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under
the 2020 VBill (Cayman) Share Option Scheme since its adoption,
including the period from 1 January 2023 to its termination on 12
June 2023. 930 options were available for grant under the scheme
as at 1 January 2023. Following termination of the scheme, no
options were available for grant as at end of the year and no Shares
were available for issue under the scheme as at the date of this
annual report.

Further details of the scheme can be found in the circular of the
Company dated 28 October 2020.
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New VBill (Cayman) Share Option Scheme

VBill (Cayman) operates the New VBill (Cayman) Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of incentivizing and rewarding the
participants for their contribution or potential contribution to the
growth and development of the VBill (Cayman) Group, recruiting
and retaining high-calibre participants and attracting human
resources that are valuable to the VBill (Cayman) Group.

Participants include directors and employees of (a) the VBill
(Cayman) Group (including persons who are granted options under
the scheme as an inducement to enter into employment contracts
with the member companies of the VBill (Cayman) Group) (the
“VBill (Cayman) Group Employee Participants”); and (b) the holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries or associated companies of VBill
(Cayman). The scheme, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years until 11 June
2033.

The number of VBill (Cayman) Shares issued and may be issued
upon exercise of all options and awards granted (excluding any
lapsed options and awards) under the share schemes of VBill
(Cayman) to each participant in any 12-month period shall not
in aggregate exceed 1% of the number of VBill (Cayman) Shares
in issue. For options granted to a substantial Shareholder or an
Independent Non-Executive Director, or any of their respective
associates, the said limit is reduced to 0.1%. Any further grant
of options in excess of such limits must be approved by the
Shareholders in general meeting with the relevant participant, his/
her associates or close associates (as the case maybe) and/or all core
connected persons of the Company (as the case maybe) abstaining
from voting.
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The exercise period of the options granted shall be determined at
the discretion of the Board and shall expire within 10 years from the
date of grant.

The vesting period in respect of any option granted shall not be
less than 12 months, save that the Remuneration Committee or
the Directors (as the case maybe) may determine a shorter vesting
period for any VBill (Cayman) Group Employee Participant if a
shorter vesting period is considered appropriate to align with the
purpose of the scheme.

Each participant shall, within 21 days of the grant, pay a nominal
consideration of HK$1 to VBill (Cayman) upon acceptance of the
options granted.

The subscription price shall be determined at the discretion of the
board of directors of VBill (Cayman), but shall not be less than the
nominal value of a VBill (Cayman) Share.

800 options were available grant under the scheme as at its
adoption and 31 December 2023. No option was granted, vested,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 31 December
2023. As at 31 December 2023 and the date of this annual report,
there was no outstanding option granted under the New VBill
(Cayman) Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report, 800 VBill (Cayman) Shares were
available for issue under the New VBill (Cayman) Share Option
Scheme, representing 10% of the total number of VBill (Cayman)
Shares in issue.

Further details of the scheme can be found in the circular of the
Company dated 25 May 2023.
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Share Option Scheme of VBill OPCO

VBill OPCO operated a share option scheme (“VBill OPCO Share
Option Scheme”) which was adopted on 15 January 2018 and
became effective on 5 February 2018, pursuant to Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. Certain terms of the scheme and the options granted
thereunder were amended by the Shareholders at the Company’s
special general meeting held on 18 November 2020. The scheme
remained effective for a term of 6 years until 5 February 2024. The
scheme expired on 6 February 2024 and no further.

The purpose of the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme was to
incentivize or reward the participants for their contribution or
potential contribution to VBill OPCO and its subsidiaries (“VBill
OPCO Group”). Participants included any directors, supervisors,
general managers and other employees of any member of VBill
OPCO Group.

The registered capital of VBill OPCO (“VBill OPCO Registered
Capital”) contributed and to be contributed upon exercise of the
options granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period should not exceed 1%
of the VBill OPCO Registered Capital. For options granted or to be
granted to any substantial Shareholder, Independent Non-Executive
Director, or their respective associates, the said limit should be
reduced to 0.1%. Any further grant options in excess of such limits
should be approved by the Shareholders in general meeting with
the relevant participant, his/her associates or close associates (as the
case maybe) and/or all core connected persons of the Company (as
the case maybe) abstaining from voting.

The exercise period should be determined by VBill OPCO’s board of
directors and should be within 6 years from the date of grant.

The board of directors of VBill OPCO should determine on a case-
by-case basis or generally any minimum holding period for which
an option may be exercised as considered appropriate.

Each participant should, within 7 days after the grant, pay a nominal
consideration of RMB1 to VBill OPCO upon acceptance of the
options granted.

The subscription price should be determined by the board of
directors of VBill OPCO in its absolute discretion, with reference to
factors which may include the business performance, value of VBill
OPCO Group and the participant’s individual performance, but in
any event, shall not be less than the net asset value of the relevant
equity interests of VBill OPCO subject to the options calculated
based on the latest audited accounts of VBill OPCO.

Report of the Directors

HHEFHE

BETIT Z FERR iRt 2l
RiIEEHHRAUETLE BOMEF—BRE
—N\E—A+EEEHTR - N\E_BRBE4E
xﬁZE’JﬁﬁHﬂ&ﬁiU (TBEITI AR ISR - RN T
TE+—F+/\BRTHWEAQBRIKREAE L
fFS.JE%Jri‘ BB TR IR LI HH BB AR o 52518
BNfleE BEE_Z_NE_ARAALE %18
RIZEZMEZ/B/NBERM MRtz mmEiE

E_O

BT IR AR5 8l 5 R 22 B K [D 3R W BETT 1T Re ELBfY
BAE (REITNER) FIFERMSRISEFHERZ
2HE - 2HEEOERBTNEREAMERBZE
MEE EE EEELHEMES

FEEA+ZEAME RRTFE2SHEE L ERE (8
%Eﬁ@&rﬁﬁkﬁfﬁzﬂﬁ}%ﬂ&) EITEMEEA R
AAZBITNERRE NEBBEITAEmRE
Z1% MEHRAERNEEZRR - BILIFATES
HEEZEHEARHNBRENS » LHIRERAER
BZE0.1% - E—FRUEMBEH EHREARERE
FERIRRAE FESREAHE  1BRISHE K
BASEEHEA RBERME) K/ HRELEH
FRERZOBEAL (RIERME) RRERE

TEERBETNESIET  WHIZH BESR
BIE6LE

BITNHNEZSRBEARBERA—RBEREIEHE
ERRRER] FITENERRERAH -

B2 REBNEMATR D BRERIRIES7BR
mEETT

BTN NRBEREARKBIT

REESBTNZEFE2EROTNERZERX
R BERZEEZBAARBRSAZ2ENEETE
ERERER T AR SRREETNRAPEE
ZAREPTst ERBERERRZ BT AERREZE
EFE

BFEH (E) BRAR “EC=FFR

25



26

Report of the Directors

HPEFWE

The following table sets out the movements of the options granted

during the year ended 31 December 2023:

TREJEEZE_=F+_B=1+—HILFERKR
H 2 BERR R S ¢

Amount of VBill OPCO Registered Capital subject to the options granted

RAR L BRERROE T RREEE

Exercise
price
(for every Options Options Options
RMBT in the outstanding Options Options lapsed/ outstanding
VBill OPCO as at granted exercised cancelled as at
Registered 1 January during during during 31 December
Grantee Date of grant Capital) 2023 the year the year the year 2023
I8 RIBZ=F RZZZ=
(BB1TfIsE M —BA—H +ZA=+-H
REHE FET FARE  ERET FREY/ REITE
EEA KB AE®17) ke Bk Bk HEHERE ke
RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARBT ARET
Mr. Shen Zheng* 5 February 2018 12.51 13,629,500 - - - 13,629,500
b “Z-)\E”H1H
Mr. Li Huimin” 5 February 2018 12.51 6,814,750 - - - 6,814,750
RagmkE “Z-)\f¥-RiA
Mr. Guo Yi* 5 February 2018 12.51 6,814,750 - - - 6,814,750
BHEKLE “Z-)\E_BxH
Total: 27,259,000° - - - 27,259,000°
A5t

*  Mr. Shen Zheng is a director and the chairman of the board of VBill OPCO

and a director of certain members of the VBill OPCO Group.

" Mr. Li Huimin is the President of VBill OPCO.

Mr. Guo Yi is the senior vice president of VBill OPCO.

@ All options, having an exercise period of 6 years, vested on the date of grant
and lapsed on 5 February 2024.

As at 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 and at the date of
this annual report, no more VBill OPCO Registered Capital was
available for issue under the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme.

Further details of the scheme can be found in the circulars of the

Company dated 19 January 2018 and 28 October 2020.

Save as disclosed in this section above, no equity-linked agreement

was entered into by the Group during the year ended 31 December

2023 or subsisted at as 31 December 2023.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to Shareholders as calculated under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) amounted to HK$137,473,000
(2022: HK$77,445,000). The Company’s share premium account, in
the amount of HK$1,290,857,000 (2022: HK$1,290,857,000) may
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 272.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any Shares during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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BUSINESS REVIEW X0l
CONDENSED SEGMENT RESULTS ANALYSIS IR SRR E DR
Turnover EBITDA?
o 2 EBITDA’
2023 2022 2023 2022
—ECCE - et ;S
Note HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HizE FHRT TET THT TET
Continuing operations FRREEY
Payment and digital services S A REFLRE 1 1,994,129 2,655,820 297,203 695,166
Fintech services SRRERE 2 200,473 229,917 47,748 22,099
Platform operation solutions TRBEEMAFE 3 166,856 169,483 (5,492) (12,250)
Financial solutions FRBARR 4 325,437 346,068 (13,515) (234)
Others Hit 5 46,787 36,473 (25,069) (64,779)
Segmental results NEEE 2,733,682 3,437,761 300,875 640,002
Less: Inter-segment turnover B DBEEER (24,518) (5,033) - =
Total EXl 2,709,164 3,432,728 300,875 640,002
Depreciation ik (120,166) (162,360)
Amortisation B (1,484) (1,490)
Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value ~ RATEFABHZEREEZ
through profit or loss (“FVPL"), net NEEBEFE (6,290) (6,889)
Segmental operating profit RS R 172,935 469,263
Unallocated other income KOBEHEMUA 24,696 5,647
Unallocated corporate expenses FPREERR (123,086) (96,849)
Operating profit byl 74,545 378,061

#

EBITDA is calculated by excluding interest expenses, taxes, depreciation,

amortisation fair losses on financial assets at FVPL, net from segmental

operating profit.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT  f§BER4ZSIRER

2023 2022
“EzfF . —
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M THT FHT
Continuing operations BRLEREY
Revenue LON A 2,709,164 3,432,728
Cost of sales HEME C (1,716,987) (2,149,146)
Gross profit EF 992,177 1,283,562
Other income HitlA B 116,918 109,166
Other losses, net HtEEEE B (22,432) (12,054)
Selling expenses HERT C (134,484) (154,260)
Administrative expenses THER C (821,129) (744,275)
Credit impairment loss EERERE C (56,505) (104,098)
Operating profit R w 74,545 378,061
Share of results of associated companies e NP D 402,949 398,533
Gain /(loss) on deemed acquisition and dilution of interest of ~ FR{EUREE R E—RBE AT EE
an associated company &/ (518) 1973 (1,077)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAT 2 W 3,277 2,604
Finance costs HEME M (3,757) (59,862)
Profit before income tax BRFT S AR A 478,987 718,259
Income tax credit/(expense) FriEmiEs,/ (B N 35,387 (113,222)
Profit from continuing operations BRI 514,374 605,037
Profit from discontinued operation BRILEEEHET 0 - 509,577
514,374 1,114,614
Profit attributable to: FEAG R
— Owners of the Company VNS Z PN 463,432 939,416
— Non-controlling interests —JEERES 50,942 175,198
514,374 1,114,614
Earnings per share for profit from continuing operations FRTBEABEFELEEY HKS$ per share HKS per share
attributable to the owners of the Company: Nz BRER gRET BRER
Basic =3N 0.169 0.169
Diluted e 0.133 0.142
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the owners of FARRE AEIEER
the Company: Z28REH:
Basic EX 0.169 0.340
Diluted BE 0.133 0313
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET BRRSEERRAR
As at 31 December
®+=ZB=+—H
2023 2022
ZEZ= “EICE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mzt TER TER
ASSETS BE
Investment properties and property, plant and equipment BRENERNE BERZE E 78,171 147,480
Right-of-use assets FRELE 69,560 55,690
Intangible assets BV EE 2,834 25,737
Investments in associated companies REEREZRE F 3,606,250 3,399,895
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BATESt ARGz SREE 309,206 94,057
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income RATES AR ARG SHEE G S 152,868
Inventories =& 19,474 18,732
Trade and bills receivables FEURT R N Z 3% H 177,055 170,316
Other financial assets at amortised cost and other current assets BEERAGE At EREER
HEthREEE 200,160 123,263
Loan receivables e ER 1,536,634 2,647,625
Amount due from an associated company Bl —EBE ARz A 5,000 5,306
Current income tax recoverable U EIBPERFTE 3,040 10,431
Short-term bank deposits RERITHER J S 1,468
Restricted bank balances RIRHIRITAE R J 3,542,318 1,064,937
Cash and cash equivalents REREEEEY J 3,482,016 3,537,506
Total assets BELE 13,031,718 11,455,311
EQUITY i
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company FATEEANELESREE
Share capital BEZ 6,942 6,942
Reserves e 7,183,993 6,611,653
7,190,935 6,618,595
Non-controlling interests FERER 587,083 935,687
Total equity B 7,778,018 7,554,282
LIABILITIES af
Written put option liabilities st EaE M S 857,069
Deferred income tax liabilities RILFEREaR 17 2,438
Trade payables FEAIERRR K 596,415 642,446
Payables for payment and digital services business INREFCREER 2 RATE K 3,591,920 965,787
Other payables and accruals HEttEAFIERE B K 932,745 967,734
Amounts due to associated companies ERBE AR ZE 4,295 4,421
Current income tax liabilities EEFEREas 42,136 110,499
Lease liabilities HE&R 43,484 29,829
Bank borrowings RITER 42,688 55,748
Asset-backed securities BEYRHES L = 265,058
Total liabilities afEeE 5,253,700 3,901,029
Total equity and liabilities Rk REE 13,031,718 11,455,311
HK$ per share HKS per share
SRHET SRET
Net assets per share SREEFE 2.801 2.720
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT SRR SIRERER

For the year ended 31 December

BE+"A=t+—HLEE

2023 2022
ZEZ= “ETCE
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TAT
(Restated)
(i=E71)
Net cash generated from operating activities BEEBREHEPR 1,205,842 79,610
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities REES IR /F3RL3H (38,571) 118,341
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities REEE iR /F3REEH (1,163,410) 233,544
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERFEEEMLINBE 3,861 431,495
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (1 January 2022:  FHzRERFEEEY CE2F
HK$40,742,000 is included in the assets classified as held for sale) —B—H 40,742,000 c5 5 A
NEAFELEZEE) 3,537,506 3,295,300
Exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents ReRREEBY 2 EREE (59,351) (189,289)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year EXRZHRERREEEY 3,482,016 3,537,506
Cash flows of discontinued operation (including proceed BRIESEEHZRENE (BFLHE
from disposal of a subsidiary) —HB AR ZFAETE) S 61,648
SR (FE) BIRAR B FER
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2023 (“YEAR 2023”), the
consolidated turnover of the Group from continuing operations
amounted to HK$2,709.2 million, representing a decrease of 21%
when compared with the year ended 31 December 2022 (“YEAR
2022"). Profit for the year totaled HK$514.4 million as compared to
HK$1,114.6 million in YEAR 2022.

With regard to the balance sheet, the total assets as at 31 December
2023 amounted to HK$13,031.7 million, when compared with
HK$11,455.3 million as at 31 December 2022. As at 31 December
2023, net current assets amounted to HK$3,958.4 million, when
compared with HK$3,689.9 million as at 31 December 2022.

SEGMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW

(1) Payment and digital services
Key performance indicators

Turnover* P
EBITDA? EBITDA*
Operating profit EEE R

& Turnover from external customers

? EBITDA is calculated by excluding interest expense, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation from segmental operating profit

Segmental turnover amounted to HK$1,993.4 million as
compared to HK$2,652.0 million in YEAR 2022. Segmental
operating profit amounted to HK$196.5 million, 64% down as
compared to YEAR 2022.
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7 El

REEZZE_=F+"A=+—HILEFE(TZZ
TEEE))  FAEEFELEER GO E X
#2,709,200,0008 0 BB E_ZZ"F+_H
=t+—HIEFE (T2 ZFE) Bl21% FR
WA & A514,400,0008 T M_E - _FE0|A
1,114,600,0007 7T ©

nEEaGErRm= N _2_=F+"A=+—
B> &EHES13,031,700,000877 MR _Z
T HF+ZHA=+—HH]%11,455,300,000& T °
RIBE_=ZF+_A=+—H RBHEEFES
3,958,400,000/8 70 Mt _E__F+_-_B=+—H
811753,689,900,0007 7 ©

HERIROEE
(1) AR FIEIRTS
BXIIEIE
2023 2022 Change
—EC=HF == EE)
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/()
FET FET
1,993,439 2,652,007 -25%
297,203 695,166 -57%
196,539 553,364 -64%

* REINDERZEEE

¢ EBITDAZ DR E mFINMGRA SR IRIE T ER
HINstE

ZZFEA2,652,000,0008 7T 0 FEAS E G
) %196,500,0008 0 BR_E__FET
Bk64% o



(2)

The decrease in segmental turnover and segmental operating
profit is primarily attributable to the further replacement of
the traditional payment market by digital payments. While the
digital services business is in the expansion stage, the handling
fee rate of digital payment is lower than that of traditional
payment. As such, the decline in the overall transaction volume
and average handling fee rate during the digital transformation
period has resulted in a decrease in revenue and operating
profit during the relevant period. At the same time, the Group
is actively making strategic moves to expand its management
service products and platforms as well as cross-border business.
Despite the expected short-term pressure during the period
of digital transformation, the Group firmly believes that this
strategic adjustment will bring about the cornerstone of more
stable development in the future.

Fintech services
Key performance indicators

Turnover* =l
EBITDA? EBITDA*

— including credit impairment loss —8EEEREEE
Operating profit R

& Turnover from external customers

: EBITDA is calculated by excluding interest expense, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation from segmental operating profit

In YEAR 2023, segmental turnover amounted to HK$198.3
million as compared to HK$228.7 million in YEAR 2022,
representing a decrease of 13%. Segmental operating profit
amounted to HK$43.0 million as compared to HK$14.8 million
in YEAR 2022. Increase in segmental operating profit mainly
contributed by a decrease in credit impairment loss.
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DEREFRERDEEE RN R ETE2RER
REFZAE-TERNAEH NS - #R
HFEMBEFEN BRI BRFN
NFEBERMNRERA - EIE - T
BURBNEERZERTHFEEXT
fE B A AR A RAEE amH R - [
R AEREHBRES RBEHMARAEE
RFBEm  FAURBIREES - BERAN
BT CEHEEER AR  BAEER(E
EEERAZRRASBREMBEEREN
HEhe

AR RS

BRIFIER
2023 2022 Change
—EI=HF - — e E
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)

FET THTT

198,306 228,704 -13%
47,748 22,099 +116%
54,457 100,931 -46%
42,980 14,825 +190%

* RBEIBIERZEXE

EBITDARZ D R & m R HIFRFI B RS IRE I E &
W E

TR =FE pIEEEEEA198,300,000/87T 0
=T T FEA228,700,000587T 2 B/ 13%°
DEBLSEE R #43,000,0008 70 M _Z - _F
FERI7314,800,00078 7T c DEELZ G AN EE
REREERERBENRLD

BFEH (E) BRAR “EC=FFR
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(3) Platform operation solutions

Key performance indicators

Turnover* EEEh
EBITDA? EBITDA?
Fair value loss on a financial assetat ~ 3ZAF{EF AT 2
fair value through profit or loss ETMEEZAFE
518
Operating loss KR

& Turnover from external customers

: EBITDA is calculated by excluding interest expense, taxes,

depreciation, amortisation and fair value loss on a financial asset at
FVPL from segmental operating loss

In YEAR 2023, we continued to provide high-quality and
efficient supporting services, such as product development,
business operation and system maintenance, to China Mobile
Fintech, the IVR Base of China Mobile and the Animation
Base of China Mobile. During the year, segmental turnover
amounted to HK$166.0 million as compared to HK$169.5
million in YEAR 2022. Segmental operating loss amounted to
HK$19.5 million as compared to HK$24.6 million in YEAR
2022, which was primarily attributable to the fair value loss
on financial asset through profit or loss amounted to HK$8.2
million in YEAR 2023 as compared to fair value losses of
HK$6.9 million in YEAR 2022.
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Q) FREBEEMREE

FEXRFIEE

2023 2022 Change
—EC=H = b=y
HK$'000 HK$'000 +(-)

FHET FHE7T
166,011 169,476 2%
(5,492) (12,250) N/A & B
(8,159) (6,889) N/A & B
(19,509) (24,612) N/A & B

* RBINEIERZEXE

EBITDAM D S/ & B 1RINMRF BRI IRIE T EE
BRI AT ESFABREZ EREEZ A TFEBE
stH

ATEC=FEE -RMBEATEER R
FIVREM KT REEEEMIBEREESN
NERBRBE NELHRE - EBESERRMK
HEFNDFEEEEA166,000,0008 7T
M- _FEAA169,500,0008 7T 248
R E5182319,500,0008 0 M_SE__FF
A7%24,600,000870 TEHRR 2 Z=F
B BATEFAEBBZEHEEATES
878,200,000 M_E__FEHES
6,900,000 7T ©



4)

(5)

Financial solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* =E$0h
EBITDA* EBITDA?
Operating loss FES ) SEi

* Turnover from external customers

: EBITDA is calculated by excluding interest expense, taxes, depreciation

and amortisation from segmental operating loss

In YEAR 2023, segmental turnover amounted to HK$304.6
million as compared to HK$346.1 million in YEAR 2022.
Segmental operating loss totalled HK$19.9 million as compared
to HK$7.4 million in YEAR 2022. The segmental operating
loss was mainly due to the upfront costs on various projects
incurred during YEAR 2023.

Others

Other business operations mainly included our electronic
power meters and solutions business and various new business
projects in development stage. Turnover from these businesses
contributed approximately 1.7% of the total consolidated
turnover from continuing operations of the Group.

Segmental turnover amounted to HK$46.8 million as compared
to HK$36.5 million in YEAR 2022. Segmental operating loss
amounted to HK$27.2 million as compared to HK$67.0 million
in YEAR 2022.
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4) ERBRFE

FEXRIFIEEZ
2023 2022 Change
—EC=HF —E-— EE)
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)

FHET FET

304,621 346,068 -12%
(13,515) (234) N/A & B
(19,867) (7,362) N/A 8

(5)

* RBEIBERZEXE

EBITDAZ D B E 18I A SRS RIE e K
st E

N2 =FE DEEEEE#3304,600,00078
70 M ZE - FERIA346,100,000787T 48
A ES I A 7519,900,0008 T M -2 - —4F
EEIJ%7,400,000/’§E°::_ FEDERE
BEDEERPEENSEENEIEEM A o

Hith

HM ¥R EE T EOEBEE MRS EE
R E ARSI EREIEE - ZEEEN
EHEBERMOLAEFRRBFECEERRS
S EBAEERN.7%

D EEE 2 RE446,800,00008 70 M _S__FE
#36,500,00078 7T ° 2 84S & F5384327,200,000
Byt M FER]%67,000,000787T ©

BFEH (E) BRAR “EC=FFR
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OVERALL FINANCIAL RESULTS AND POSITION

(A)

(B)

©)

Revenue

The consolidated turnover from continuing operations
amounted to HK$2,709.2 million, representing a decrease of
21% over YEAR 2022. Such decrease was mainly contributed
by a decrease in segmental turnover of our payment and digital
services segment. Please also refer to Notes (1) to (5) above on
segmental performance.

Other income
Other income mainly consisted of interest income and
government grants in YEAR 2023.

Cost of sales and operating expenses

In YEAR 2023, cost of sales decreased significantly mainly due
to decline in total turnover particularly in payment and digital
services segment.

Increase in operating expenses was mainly due to increase in
research and development costs and staff cost including share
award scheme of approximately HK$15.0 million, and partially
net off by reduced depreciation expenses in YEAR 2023.

Credit impairment loss was primarily due to impairment loss
on aged loan receivable balances under the fintech services
segment.

(D) Share of results of associated companies

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Amounts mainly represented share of the results of PAX Global
Technology Limited (“PAX Global”), an associated company
of the Company, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.
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(A)

(B)

©

(D)

KA
FHEREETE 2 iR E 2£%8752,709,200,000748
TORIET TEERI21% BRABLDEER
RE N RBFERBOE D RS £/
BTN A2 R EXMENEG)Z DERIR

H A
TR -FEHMBRATESERNERARE
FF#EEN °

S A R AT B
—ECCEEEERAKETR TEHRE
BEE TR PHES A RUFLREH Ho

SR E B AEP TSRS MR E T
A (BLFERR (7 22 B 51 £14915,000,0007%8 7T) 18
> BEAWNR S = EERERT R/
E=

SEREBRENDIEZHENEMB KRB DEE
TR AR SRS R R BE R R

EAGBE AR 2 EE
ERTBRIBENEARBZHERATBER
KRR AERAR (B8R ERGRBFT
£) 2%



(E)

(F)

Investment properties and property, plant and
equipment

Balance mainly represented fixed assets of payment and digital
services segment and electronic power meters and solutions
business under other business operations.

Investments in associated companies

Balance mainly represented the Group’s interests in PAX Global
and Megahunt Technologies Inc. (“Megahunt”). The Group
is optimistic about their future prospects of its associated
companies and will continue to demonstrate prudence and
resilience in assessing its investment strategy towards the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

(i) PAX Global

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held 364,000,000
ordinary shares of PAX Global and the fair value of the
Group’s approximately 34.0% effective interest in PAX
Global was approximately HK$2,202.2 million and was
lower than its carrying value. An impairment test was
performed to determine the recoverable amount of the
investment. The recoverable amount, which was assessed
by an independent valuer on a value-in-use basis using the
discounted cash flow model, exceeds the carrying value
as at 31 December 2023. The interest in PAX Global of
HK$3,046.0 million represented approximately 23.4% of
the Group’s audited total assets as at 31 December 2023
and the cost of investment as at 31 December 2023 was
HK$259.8 million.

PAX Global, together with its subsidiaries, is principally
engaged in the development and sales of electronic
payment point-of-sale terminals products and the provision
of maintenance and installation and payment solution
services.

(E)

(F)

BFEH (E) BRAR
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REMERME -BERRRE
BRI BIE N RBFERFDEAUREME
BEENEENERBRAAREG ZETE
o

REABABZIRE
HERETEEAEER B ERIRIGNIEER R
R BRAE (HEIEE) Zﬁé“ﬂi%@%ﬁ
B QB BIRRA SRR R IR EE
TR B A ST HAR B TRBE - Lﬁmﬂﬂx%f’if@

() BEEERK

AT ZE+_RA=+—H ~EEF
BB ZIRIK364,000,00008 ZiEG 0 HARE
BN A EIRIKA34.0%E R D 2 AT E
#97%32,202,200,0008 77 BEREREE-
ETRENSEEEEREZTKREIE
BoR_E_=F+"B=1+—H #HE
L EMIR R EAEREE TR AR
ReEraBilstE 2 b EBARE
B-RIE=ZF+"B=+—H 1PE=E
IRIKAURERR3,046,000,00058 oA L A< E [EF
REIZEEBEN23.4% MRN8 _=
+ B =+—HZ&REMZA%259,800,000
BIte

BERN ERHEWEAR TBREETF
ST EHE B AR IR A rm YRR B I SH 0 MR
AR R 2 R AR R TR ©

“EC=FFR
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PAX Global is one of the global leading suppliers of
E-payment Terminals solutions business. The continuous
progress in payment technology, coupled with the growing
consumer preference for convenient and secure payment
options, along with global cashless initiatives, has opened
up new opportunities for PAX Global’s products and
solutions. Despite facing challenging macroeconomic
conditions, PAX Global has showcased resilience to risks
and adaptability to volatile environments. PAX Global
remains at the forefront of market trends and actively drives
the enhancement of payment terminal technology.

In YEAR 2023, the decrease in net profit of PAX Global
was mainly due to the decline in revenue generated
from certain regions, which is primarily attributed to the
drop in purchase orders resulting from the slowdown in
the economic growth in these regions. Looking forward,
we are optimistic about PAX Global maintaining a
positive outlook on the market demand for its payment
terminals and being well-prepared to capitalise on the vast
opportunities within the global payments industry.

(i) Megahunt

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held approximately
45.73% of the issued shares of Megahunt. The interest in
Megahunt of HK$529.8 million represented approximately
4.1% of the Group's audited total assets as at 31 December
2023.

During the year, due to the impact of the global economic
conditions and the tightened global semiconductor supply
chain, the growth of the information security chip industry
tended to slow down and competition became more
intense. The information security chip market is generally
expected to develop steadily in 2024, subject to changes
due to the policy impact on the payment market. At the
same time, it is expected that the security chips used in
the Internet of Things (loT) will achieve preliminary sales
in 2024. Other research and development projects are
progressing smoothly and the cost reduction initiatives of
various products are also rolling out in an orderly manner.
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(G) Financial asset at fair value through other

comprehensive income

The YEAR 2022 amount represented interest in shares of
Cloopen Group Holding Limited (“Cloopen”) whose American
depositary shares (the “ADSs”) had been traded on the New
York Stock Exchange up to suspension of its trading from 17
May 2023 (New York time), following which the ADSs has
become eligible for trading in the over-the-counter market in
the United States.

Based on the fair value of the ADS as at 31 December 2023
calculated based on its quoted bid prices in over-the-counter
market (31 December 2022: New York Stock Exchange),
the Group recognised an “other comprehensive loss” of
approximately HK$152.8 million in YEAR 2023 due to the
change in fair value of its interest in Cloopen. The carrying
amount of the balance is denominated in US$.

Cloopen is a multi-capability cloud-based communications
solution provider in China offering a full suite of cloud-based
communications solutions, covering communications platform
as a service (CPaaS), cloud-based contact centers (cloud-
based CC), and cloud-based unified communications and
collaborations (cloud-based UC&C).

Further details are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 20 January 2021, 4 February 2021, 10 February 2021, 1
July 2021, 28 February 2022, 4 May 2022 and 18 May 2023.

The balance was re-classified as investments in assoicated
companies as at 31 December 2023.
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G) BATEFAREMEEREZ ENEE

—Z2__FEETEENCloopen Group Holding
Limited (T Cloopen ) B9 17 14 » HEB1F5E%
9 (EEFERD) BRENESIRSMES
BEEZE_=FHA+TtH @YK LY
EERLL BRERFEROPTEERNER

BHINHIEEE-

BERIBIINTHIBHMEREAE (CEI2E 4G
BETG StEMNR S =F+_"/B=+—
HERGELTRDWATE AERNR T "=
FEEBEAER CloopenZ AT ELEENE
BB TE 2 EE5R149152,800,00078 7T © 45 BRAY
HAREEMUSETEHE

CloopenzFEIE N EN S TREEABR T =M
&S RMEEENEMNBARAL R RERE
S & BNARFS(CPaaS) ~ N ER & F O B
EHCC) RENRENR—BAKRIE EREN
UC&QC)°

BERE—FHB SNERTAPR T " —
F-RAT+HE-TET—F"AMA-TT " —
FTA+E- B —FtA—H-TBTC
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ZEBRR _ S _=F+_A=1+—HEHNniE
ARBEABZKE-

BFEH (E) BRAR “EC=FFR
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(H) Trade and bills receivables, other financial assets at
amortised cost and other current assets

(H) BUERR R BN EBEREAES
HttEMEEREMAHEE

2023 2022
—E_= e
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Trade receivables (Note (i)(a)) FEWAR TR (B &L (i) a)) 187,243 181,963
Bills receivables (Note (i)(b)) FEWEEIE (B EL()Db)) 5,830 4,850
Less: provision for impairment of W ERWCRIE R E R
receivables (16,018) (16,497)
Total =111 177,055 170,316
Note (i): HiaEa):
(@ The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors normally range from 0 to 180 @ FTEE—RETEZIEBAZGEERHOE180HT

days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables primarily based on
the relevant invoice dates is as follows:

%o T ERBARR %R B EIERRERE: D 4740
T

2023 2022
== BT F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Current to 90 days BPEAZE90H 145,541 143,537
91 to 180 days 91E180H 13,989 4,844
181 to 365 days 181ZE365H 3,463 8,748
Over 365 days 365H £ 24,250 24,834
187,243 181,963

—  Changes in balances between aged 91 to 180 days and 181 to
365 days were mainly due to changes of outstanding balances
under platform operation solutions segment.

(b) Bills receivables as at 31 December 2023 mainly belonged to the

platform operation solutions segment and electronic power meters and
solutions business under other business operations.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

—  RENTIIHE180H K181HE3650 2 45k
28 FEEHARTEREERAARNLEE
TREBEREBF -

RIBZ=F+_"A=+—HAZEREBEIERE
RPREEMRSRDEUREMER THIERES
BRBRSFES



Report of the Directors

HHEFHE

() Loan receivables () FEWEZHR
Loan receivables are amounts due from customers under the RWERBN AEEHERTSRBERE D
fintech services segment in the ordinary course of business, fRIE TSR IRIE BRIMIER BITH K
unsecured and primarily denominated in RMB. FEUARESHE
The ageing analysis of loan receivables based on payment due RBEAREIE B3 2 RIS RERE D0 T

date is as follows:

2023 2022

= 2T &

HK$000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Current BDHA 1,498,174 2,637,486
1 to 3 months past due BE—F==1EAH 72,032 26,579
Over 3 months past due AEA=EAMU L 112,255 143,806
Loan receivables, gross FEUR B 48 %E 1,682,461 2,807,871

Less: provision for impairment of B BB REREE

loan receivables (145,827) (160,246)

Loan receivables, net FEWE R FRE 1,536,634 2,647,625

Bl (E) ARAT —s-=z8 ( 41
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(J) Short-term bank deposits, restricted bank balances and

() FEERIRITER  RIRHSRITEBRURREER

cash and cash equivalents RELEEY
2023 2022
—EZ= —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Current assets MENEE
Short-term bank deposits TTHERSRIT RN - 1,468
Restricted bank balances (Note) ZIRGIRIT4ERR (B5E) 3,542,318 1,064,937
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIREEEY 3,482,016 3,537,506
Restricted bank balances and cash and ZIRHBIRITAEFRURIRE K
cash equivalents HEEEY 7,024,334 4,602,443

Note:

In accordance with the notice issued by the Payment and Settlement
Department of the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) from 14 January 2019,
all customer reserve accounts held by third-party payment institutions
should be cancelled and the customer reserves should be deposited in a
dedicated deposit account maintained centrally by a designated agency.
Since the transfer of fund of the dedicated deposit account is subject to
measures imposed by PBOC, the customer reserves maintained therein are
restricted in nature.

As at 31 December 2023, the amount comprised (i) the customer
reserves deposited in the abovesaid dedicated deposit account which was
denominated in RMB; and (ii) the funds deposited in designated bank
accounts for the operation of the Group’s cross-border payment business.
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(K) Trade payables, payables for payment and digital (K) FE(IERR s XA REMFERB OB ZREAR
services segment and other payables and accruals TE LA e LAt P& £ 7R 18 K FE 5 7R 1E
2023 2022
—E-= -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
Trade payables (Note (i) FEATRRTR (H32()) 596,415 642,446
Payables for payment and digital services {4 REFILRFEDIEZ
segment (Note (ii) FETFRIE (B EE(i)) 3,591,920 965,787
Other payables and accruals (Note (iii) ~ EAFEI IR EsTFIE
(B a£iii) 932,745 967,734
Total =1 5,121,080 2,575,967
Note (i): Miata):

The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days. The
ageing analysis of the trade payables primarily based on invoice date was as

HEFRT 2 EEHHH0E180 TS - T ERBEZERH
Z FEMBRAREREG DATLOT

follows:
2023 2022
== —BICH
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Current to 90 days BIEAZE90H 318,313 294,502
91 to 180 days 91E180H 110,708 194,648
181 to 365 days 181F365H 156,504 145,038
Over 365 days 365HLL £ 10,890 8,258
596,415 642,446

—  Changes in trade payables aged between current to 90 days, 91 to 180
days and 181 to 365 days were mainly due to changes in outstanding
balances under the payment and digital services segment.

Note (ii):
This balance represents payables to merchants for the payment and digital

services segment. The increase in payables for payment and digital services
segment is in line with the increase in restricted bank balances.

—  BRESFENHAE90H 91 E180H K& 181E3650 2 FE
TREREE FBAHP LT RBFIEREDEE TR
BB

Bati:
ARSI N R B FEARB DN R 2 FIH - 7

XA R BB AR 2 £ S FRIRE N 82 2 PR BUSRAT A5 B
En—e

BERE (FE) BRAT ot Y- = 43
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(L)

Note (iii): Biaziii):
2023 2022
—EZ= “EICF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Accrued staff costs and pension obligations* FEEt B T A IR RS B 256,214 234,408
Deposits wE 35,154 42,546
Receipt in advance from customers** FESCWEL B 2 I 24,023 43,678
Advance from business channel partners** REEHRESIERINRI 424,893 426,295
Others*** E it 192,461 220,807
932,745 967,734

*  Balance represented accrued staff costs, pension obligations and year-
end bonus.

**  Receipt in advance from customers and advance from business
channel partners represented advances and guarantees received
from merchants and partners under the payment and digital services
segment.

*#% Balance mainly represented accrued subcontracting costs and other
accrued handling fees payable under the payment and digital services
segment.

Asset-backed securities
Balance represents carrying amount of outstanding priority
tranche of asset-backed securities (“ABS”).

IERETHEZERERBRAE (“VBIll Factoring”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of BEITIZIARAE (“VBill OPCO”),
approved FBITIEEEERI-15ABESZFHEIENE (the
“ABS Scheme”) and the issuance of asset-backed securities
(“ABS”) thereunder. The ABS are backed by loan receivables
in the form of trust interests. Pursuant to the no-objection
letter from the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the maximum issue
size of the ABS Scheme is RMB1,000 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,230 million) which can be issued in not
more than 15 phases by 31 December 2023. The ABS are
classified into priority and subordinated tranches according to
risks, earnings and duration. The priority tranche of the ABS is
traded on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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The first phase of the ABS Scheme with an issue size of
RMB309 million (equivalent to approximately HK$380.1
million) was established on 27 January 2022, the second
phase with an issue size of RMB362 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$419.9 million) was established on 20
May 2022 and the third phase with an issue size of RMB303
million (equivalent to approximately HK$339.4 million) was
established on 30 December 2022. The priority tranche is
issued to qualified institutional investors in the PRC and the
subordinated tranche is issued to JERBEEZEERFLERA
a] (Beijing Suixin Yunlian Technology Ltd.) (“Beijing Suixin
Yunlian”). The proceeds from the issuance are principally used
as general working capital of the fintech services segment. The
issuance of the ABS widens the fund-raising channels of the
Group to access low-cost capital, which in turn will be used to
improve the financing structure of the Company and promote
its operating activities and investments. Further details are set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 27 January 2022,
20 May 2022 and 30 December 2022.

(M) Written put option liabilities and finance costs

No written put option liability was recognised as of 31
December 2023, as compared to a balance of approximately
HK$857.1 million as of 31 December 2022, representing the
written put options liabilities on written put options granted
by VBIill (Cayman) and Mega Hunt Microelectronics Limited
(“Megahunt HK”).

Put options granted by VBill (Cayman)

In 2019, the Company, VBill (Cayman), an investor (the “VBill
Investor”) and certain other parties entered into the transaction
agreements, pursuant to which the VBill Investor subscribed
for approximately 14.01% interest in VBill (Cayman) and was
granted a put option to require VBill (Cayman) to repurchase,
redeem and/or cancel all of the shares of VBill (Cayman) held
by the VBill Investor subject to conditions prescribed under the
transaction agreements.

In November 2022, VBill (Cayman) received a notice from
the VBIll Investor to exercise the put option. The repurchase,
redemption and/or cancellation of the relevant shares of VBill
(Cayman) completed on 14 February 2023, immediately before
which the written put option liability was recognised at its fair
value in the consolidated balance sheet and correspondingly as
‘other reserves’ within equity.
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Put options granted by Megahunt HK

On 29 June 2023, the put options granted by Megahunt
HK under the subscription agreement entered into between
the Company, Megahunt HK, Megahunt and certain of its
management and certain investors dated 4 December 2019
ceased to have effect upon Megahunt’s formal submission to
the Shanghai Stock Exchange of the application for listing of
its shares on the Science and Technology Innovation Board of
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, immediately before which the
written put option liability was reclassified and recognised as a
derivative financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.

Finance costs represented the finance charges for the
repurchase/redemption amount payable upon the put options
becoming exercisable.

Income tax credit

The income tax credit was mainly due to a subsidiary under
payment and digital services segment being qualified as a
Software and Integrated Circuit Enterprise (“SICE”) in YEAR
2023.

(O) Discontinued operation

Discontinued operation refers to the information security chips
and solutions operations of Megahunt.

The corresponding business segment (i.e. the information
security chips and solutions segment) was classified as

discontinued operation for YEAR 2022.

Key Financial Performance

Profit after income tax of discontinued operation
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For the
period from

1 January
2022 to

23 May 2022
—ETF
—HB—H=
BT
ABZ+=H
HARS
HK$'000
FET

SiRBmA 80,238

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

HE—RNBAR W

429,339

Profit from discontinued operation

BRI EFFm A

509,577

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2023



Megahunt is owned as to 45.73% by the Group and is
accounted for as an associated company of the Company
following completion of the Group’s disposal of the entire
approximately 20% interest in May 2022. Further details
may be referred to the Company’s announcement dated 15
December 2021, 28 December 2021, 11 February 2022, 28
February 2022, 14 April 2022 and 23 May 2022.

KEY INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

In February 2023, completion of the exercise of the put option
granted in 2019 to the VBill Investor under the relevant transaction
agreements entered into between VBill (Cayman), the VBill
Investor and certain other parties took place. Upon completion
of the exercise, VBill (Cayman) has become wholly-owned by the
Company and certain transaction agreements were terminated and/
or amended with immediate effect, such that the said investor’s
rights and obligations thereunder accordingly ceased and
terminated.

In June 2023, Megahunt formally submitted and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange formally accepted the application for listing of its shares
on the Science and Technology Innovation Board of the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (SSE STAR Market). Upon the formal submission
of the listing application, the put option granted in 2019 under the
relevant transaction agreements ceased to have effect and Megahunt
HK will no longer have obligations in relation thereto.
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INFORMATION

ON THE CONTRACTUAL

ARRANGEMENTS

The Group has been operating certain businesses which adopt
contract based arrangements and/or structures (“Contractual
Arrangements”) for the purpose of enabling the Group, as a foreign
investor, to control and benefit from the PRC operating companies
(“OPCQO”) in the foreign restricted businesses in the PRC.

Set out below are the details of the Contractual Arrangements which
are material to the Group.

1.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Contractual Arrangement in respect of EEZ TR A
RATE (formerly known as EEETREBHHBRAR)
(“Chongqing JIM”) and its subsidiary VBill OPCO

1.1

1.2

Particulars of OPCO and its registered owners
Chongging JIM is a limited liability company established in
the PRC on 4 June 2002.

From 28 May 2010 to 24 October 2019, contractual
agreements (“Existing JIM Control Documents”) were
entered into between Chongqging JIM, its registered
shareholders, namely Mr. Zhou Jianhong (60%) and Mr. Na
Wei (40%), (“Chongging JIM Shareholders”) and 51715 B
Fr (£78) BRAE (“Shanghai JIM”), pursuant to which
Shanghai JIM was allowed to exercise control of and enjoy
economic benefits generated from Chongging JIM.

Shanghai JIM is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

On 24 October 2019, (i) Chongging JIM, (ii) Chonggqing
JIM Shareholders and (iii) It RIS EIERTEBRA A
(unofficial English translation for identification purpose
only, being Beijing Microcode Data Technology Co., Ltd.)
(a wholly-foreign owned enterprise incorporated under the
laws of the PRC and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of VBill (Cayman), the “New WFOE”), entered into a new
set of contractual agreements which allows New WFOE to
exercise control of and enjoy economic benefits generated
from Chongging JIM (“New JIM Control Documents
(Pre-Swap)”). The Existing JIM Control Documents were
terminated on the same date.

Description of OPCO's business and their significance to
the Group

Chongqing JIM and its subsidiaries (collectively “JIM
Group”) are principally engaged in the value-added
telecommunication business (3 & 5% 5) with major
focus on payment related solutions and services, the
provision of payment and digital services in the PRC.
Key financial indicators of the JIM Group are set out in
paragraph 1.4 below.
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1.3 Summary of the major terms of the underlying contracts of

the Contractual Arrangements

JIM Master Exclusive Service Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE and Chongging JIM entered into the JIM
Master Exclusive Service Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant
to which (i) Chonggqing JIM has appointed and designated
New WFOE as its exclusive service provider to provide
the technical and business support services and (i) New
WFOE has agreed to provide financial support in the
form of interest-free loan, as permitted by PRC laws, to
Chonggqing JIM by separate agreements to be executed
and performed by the parties. The service fee payable for
the said services shall be equal to 100% of the audited
consolidated net profits of Chongging JIM; notwithstanding
the foregoing New WFOE may adjust the service fee at its
sole discretion and in accordance with the requirements
of relevant governmental authorities, with reference to the
working capital requirements of Chongging JIM.

JIM Business Cooperation Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE, Chongqging JIM, and the Chongqing JIM
Shareholders entered into the JIM Business Cooperation
Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which each of the
Chongging JIM Shareholders and Chongging JIM have
jointly and severally agreed and covenanted that, without
obtaining New WFOE’s prior written consent, neither
Chongging JIM nor the Chongging JIM Shareholders shall
cause Chongging JIM to, engage in any transaction which
may materially affect Chongging JIM’s asset, obligations,
rights or operation.

JIM Exclusive Option Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE, Chongqging JIM and the Chongging JIM
Shareholders entered into the JIM Exclusive Option
Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which (i) New WFOE
shall have the exclusive right to require Chongqing
JIM Shareholders to transfer any and all of their equity
interests of Chongging JIM (the “JIM Equity Interests”) to
New WFOE and/or its designated third party, subject to
New WFOFE’s specific requirements; and (ii) New WFOE
shall have the exclusive right to require Chongging JIM
to transfer any and all of the assets owned by Chonggqing
JIM (the “JIM Assets”) to New WFOE and/or its designee,
subject to New WFOE's specific requirements. The total
transfer price for the JIM Equity Interests and/or the
JIM Assets shall be the lowest price allowed under the
applicable PRC laws and administrative regulations at the
time of transfer. Where there is no lowest price prescribed
under the applicable PRC laws and administrative
regulations, the transfer price shall be determined by New
WFOE.
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JIM Proxy Agreement and Power of Attorney (Pre-Swap)
New WFOE, Chongqging JIM, and the Chongging JIM
Shareholders entered into the JIM Proxy Agreement and
Power of Attorney (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which (i)
each of the Chongging JIM Shareholders has nominated
and appointed New WFOE (as well as its successors,
including a liquidator, if any) as his attorney-in-fact to
exercise such rights as a shareholder of Chongging JIM on
his behalf, and any right conferred by relevant laws and
regulations and the articles of association of Chongging
JIM; and (ii) each of the Chongging JIM Shareholders has
covenanted with and undertaken to New WFOE that, if he
receives any dividends, interest, any other forms of capital
distributions, residual assets upon liquidation, or proceeds
or consideration from the transfer as a result of, or in
connection with, his JIM Equity Interests, he shall, to the
extent permitted by applicable laws, remit all such monies
or assets to New WFOE or its designated entity without
any compensation, and shall bear all taxes and fees with
respect thereto.

JIM Equity Interest Pledge Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE, Chongqing JIM and the Chongqing
JIM Shareholders entered into the JIM Equity Interest
Pledge Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which each
of the Chongging JIM Shareholders has agreed to,
unconditionally and irrevocably, pledge all of their JIM
Equity Interests, including any interest or dividend paid for
such equity interests, to New WFOE as a security for the
performance of any and all obligations of Chongging JIM
Shareholders and Chongging JIM under the contractual
documents (other than JIM Equity Interest Pledge
Agreement (Pre-Swap)) at the amount of RMB50,000,000
which is estimated value of the obligations of Chongging
JIM Shareholders and Chongging JIM under the contractual
documents for initial registration purpose.
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JIM Confirmation and Guarantee Letter (Pre-Swap)

Each of Chongging JIM Shareholders has signed the JIM
Confirmation and Guarantee Letter (Pre-Swap), pursuant
to which each of the Chongging JIM Shareholders has
confirmed and guaranteed that, among other things:

1. his successor, guardian, creditor, spouse or any other
person that may be entitled to assume rights and
interests in the equity interests of Chongging JIM held
by him upon his death, incapacity, bankruptcy, divorce
or any circumstances that may affect his ability to
exercise his shareholder’s rights in Chongging JIM,
will not carry out any act that may affect or hinder
the fulfillment of his obligations under each of the
contractual documents;

2. he will unwind the contractual documents and transfer
all of the equity interests of Chongging JIM held by
him to New WFOE or any party designated by New
WFOE as soon as the applicable PRC laws allow New
WFOE to operate the business operated by Chongging
JIM by way of directly holding equity interests, and
that subject to applicable PRC laws, he must donate
immediately without compensation to New WFOE or
its designated entity any consideration he has received
from New WFOE during its acquisition of JIM Equity
Interests; and

3. he will not directly or indirectly engage in, own or
acquire any business that competes or might compete
with the business of Chongging JIM or its affiliated
companies or to have any interest in such business;
and none of his actions or omissions will give rise to
conflict of interest between himself and New WFOE
(including but not limited to the shareholders of New
WEFOE); in the event of any such conflict, he will take
any action as instructed by New WFOE to eliminate
such conflict provided such action is compliant with
PRC laws.

JIM Spousal Consent (Pre-Swap)

Ms. Liu Dan (“Ms. Liu”), the spouse of Mr. Na Wei has
covenanted, among other things, not to take any action
with the intent to interfere with the arrangements under
and performance of the contractual documents, including
making any claim that such equity interests in Chongging
JIM constitute property or community property between
herself and Mr. Na Wei and waives all her rights or
entitlements to such equity interests that may be granted to
her according to any applicable laws.
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1.4

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Disputes resolutions

The contractual documents all contain a disputes
resolution clause which stipulates that any dispute or
claim shall be resolved by the parties in good faith through
negotiations. If no resolution can be reached, the dispute
shall be submitted to the Beijing Arbitration Commission
for arbitration in Beijing in accordance with its rules of
arbitration in effect at the time of application. The arbitral
tribunal or the arbitrators shall have the authority to
award any remedy or relief in accordance with the terms
of the contractual documents and applicable PRC laws,
including provisional and permanent injunctive relief (such
as injunctive relief with respect to the conduct of business
or to compel the transfer of assets), specific performance
of any obligation created thereunder, remedies over the
equity interests or land assets of Chongging JIM and
winding up orders against Chongqing JIM. The arbitral
award shall be final and binding upon all parties. In
addition, to the extent permitted under applicable PRC
laws, each party shall have the right to seek interim
injunctive relief or other interim relief from a court of
competent jurisdiction in support of the arbitration when
formation of the arbitral tribunal is pending or under
appropriate circumstances. The parties agreed that, subject
to applicable laws, the courts of Hong Kong, the Cayman
Islands, Bermuda, PRC and the places where the principal
assets of Chongging JIM are located, shall all be deemed to
have jurisdiction.

Revenue and assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangements

The consolidated total revenue of the JIM Group for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was HK$2,183.6 million.
The consolidated total assets and net assets of the JIM
Group as at 31 December 2023 amounted to HK$7,153.0
million and HK$2,674.6 million respectively.
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Contractual Arrangements in respect of i % E Rl
=SSR MTAMRAT (“Hunan Yunrong”, unofficial
English translation being Hunan Yunrong Information
Technology Co., Ltd.)

2.1

2.2

Particulars of Hunan Yunrong and its registered owners
Hunan Yunrong is a limited liability company established
in the PRC on 15 August 2014. Hunan Yunrong was
wholly-owned by Chongging JIM before 21 May 2019.
Hunan Yunrong and Chongging JIM were accounted for as
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company contractually
controlled by the Group through the Existing JIM Control
Documents.

On 21 May 2019, the Group implemented a restructuring
involving the Hunan Yunrong and its subsidiaries (“Yunrong
Group”) as detailed in the announcement of the Company
dated 21 May 2019. Upon completion of the restructuring,
Mr. Zhang Yonggang (“Mr. Zhang”) and Mr. Wei Mingliang
(“Mr. Wei”) became the registered shareholders of Hunan
Yunrong (“Hunan Yunrong Shareholders”), holding 70%
and 30% equity interests of Hunan Yunrong (“Yunrong
Equity Interests”), respectively. Control documents
(“Yunrong Control Documents”) were entered into between
Hunan Yunrong, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Wei and 1t X232 2
BEEERMARAB (“Beijing Hi Sunsray”, unofficial
English translation being Beijing Hi Sunsray Information
Technology Limited) to allow Beijing Hi Sunsray to
contractually control 100% equity interests and the
management of Hunan Yunrong.

Description of OPCO's business and their significance to
the Group

Yunrong Group is principally engaged in platform
operation solutions business in the PRC. Key financial
indicators of the Yunrong Group are set out in paragraph
2.4 below.
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2.3 Summary of the major terms of the underlying contracts of

the Contractual Arrangements

Yunrong Master Exclusive Service Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray and Hunan Yunrong entered into the
Yunrong Master Exclusive Service Agreement, pursuant to
which (i) Hunan Yunrong has appointed and designated
the Beijing Hi Sunsray as its exclusive service provider
to provide the technical and business support services
and (ii) Beijing Hi Sunsray has agreed to (to the extent
permissible under PRC law) provide financial support
in the form of interest-free loan, as permitted by PRC
laws, to Hunan Yunrong by separate agreements to be
executed and performed by the parties. The service
fee payable for the said services shall be equal to
100% of the audited consolidated net profits of Hunan
Yunrong; notwithstanding the foregoing the Beijing Hi
Sunsray may adjust the service fee at its sole discretion
and in accordance with the requirements of relevant
governmental authorities, with reference to the working
capital requirements of Hunan Yunrong.

Yunrong Business Cooperation Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Business
Cooperation Agreement, pursuant to which each of
the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders and Hunan Yunrong
have jointly and severally agreed and covenanted that,
without obtaining the Beijing Hi Sunsray’s prior written
consent, neither Hunan Yunrong nor the Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders shall cause Hunan Yunrong to, engage in any
transaction which may materially affect Hunan Yunrong’s
asset, obligations, rights or operation.
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Yunrong Exclusive Option Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Exclusive
Option Agreement, pursuant to which (i) Beijing Hi
Sunsray shall have the exclusive right to require Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders to transfer any and all of their
Yunrong Equity Interests to Beijing Hi Sunsray and/or its
designated third party designated, subject to Beijing Hi
Sunsray’s specific requirements; and (ii) Beijing Hi Sunsray
shall have the exclusive right to require Hunan Yunrong
to transfer any and all of the assets owned by Hunan
Yunrong (the “Yunrong Assets”) to the Beijing Hi Sunsray
and/or its designee, subject to Beijing Hi Sunsray’s specific
requirements. The total transfer price for the Yunrong Equity
Interests and/or the Yunrong Assets shall be the lowest price
allowed under the applicable PRC laws and administrative
regulations at the time of transfer. Where there is no
lowest price prescribed under the applicable PRC laws
and administrative regulations, the transfer price shall be
determined by the Beijing Hi Sunsray.

Yunrong Proxy Agreement and Power of Attorney

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Proxy Agreement
and Power of Attorney, pursuant to which (i) each of
the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders has nominated and
appointed Beijing Hi Sunsray (as well as its successors,
including a liquidator, if any) as his attorney-in-fact to
exercise such rights as a shareholder of Hunan Yunrong
on his behalf, and any right conferred by relevant laws
and regulations and the articles of association of Hunan
Yunrong; and (ii) each of the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders
has covenanted with and undertaken to Beijing Hi
Sunsray that, if he receives any dividends, interest, any
other forms of capital distributions, residual assets upon
liquidation, or proceeds or consideration from the transfer
of equity interests as a result of, or in connection with, his
Yunrong Equity Interests, he shall, to the extent permitted
by applicable laws, remit all such monies or assets to
Beijing Hi Sunsray or its designated entity without any
compensation, and shall bear all taxes and fees with
respect thereto.
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Yunrong Equity Interest Pledge Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Equity Interest
Pledge Agreement, pursuant to which each of the Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders has agreed to, unconditionally
and irrevocably, pledge all of their Yunrong Equity
Interests, including any interest or dividend paid for such
equity interests, to Beijing Hi Sunsray as a security for
the performance of any and all obligations of Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders and Hunan Yunrong under the
contractual documents (other than Yunrong Equity Interest
Pledge Agreement) at the amount of RMB10,000,000,
the estimated value of the obligations of Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders and Hunan Yunrong under the contractual
documents for initial registration purpose.

Yunrong Confirmation and Guarantee Letter

Each of Hunan Yunrong Shareholders signed the Yunrong
Confirmation and Guarantee Letter, pursuant to which each
of the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders has confirmed and
guaranteed that, among other things:

1. his successor, guardian, creditor, spouse or any other
person that may be entitled to assume rights and
interests in the equity interests of Hunan Yunrong
held by him upon his death, incapacity, bankruptcy,
divorce or any circumstances that may affect his ability
to exercise his shareholder’s rights in Hunan Yunrong,
will not carry out any act that may affect or hinder
the fulfillment of his obligations under each of the
contractual documents;
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2. he will unwind the contractual documents and
transfer his entire Yunrong Equity Interests to Beijing
Hi Sunsray or its designated party as soon as the
applicable PRC laws allow Beijing Hi Sunsray to
operate the business operated by Hunan Yunrong
by way of directly holding equity interests, and that
subject to applicable PRC laws, he must donate
immediately without compensation to Beijing Hi
Sunsray or its designated party any consideration
he has received from Beijing Hi Sunsray during its
acquisition of the Yunrong Equity Interests; and

3. he will not directly or indirectly engage in, own or
acquire any business that competes or might compete
with the business of Hunan Yunrong or its affiliated
companies or to have any interest in such business;
and none of his actions or omissions will give rise to
conflict of interest between himself and Beijing Hi
Sunsray (including but not limited to the shareholders
of Beijing Hi Sunsray); in the event of any such
conflict, he will take any action as instructed by
Beijing Hi Sunsray to eliminate such conflict provided
such action is compliant with PRC laws.

Yunrong Spousal Consent

Ms. Li Qi (“Ms. Li"), the spouse of Mr. Zhang, has
covenanted, among other things, not to take any action
with the intent to interfere with the arrangements under
and performance of the contractual documents, including
making any claim that such Yunrong Equity Interests
constitute property or community property between herself
and Mr. Zhang and waives all their rights or entitlements to
such equity interests that may be granted to her according
to any applicable laws.
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2.4

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Disputes resolutions

The contractual documents all contain disputes resolution
clause which stipulates that any dispute or claim shall be
resolved by the parties in good faith through negotiations.
If no resolution can be reached, the dispute shall be
submitted to the Beijing Arbitration Commission for
arbitration in Beijing in accordance with its rules of
arbitration in effect at the time of application. The arbitral
tribunal or the arbitrators shall have the authority to
award any remedy or relief in accordance with the terms
of the contractual documents and applicable PRC laws,
including provisional and permanent injunctive relief (such
as injunctive relief with respect to the conduct of business
or to compel the transfer of assets), specific performance
of any obligation created thereunder, remedies over the
equity interests or land assets of Hunan Yunrong and
winding up orders against Hunan Yunrong. The arbitral
award shall be final and binding upon all parties. In
addition, to the extent permitted under applicable PRC
laws, each party shall have the right to seek interim
injunctive relief or other interim relief from a court of
competent jurisdiction in support of the arbitration when
formation of the arbitral tribunal is pending or under
appropriate circumstances. The parties agreed that, subject
to applicable laws, the courts of Hong Kong, the Cayman
Islands, Bermuda, PRC and the places where the principal
assets of Hunan Yunrong are located, shall all be deemed
to have jurisdiction.

Revenue and assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangements

The consolidated total revenue of the Yunrong Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023 was HK$156.1 million.
The consolidated total assets and net assets of the Yunrong
Group as at 31 December 2023 amounted to HK$195.8
million and HK$0.8 million respectively.
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Laws and regulations relating to the provision of value-
added telecommunications services in the PRC and
reasons for adopting the Contractual Arrangements
Foreign investment activities in the PRC are mainly governed by
the Catalogue of Industries for Encouraging Foreign Investment
(BN I EEE B ) (“Encouraging Catalogue”) and the
Special Administrative Measures (Negative List) for the Access
of Foreign Investment (SMEIREEA R EEREH (BE
7BE)) (“Negative List”), the Foreign Investment Law of the
PRC and their respective implementation rules and subsidiary
regulations. The Negative List and the Encouraging Catalogue
divide industries into four categories in terms of foreign
investment, namely, “encouraged”, “restricted”, “prohibited”
and “permitted” (the last category of which refers to industries
not listed under the former categories).

According to the Negative List, value-added
telecommunications businesses are classified as a restricted
business (“Restricted Business”), in which the proportion
of foreign investments shall not exceed 50% (except for
e-commerce, domestic multi-party communications, storage-
forwarding, and call centres) (“Maximum Permitted Interest
Restriction”).

According to the Administrative Measures on Internet
Information Services (E¥t#81E BRFEIENE) and the
Telecommunication Regulation of the People’s Republic of
China (FEARHZEMBEIEEHA) promulgated by the State
Council of the PRC, an ICP License is required for conducting
the Restricted Business in the PRC.

The purpose for the Group to adopt the contractual
arrangements is to enable the Group to engage in the value-
added telecommunications business indirectly through
Chongging JIM and Hunan Yunrong which hold the ICP
License.

3.
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4. Risks relating to the Contractual Arrangements

The Group is exposed to certain risks under the Contractual
Arrangements, which are summarised below.

e There is no assurance that the New JIM Control Documents
(Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents could
comply with future changes in the regulatory requirements
in the PRC and the PRC government may determine that
the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong
Control Documents do not comply with applicable
regulations.

e Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation and
implementation of the Foreign Investment Law (4ME#
&%) and how it may impact the viability of the current
corporate structure, corporate governance and business
operations under the Contractual Arrangements.

¢ the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong
Control Documents may not be as effective as direct
ownership in providing control over Hunan Yunrong or
Chongging JIM.

e The registered shareholders of Chongging JIM or Hunan
Yunrong may potentially have a conflict of interests with
the Group.

e The Contractual Arrangements may be subject to scrutiny
by the PRC tax authorities and transfer pricing adjustments
and additional tax may be imposed.

e Certain terms of the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-
Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents may not
be enforceable under PRC laws, such as the disputes
resolution clauses stipulated above.

e A substantial amount of costs and time may be involved in
transferring the ownership of OPCOs to the Group under
the JIM Exclusive Option Agreement (Pre-Swap) or the
Yunrong Exclusive Option Agreement.
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e The Group may bear economic risk which may arise from
difficulties in the operation of OPCOs.

e The Company does not have any insurance which covers
the risks relating to the New JIM Control Documents
(Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents and the
transactions contemplated thereunder.

e There is a lack of clear guidance or interpretation on
the qualification requirement under the Internet Content
Provider License, which may cast uncertainty to the Group
when the foreign ownership restriction in value-added
telecommunications is relaxed.

Internal control measures implemented by the Group to
mitigate the risks

The New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong
Control Documents contain certain provisions to exercise
effective control over and to safeguard the assets of OPCOs. In
addition to such provisions, the Company has adopted certain
measures which may include but not limited to management
control, financial control and legal review as follows:

e the Group has delegated representatives (“Representatives”)
to OPCOs, mainly responsible for exercising management
control of OPCOs; the Representatives will conduct
reviews on the operations of OPCOs;

e the Board and the Representatives shall identify major
issues arising from the implementation of and compliance
with the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the
Yunrong Control Documents;

e any regulatory enquiries from government authorities will
be submitted to the Board, if necessary, for review and
discussion on an occurrence basis;

e the Representatives or other delegates of the Board shall
meet with the registered shareholders or directors of the
OPCOs to investigate and report any suspicious matters to
the Board;

e the Board shall collect the management accounts and
major operational data of OPCOs regularly for review
which will be no less frequent than on a quarterly basis;
the financial team of the Company will seek explanations
from the senior management of the OPCOs on any
material fluctuations;
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e the Board will consult the Company’s PRC legal
advisers from time to time to check if there are any legal
developments in the PRC affecting the arrangement
contemplated under the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-
Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents, and the Board
will determine if any modification or amendment are
required to be made;

*  major issues arising from implementation and performance
of the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the
Yunrong Control Documents, if any, will be reviewed by
the Board on a regular basis; the Board will determine, as
part of its periodic review process, whether legal advisers
and/or other professionals will need to be retained to assist
the Group to deal with specific issues arising from the New
JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong Control
Documents;

e the Board will disclose the overall performance and
compliance with the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-
Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents in its annual
report to update the Shareholders and potential investors;
and

e the Company shall comply with the conditions prescribed
under the waiver granted by the Stock Exchange in
connection with the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Yunrong Control Documents and
the New JIM Control Documents.

6. Material change
There was no material change of the Contractual Arrangements
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

7. Unwinding of Contractual Arrangements
As at the date of this annual report, there is no unwinding
of any of the Contractual Arrangements or failure to unwind
when the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Contractual
Arrangements are removed.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

In 2023, China successively introduced a number of measures
to restore and expand consumption. China’s economic operation
generally continued to recover, and the effect of policies to stabilise
growth, stabilise employment, and stabilise prices continued to
emerge. However, the international environment is complex and
severe, with increasing uncertainties and difficulties for business
entities. Despite the pressure and challenges, under the premise
of “withstanding external pressure and overcoming internal
difficulties”, China’s economy rebounded. We are optimistic
about the momentum of national economic recovery and expect
the economic outlook and operating environment to remain
challenging in 2024.

PAYMENT AND DIGITAL SERVICES

In 2023, we continued to push for the strategic transformation to
accelerate the digital transformation. In 2023, the amount of digital
payment increased by more than 100% year-on-year to reach
approximately RMB640 billion. Our PaaS platform continued to
attract new partners, with more than 300 new partners joining
in 2023, covering retail, catering, hotels, gas stations, university
canteens, tourist attractions, food markets, property management,
campus bill payments and other scenarios. At the same time, our
digital management product for the retail industry, Diansansan, has
served a number of top retail customers, including supermarket
chains, convenience store chains and fresh food store chains.
With four types of products, namely “Smart Supply Chain”,
“’Smart Category Management”, “Smart Store Management”
and “KPI Monitoring and Analysis”, we have comprehensively
helped merchants improve their operational efficiency and sales
capabilities, and carried out smart management of the whole cycle
of commodity circulation, helping customers to improve commodity
inventory turnover rate, reduce capital occupation, and their rapid
expansion.

During the year, we launched the new generation of automobile
asset digital service platform “Jiexingchejia”. We are committed
to providing one-stop digital solutions integrating transaction,
payment, management and finance for global automobile/second-
hand car dealers through the combination of emerging digital
technologies and financial technology, helping enterprises quickly
achieve digital transformation and rapid growth. At present, it has
been applied to more than 100 second-hand car dealers.
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In addition, the cross-border business continued to grow steadily.
We continued to adhere to the differentiation strategy. In addition
to continuing our differentiation advantages in new regions and
small currencies, we in turn continued to explore into cross-border
payment scenarios in emerging industries and niche emerging
platforms to provide safe and reliable fund entry and exit solutions
for these emerging industries, gaining certain industry-leading
advantages. At the same time, the Group increased efforts to expand
the foreign trade collection business during the period, and the
transaction scale achieved a nearly ten-fold increase. We have also
made key breakthroughs in some core industries, especially in the
field of second-hand car export, where CoGolinks one-stop capital
solutions have become the primary choice in the market.

FINTECH SERVICES

Suixin Cloud Chain Technology Service Platform has continued to
innovate and develop, and has built two major business systems,
namely subject credit and digital credit, covering five major
business segments in the upstream and downstream of the entire
industry chain, providing enterprises with comprehensive one-stop
supply chain financial services. By establishing comprehensive
digital services and effectively connecting with various financial
institutions, we provide more extensive more convenient and more
choices of financial service products, to meet the various financing
needs of small and medium-sized enterprises in different scenarios
throughout the entire upstream and downstream chain of industries,
and assisted in the sustainable and high-quality development of
small and medium-sized enterprises.

In 2023, domestic market interest rates continued to remain
at low levels. Suixin Cloud Chain Platform strengthened close
cooperation with major financial institutions, continued to increase
financial innovation and platform service optimisation, and
provided credit support for small and medium-sized enterprises
with higher efficiency and lower interest rates. We not only fully
support new-generation bills and supply chain bills, but also have
strengthened the acceptance of bank acceptance bills, cooperating
with nearly 10 acceptance banks. With the further improvement of
the service acceptance capability of Suixin Cloud Chain Platform,
the transaction scale exceeded RMB10 billion in 2023, and the
business volume continued to grow rapidly, representing a year-on-
year increase of 131% as compared to last year. In particular, the
bills business recorded a 185% year-on-year increase.
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Our newly launched digital inclusive financial services business
this year also achieved phased results. We established two
business systems of corporate credit loan and scenario-based
credit loan, and successfully launched products of nine financial
institutions, providing small and medium-sized enterprises with
pure credit, unsecured, unguaranteed and fully online financing
products, effectively meeting the financing needs of micro, small
and medium-sized enterprises across industries in production and
operation.

PLATFORM OPERATION SOLUTIONS

In 2023, we continued to cooperate with our major customer,
China Mobile Financial Technology Co., Ltd., in the fields of
product development, business operation and system maintenance,
and the scale of our main business remained stable. Amid the
general contractionary pressure in the macro environment this year,
we continued to actively explore and made progress in enterprise
marketing tools and agency operations. During the year, we
cooperated with operators in some regions to provide customers
with Saa$ tools and overall business agency operation solutions. In
addition, we continued to optimise and upgrade the basic platform
and tool software in furtherance of our R&D path in previous years
to keep in pace with the advanced technology in the industry. We
have been successfully selected to join the Super SIM Sub-chain
Industry Alliance, marking our industry-leading cooperation with
the eight strategic products of the China Mobile Group. Looking
ahead to 2024, we remain cautiously optimistic about the market,
and will further consolidate our technology foundation, enhance
our business capabilities, and strive to secure more opportunities
with our high-quality services.
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FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS

In 2023, BJ ABS remained focused on the delivery and maintenance
of banking system products. In addition to regular maintenance
projects, during the year, we focused on completing the
commissioning of the core system project of Dah Sing Bank and
the commissioning of the distributed core system of China Guangfa
Bank. We built a wealth management system to enhance the service
capabilities of banking customers in wealth management. At the
same time, we focused on the upgrading and transformation of the
payment system, and assisted banking customers in Hong Kong and
Macau to complete the upgrading and transformation of the CHATS
and Swift systems in the context of the change in the interface
standard of 1SO20022. Among these, as China Guangfa Bank's
decentralized core system is put into production, the technological
capabilities of our products and our “mainframe downshifting”
related processes have reached a new level. Riding on the waves of
IT application innovation in Mainland China, B] ABS will leverage
on its accumulated knowledge in related projects to continue the
furtherance of the domestic alternative solutions, and help financial
institutions to implement the mainframe downshift at the lowest
cost.

For overseas financial IT service opportunities, Shenzhen Hi
Sun actively carried out market expansion and research and
development of new products and new technologies on the basis
of continuously improving overseas service capabilities. In terms of
improving overseas service capabilities: we established the Kuala
Lumpur overseas office, in addition to the overseas offices in Laos
and Cambodia, to support the provision of better local technical
support services. In terms of market expansion: we signed contracts
with eight new customers and achieved business breakthroughs in
the local markets of Malaysia and Thailand during the period. At the
same time, we completed the recruitment of local sales personnel in
Myanmar, Thailand and other markets, and actively expanded new
overseas markets. In terms of new product technology research and
development: we made new breakthroughs in the new generation of
distributed and micro-service core systems, and successfully signed
a contract with a local customer in Malaysia during the period. In
addition, we actively optimised and improved the new generation
of e-wallet payment products based on customer needs. We also
actively carried out technical research and development in response
to the business opportunity of mainframe downshift, and signed a
contract with a local customer in Thailand during the period.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A considerable portion of the Group’s revenue is derived from a
small number of customers in China. Failure to maintain good
relationships with these customers could materially and adversely
affect our financial results.

Our business operates in an industry that is subject to changes
in market conditions, technological advancements, developing
industry standards and changing customers’ needs and preferences
for our new products and/or services. Failure to promptly respond
to changes, continually enhance existing products and launch new
products to the market in a timely manner may adversely affect our
business performance. Also, any unauthorised use of our intellectual
property by third parties could harm our business and competitive
position.

The Group maintains significant amount of loan receivables, which
primarily comprise micro-lending and supply-chain financing
loans, under our Fintech services segment. Credit risk is the
Group's primary risk exposure. It is the default risk presented by
loan borrowers and counterparties. Losses may arise if there are
shortfalls in the recovery amount received for defaulted loans.
Substantial defaults in these loan receivables could disrupt our
business operations and our financial position may be materially
and adversely affected.

The industries in which we operate in the PRC are subject to
extensive industry standards and government regulations, failing
compliance of which may adversely affect our operation and sales.
Regarding our payment and digital services business in the PRC,
we are currently operating under three main payment licenses,
namely national bank card acceptance, online payment and mobile
payment licenses. We successfully completed the renewal of the
licence, which will remain valid until June 2027.
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The Group has been operating certain lines of business which adopt
contract-based arrangements and/or structures for the purpose of
enabling the Group, as foreign investor, to control and benefit from
the PRC operating companies in the foreign restricted businesses
in the PRC. However, such arrangements may not be as effective
in providing operational control as direct ownership. In addition,
there can be no assurance that the PRC government authority would
continue to regard these Contractual Arrangements as being in
compliance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations, or that
the legal requirements or policies that may be adopted in the future
would not affect the Contractual Arrangements and the relevant
business operations. Details of the Contractual Arrangements are
set out in section above titled “Information on the Contractual
Arrangements” in the Report of the Directors on page 48.

Also, volatility in the securities market may affect the Company’s
shares investments. The Company is also subject to market risks,
such as currency fluctuations, volatility of interest rates, credit risks,
and liquidity risks in the normal course of the Group’s business.
Particulars of financial risk management of the Company are set out
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. We uphold
this business approach by managing our business prudently and
executing management decisions with due care and attention. The
Company regularly conducts review of, the Environmental, Social
and Governance issues, related approach and strategy, goals and
targets, and if appropriate takes necessary measures to enhance
and adjust, the Group’s Environmental, Social and Governance
performance, compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
key relationships with employees, customers and suppliers and
stakeholders having significant impact on the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The followings outline the relevant laws and regulations which had
a significant impact on the Group’s business during the year.

Payment business license

Non-financial institutions acting as intermediaries between payees
and payers to provide online payment, issuance and acceptance
of prepaid cards, bankcard acquiring, and other payment services
determined by the PBOC shall obtain a “payment business license”.

Compliance Measures

Regulatory Relations Department and Compliance Department
of the Group directly communicate with relevant government
departments and review policy changes, and adopt measures to
regularly review and ensure that relevant business licenses are
validly maintained.
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Regulations on online payment and bankcard acquiring
business

Payment institutions, when providing online payment services, shall
apply a real-name management system to register and take effective
measures to verify the real identity information of account holders,
and bankcard acquirers shall implement real-name management of
merchants and follow the “KYC” principle.

Compliance Measures

The Group adopts relevant internal control rules and systems
to record customer information and keep transaction records.
In addition, the Group implements the regulations of the PBOC
regarding customer information protection (see “Regulations on the
Protection of Personal Information and Privacy” below for details).

Regulations on the management of customer reserves
Non-bank payment institutions shall (1) deposit the customer
reserves received directly to the centralized depository account
maintained with the PBOC; and (2) pay industry protection funds
to make up for specific losses of customer reserves or for other
purposes specified by the PBOC.

Compliance Measures
The Group has formulated supervision and review measures to
ensure compliance with the corresponding requirements.

Regulations on the administration of testing and
certification of the payment business system

Relevant laws and regulations set out the requirements for the
security management of payment business of third-party payment
institutions in respect of the business system and communication
system.

Compliance Measures

The Group adopts relevant internal control systems to ensure
compliance with the relevant management requirements and
regulations.
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Regulations on the standards for the barcode payment
business

Relevant laws and regulations govern the application of barcode
technology by banking financial institutions or non-bank payment
institutions to engage in the monetary capital transfer business.

Compliance Measures

The Group adopts relevant internal control systems and regular
review measures to ensure compliance and that relevant business
licenses are maintained.

Regulations on the protection of financial consumers
Non-bank payment institutions shall establish protocols for the
protection of the rights and interests of financial consumers.

Compliance Measures

The Group formulates and enhance internal policies and measures
to disclose information to consumers, and perform fair customer
treatment responsibilities.

Regulations on the micro-lending business
The establishment of a micro-lending company shall be approved
by the in-charge provincial government department.

Micro-lending companies established within the administrative
region of Jiangxi Province as a new type of financial organization
that provides micro-lending services for the development of
agriculture, rural areas, farmers. Online micro-lending companies
complete the entire business process from risk review, loan
application approval, lending and recovery through online platform.
Both of them shall not accept public deposits.

Compliance Measures

The Group holds an online micro-lending business license, and
has formulated guidelines, approvals and notifications measures to
strengthen supervision and management to ensure strict compliance
with operating conditions.
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Regulations on the factoring business

Such regulations regulate commercial factoring companies’
provision of the businesses such as factoring financing, sales ledger
management, collection of accounts receivable, non-commercial
guarantee against bad debts, investigation and evaluation of
customers’ credits, and other relevant consulting services.

Compliance Measures

The Group has formulated internal monitoring and control
measures, and strictly abides by the relevant regulations, including
keeping customer identity information and transaction records.

Regulations on the issuance of asset-backed securities

The issuance of asset securities, its listing and trading on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange shall comply with the Business Guidelines
of Shanghai Stock Exchange on Asset Securitization and the
applicable rules of the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Relevant laws and
regulations standardize asset securitization business, maintain the
normal market order and protect the legal interests of investors.

Compliance Measures

The Group has formulated internal monitoring and control measures
to identify, evaluate and manage the risks in the development of
asset securitization business, formulate and implement risk control
measures, and coordinate and supervise other participating entities
to perform relevant responsibilities.

Regulations on the restriction of foreign investment
Foreign-invested value-added telecommunication enterprises in the
PRC shall be established as sino-foreign equity joint ventures, and
foreign investors’ ultimate investment in the enterprise shall not
exceed 50%. Foreign investors shall also have good performance
and operational experience in relevant business.

Compliance Measures

The Group has formulated internal control measures, sought legal
opinions, and paid attention to changes in regulations to ensure
that the contractual arrangements and/or structure adopted to
operate business comply with laws and meet relevant operational
requirements.
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Regulations on anti-money laundering and anti-terrorist
financing

Non-financial institutions shall fulfill their anti-money laundering
obligations, including the verification of customer identification,
reporting suspicious large-value transactions and keeping customer
information and transaction records.

Compliance Measures

Our “anti-money laundering department” and “anti-money
laundering system” screen suspicious transactions and enhance the
Group's capability to identify suspicious transactions. Our large-
value and suspicious transaction monitoring system investigates
large-value suspicious transactions, so as to safeguard legitimate

rights and interests, and ensure information and transaction security.

Regulations on the protection of personal information and
privacy

Such regulations regulate the collection and use of personal
information in the provision of telecommunications services and
Internet information services in the PRC.

Compliance Measures

The Group has established a comprehensive mechanism of network
operation security and information security protection to maintain
operation and information security and confidentiality, and regularly
conduct data backups to ensure the integrity of information and
transaction security, and use personal information as required.

Value-added telecommunications business license
All telecommunications service providers shall obtain operating
licenses before the commencement of operation in the PRC.

Compliance Measures

The Group holds the relevant business licenses. It also conducts
annual inspections and self-checks, and adopts regular review
measures to ensure the vaild existence of the relevant business
licenses.

During the year, there was no violation or breach of relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference
to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and performance
related discretionary bonus. Share options and awards may also be
granted to eligible employees of the Group as incentives or rewards.

Relationship is the fundamental of business. The Group fully
understands this principle and thus maintains close relationship
with customers to fulfil their immediate and long-term needs.

Due to the nature of business, the Group did not have any major
supplier that has significant influence on its operations. However,
the Group strives to maintain fair and co-operative relationship with
the suppliers.

DIVIDEND

The Board considers sustainable returns to shareholders whilst
retaining adequate reserves for the Group’s future development to
be an objective. Under the Company’s dividend policy, dividends
may be declared from time to time and be paid to shareholders
provided that the Group is profitable, without affecting the normal
operations of the Group. In summary, the declaration of dividends
and the dividend amount shall be determined at the sole and
absolute discretion of the Board taking into account the following
factors:

e the Group’s financial performance;

o the liquidity position and capital requirements of the Group;
and

e any other factors that the Board may consider appropriate.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to
the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors:

XU Wensheng

KUI Man Chun

LI Wenjin

XU Changjun

Hui Lok Yan (Appointed on 14 March 2024)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
TAM Chun Fai

LEUNG Wai Man, Roger

LI Heguo

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, not less than one-third
of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at annual general meeting, and every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years.

Mr. Li Wenjin, Mr. Tam Chun Fai and Mr. Leung Wai Man Roger
shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting in accordance with Bye-law 87(1). Being eligible, they will
offer themselves for re-election in accordance with Bye-law 87(2).

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2), Ms. Hui Lok Yan, who was
appointed as an Executive Director by the Board on 14 March
2024 as an addition to the Board, will hold office until and will
be proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on 22 May 2024 (or any adjournment thereof).

UPDATE ON INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF LISTING RULES

Mr. Leung Wai Man, Roger was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of UBTECH ROBOTICS CORP LTD, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange with effect from 18 February 2023.
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DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within 1 year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section titled “Share Capital, Share Options,
Share Awards and Equity-linked Agreements” of this annual report,
at no time during or at the end of the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the Directors, chief executive or their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There was no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
in which any Director or any entity connected with a Director is
or was materially interested directly or indirectly subsisted during
or at the end of the year, nor was there any contract of significance
between the Group and a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries, or any contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Group by a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management are set out on pages 4 to 7.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
and officers of the Group was in force throughout the year and has
remained in force as at the date of this annual report.

Throughout the year, the Company maintained appropriate directors
and officers liability insurance cover providing indemnity against
liabilities, including liability in respect of legal actions against the
Directors and officers of the Group, thereby sustained or incurred
arising from or incidental to execution of duties of his/her offices,
subject to terms and conditions of the policy.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of each
Director and Chief Executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571) (“SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) were as follows:
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Amount of issued/registered share
capital in associated coporation (RMB)

Number of ordinary Shares (of HK$0.0025 each) PEEEANER/ HRRALE
EERYE (BREE05ET) (AEHT)
Percentage of
equity interests
Personal Corporate Percentage of associated
interest interest Total shareholding ** Total corporation
iy 74 PERERN
Director g% AR G5 By Bl by RiEaA
Kui Man Chun EE5 36,650,000 (L)* 617,083,036 (L)* 053,733,636 (L)* 23.54% - -
(note (j)
(i)
Xu Changjun LS 23,958,000 (Lf* = 23,958,000 (L]* 0.86% 1,768,909 (L)* 2.96%*
(note (i)
(i)
550,000 (L* 20+
(notei)
(i)
Li Wenjin VG 13,800,000 (L)* - 13,800,000 (L)* 0.50% 550,000 (L)* 20+
(notei)
(i)
XuWensheng ives 11,966,000 (L* S 11,966,000 (L* 0.43% 1,965,455 (L* 3.29%"
(note (i)
(i)
550,000 (LJ* 20+
(notei)
(i)
Hui Lok Yan' B 2,100,000 (L = 2,100,000 (L 0.08% 393,091 (L 0.66%*
(note (i)
(et
350,000 (L)* 1.27%**
(notei)
(i)
Notes: Viorzd

(i)  Representing Shares held by Mr. Kui Man Chun through (1) Hi Sun Limited,
a company in which he holds a 99.16% interest, and (2) Rich Global
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hi Sun Limited.

(i) Representing the personal interest in Megahunt.

(iii) Representing the personal interest in Shenzhen Hi Sun.

*  The Letter “L” denotes a long position.

**  Calculated based on the total number of issued Shares as at 31 December
2023, which was 2,776,833,835 ordinary shares.

***  Calculated based on the issued share capital of Megahunt as at 31
December 2023, which was RMB59,800,000.

**** Calculated based on the registered share capital of Shenzhen Hi Sun as at
31 December 2023, which was RMB27,500,000.

#  Ms. Hui Lok Yan was appointed as an Executive Director on 14 March 2024.

iy IEERBEKLESEBEN) Hi Sun Limited (—RI1EI55E99.16%HE
#mZAE) ;5 K2) Hi Sun Limitedz 2 &} /&2 ERich Global
Limited}%ﬁZfo

(i) FERIKFIBEZ B AR

(i) fER RSS2 EARER

*  TLIRINEE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of

substantial Shareholders and other persons (other than a Director, or

the Chief Executive) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures

of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

Ordinary share of HK$0.0025 each in the Company

Personal
interest
Name of shareholder
RRsRaiE, 4 BAEZ
Mr. Kui Man Chun (Note 1) 36,650,000 (L)*

REBERE W)

Rich Global Limited (“RGL")*** -
Rich Global Limited (TRGLJ )+

Hi Sun Limited (“HSL")*** (Note 2) =
Hi Sun Limited (THSL ) j*** (#7z22)

Ever Union Capital Limited (“Ever Union”) -
Ever Union Capital Limited (" Ever Union J)

Mr. Che Fung (Note 3) =
BERE Wat3)

Kopernik Global Investors, LLC -

Notes:

Hok

Representing (i) deemed interests in the Shares by virtue of control of
99.16% shareholding of HSL; and (ii) personal interests in 28,650,000
ordinary Shares.

Representing interests in the Shares by virtue of control of 100%
shareholding in RGL.

Representing interests in the Shares by virtue of control of 100%
shareholding in Ever Union, which holds beneficial interests in 334,314,000
ordinary Shares.

The Letter “L” denotes a long position.

The percentage is calculated based on the total number of Shares as at 31
December 2023, which was 2,776,833,835 ordinary Shares.

Mr. Kui Man Chun and Mr. Li Wenjin are directors of RGL and Mr. Kui Man
Chun, Mr. Li Wenjin and Mr. Xu Wensheng are directors of HSL which
are deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Corporate Total number of Percentage of

interest ordinary shares shareholding**
gz

AL EERAH [Ep:din
617,083,636 ()* 653,733,636 (L)* 23.54%
617,083,636 (L)* 617,083,636 (L)* 22.22%
617,083,636 ()* 617,083,636 (L)* 22.22%
334,314,000 (L)* 334,314,000 (L)* 12.04%
334,314,000 (L)* 334,314,000 (L)* 12.04%
139,557,000 (L)* 139,557,000 (L)* 5.03%

hat -

1 HE0)FEZEFIHSLZ99.16% R EM WA B IRD P A i ;
K (ii)i£28,650,0000% & @A P ER 2 (B8 A o

2 EREHIRGLZ100%IRIEM I AR D R 2 e o

3 $ERIZEHIEver Union Z100%B&HEMALB& (D iR 2 1% »
Ever Union##78334,314,0000% 88 2 B o

* TLIRTRHFRE

= AALNRER-_E-=F+"A=+—HZRHEH
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules subject to disclosure requirement during the year ended 31
December 2023 are as follows:

Connected Transaction — Deemed Disposal of CodeOne

On 30 November 2023, VBill (Cayman), Management Shareholders’
Holdcos* and CodeOne Data Limited, a subsidiary of the Company
(“CodeOne”) entered into a subscription agreement, pursuant to
which VBill (Cayman) and the Management Shareholders” Holdcos
subscribed for 3,778 and 1,222 new shares of CodeOne at a
subscription price of HK$3,778 and HK$12,893,009 respectively
(“Subscription”). The purpose of such Subscription is to, among
others, provide additional funding to CodeOne, enhance the
Management Shareholders” commitment to CodeOne and align the
shareholdings of the Management Shareholders with those in VBill
OPCO.

Upon completion of the Subscription in December 2023, the
Group’s interest in CodeOne held through VBill (Cayman) was
diluted from 82.28% to 80.04% and each of Shen Holdco, Li
Holdco, Xue Holdco and Ge Holdco held 9.96%, 4.80%, 3.20%
and 2% of CodeOne respectively. As such, the Group was deemed
to have disposed 2.24% equity interest in CodeOne (the “Deemed
Disposal”).

The Management Shareholders’” Holdcos are wholly-owned
respectively by Mr. Shen Zheng (director of VBill (Cayman) and
certain other subsidiaries of the Company); Mr. Li Huimin (chief
executive officer of a subsidiary of the Company and the supervisor
of another subsidiary of the Company), Mr. Xue Guangyu (director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company including subsidiaries of
CodeOne), and Ms. Ge Xiaoxia (director of a subsidiary of the
Company and a supervisor of certain other subsidiaries of the
Company) (collectively the “Management Shareholders”).
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Each Management Shareholders’ Holdco is an associate of the
respective Management Shareholder and hence a connected person
of the Company at subsidiary level. Therefore, the Deemed Disposal
constituted a connected transaction of the Company and is subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements but is exempt
from the circular and shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

*  Management Shareholders Holdcos refers to Delia and Grace Technology
Limited, Kapok Technology, YuTeng Technology Limited and Just Pay
Technology Limited respectively wholly owned by Mr. Shen Zheng, Mr. Li
Huimin, Mr. Xue Guangyu and Ms. Ge Xiaoxia.

Further details of the Deemed Disposal can be referred to the
Company’s announcement dated 30 November 2023.

Continuing Connected Transactions — Contractual
Arrangement

Yunrong Control Documents

In 2019, the Group implemented a restructuring involving Hunan
Yunrong and its subsidiaries (“Yunrong Group”). Upon completion
of the restructuring, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Wei became the registered
shareholders of Hunan Yunrong, holding 70% and 30% of Yunrong
Equity Interests respectively. Yunrong Control Documents were
entered into between Hunan Yunrong, Mr. Zhang, Mr. Wei and
Beijing Hi Sunsray to allow Beijing Hi Sunsray to contractually
control 100% Yunrong Equity Interests and the management of
Hunan Yunrong.

Beijing Hi Sunsray and Hunan Yunrong entered into the Yunrong
Master Exclusive Service Agreement, pursuant to which (i) Hunan
Yunrong has appointed and designated the Beijing Hi Sunsray as
its exclusive service provider to provide the technical and business
support services and (ii) Beijing Hi Sunsray has agreed to (to the
extent permissible under PRC law) provide financial support in
the form of interest-free loan, as permitted by PRC laws, to Hunan
Yunrong by separate agreements to be executed and performed by
the parties. The service fee payable for the said services shall be
equal to 100% of the audited consolidated net profits of Hunan
Yunrong; notwithstanding the foregoing the Beijing Hi Sunsray
may adjust the service fee at its sole discretion and in accordance
with the requirements of relevant governmental authorities, with
reference to the working capital requirements of Hunan Yunrong.

During the year, there were no service fee, dividends or other
distributions payable by Hunan Yunrong to the holders of the equity
interests of Hunan Yunrong and loan made by Beijing Hi Sunsray to
Hunan Yunrong.
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Each of Mr. Zhang and Mr. Wei is a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company and hence a connected person of the Company
at subsidiary level. The Yunrong Control Documents shall remain
effective save as otherwise terminated in accordance with their
respective terms and conditions. Therefore, the transactions
contemplated under the Yunrong Control Documents constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company with
connected persons at the subsidiary level under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and are subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements and can be exempt from the
circular, independent financial advice and Shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules.

Please also refer to details set out in the section above titled
“Information on the contractual arrangements” and the
announcement of the Company dated 21 May 2019.

Chongqing JIM VIE Restructuring

In 2019, Chongging JIM, VBill OPCO, Chongging JIM Shareholders
and each of Mr. Shen Zheng, Mr. Li Huimin, Mr. Xue Guangyu and
Ms. Ge Xiaoxia (collectively the “VBill Management Shareholders”)
entered into a share swap agreement, pursuant to which each of
the VBill Management Shareholders agreed to transfer all the equity
interests they respectively hold in VBill OPCO, representing an
aggregate of 19.96% equity interest in VBill OPCO, to Chongqing
JIM upon completion of certain conditions. As consideration for
the transfer of the VBill OPCO equity interests, Chongging JIM
will increase its registered capital in the amount of RMB526,300
(representing an aggregate of approximately 5% of its the enlarged
registered capital), which shall be registered under the names of
the VBill Management Shareholders. As at the date of this annual
report, the Share Swap Agreement has not yet completed.

Chongging JIM, Chongging JIM Shareholders and New WFOE
further entered into the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap).

New WFOE and Chongging JIM also entered into the JIM Master
Exclusive Service Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which (i)
Chongging JIM has appointed and designated New WFOE as its
exclusive service provider to provide the technical and business
support services and (ii) New WFOE has agreed to provide financial
support in the form of interest-free loan, as permitted by PRC
laws, to Chongging JIM by separate agreements to be executed
and performed by the parties. The service fee payable for the said
services shall be equal to 100% of the audited consolidated net
profits of Chongging JIM; notwithstanding the foregoing New WFOE
may adjust the service fee at its sole discretion and in accordance
with the requirements of relevant governmental authorities, with
reference to the working capital requirements of Chongging JIM.
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During the year, there were no service fee, dividends or other
distributions payable by Chongging JIM to the holders of the equity
interests of Chongging JIM and loan made by New WFOE to
Chongqing JIM.

Each of the VBill Management Shareholders and their respective
solely owned companies is a connected person of the Company
at subsidiary level. Each of the Chongging JIM Shareholders is
a director of certain insignificant subsidiaries of the Company.
Chongging JIM Shareholders will cease to be exempted
as connected persons of the Company if the insignificant
subsidiary exemptions under Rule 14A.09 no longer apply. If
so, the transactions contemplated under the Chongging JIM VIE
Restructuring (except step (iv)) constitute connected transactions
and/or continuing connected transactions at subsidiary level under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to the reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements but can be exempt
from the circular, independent financial advice and Shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing
Rules.

Please also refer to details set out in the section above titled
“Information on the contractual arrangements” and the
announcements of the Company dated 21 May 2019 and 24
October 2019.

Grant of waiver

The Company has applied for, and the Stock Exchange has granted a
waiver pursuant to Rule 14A.102 of the Listing Rules from (i) fixing
the term of the Yunrong Control Documents and New JIM Control
Documents for a period of not exceeding three years pursuant
to Rule 14A.52 of the Listing Rules, and (ii) setting a maximum
aggregate annual cap pursuant to Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules
for (x) the services fees payable by Hunan Yunrong to Beijing Hi
Sunsray and the amount of loans to be made available by Beijing
Hi Sunsray to Hunan Yunrong (as contemplated under the Yunrong
Control Documents), and (y) the services fees payable by Chongging
JIM to the New WFOE and the amount of loans to be made
available by the new WFOE to Chongging JIM (as contemplated
under the New JIM Control Documents). The waiver is subject to the
conditions as set out more particularly in the announcement of the
Company dated 21 May 2019.

Views of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the
Yunrong Control Documents and New JIM Control Documents and
confirmed that the transactions carried out during the year ended
31 December 2023 have been entered into (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; and (ii) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to the Yunrong
Control Documents and New JIM Control Documents on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2023 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Board confirms that the auditor has issued to the
Board an unqualified letter confirming the matters in accordance
with Rule T4A.56 of the Listing Rules in respect of the Group’s
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2023 as being in order.

The Company has complied with the applicable requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the continuing
connected transactions and there was no other connected
transactions required to comply with any reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2023.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the significant related party transactions is disclosed
in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements. None of
the related party transactions constituted connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.
The Company confirms that it has complied with the applicable
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2023.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the 5 largest
suppliers of items which are not of capital nature was less than 30%
of the total purchases of the Group for the year.

The aggregate amount of sales attributable to the 5 largest customers
was less than 30% of the total revenue of the Group for the year.
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PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries incorporated and operating in Hong Kong
participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) in accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485) under which employer
and employees are each required to make regular mandatory
contributions calculated at 5% of the employee’s relevant income
(“Mandatory Contributions”) to the MPF Scheme, subject to the
minimum and maximum relevant income levels as prescribed by
law. Employees may also make voluntary contributions additional to
the Mandatory Contributions.

Any Mandatory Contributions paid for and in respect of an
employee are fully and immediately vested in the employee once
paid to the trustee of the MPF Scheme and any investment return
derived from the investment of the Mandatory Contributions is
also fully and immediately vested in the employee. The employees
are entitled to 100% of the accrued benefits derived from the
employer’s Mandatory Contributions upon retirement at the age of
65 years old, death or total incapacity, subject to other applicable
provisions of law.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the PRC,
the Group is required to contribute to certain retirement benefit
schemes in favour of the employees in the PRC an amount equal
to approximately 7% to 20% of their respective yearly wages. The
local municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those workers of the Group.

There is no arrangement where contributions may be forfeited under
the defined contribution schemes of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is interested in any business, apart from the
Group's business, which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly with the Group’s business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Directors confirm that the Company has
maintained at all times the sufficient public float as required under
the Listing Rules during the year.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who has remained as the Company’s auditor for each of the preceding
three years and will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

This Report of the Directors shall comprise all such cross-references
herein contained to other parts of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

Xu Wensheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 March 2024
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board
in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company,
transparency and accountability of all operations and that its
business is conducted in accordance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

The Company also recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Group’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate
governance practices appropriate to the Group’s needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set
out in Appendix CT1 to the Listing Rules.

In formulating and implementing its corporate governance practices
and standards, the Company has applied the Principles and
complied with all applicable Code Provisions for the year ended 31
December 2023.

The Board periodically reviews and monitors the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance or compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and employees’ compliance
manual to ensure that the Group’s operations are conducted in
accordance with the standards of the CG Code and applicable
disclosure requirements. Directors and senior management are
provided with appropriate ongoing training, continuing professional
development for regular updates of the legal and regulatory
requirements relevant to their duties.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted a written code regulating Directors’ and
senior management’s securities transactions, on terms no less
exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code.

Specific enquiry had been made to all Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
and the Group’s code regarding securities transactions by Directors
throughout the year and up to the date of this annual report.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board, which assumes responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All Directors make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves power for decisions concerning all major
matters which include, inter alia, the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgeting, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those
which may involve conflict of interests of Director(s) or substantial
shareholder(s), appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to Board
papers and relevant information, as well as the advice and services
of the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.

To assist the Directors in performing their duties, each Director may
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
to assist in the performance of directors duties at the Company’s
expense, upon making a timely request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. Clear directions
as to the senior management’s powers, the scope of delegations
and relevant arrangements are periodically reviewed to ensure
they remain appropriate to the Company’s needs. Reporting to
and obtaining prior approval of the Board are necessary before
the senior management enters into any material transactions and
assuming significant commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities.

Composition
The Board have a balance of skills and experience appropriate to
the requirements of the business of the Company.

The Board currently comprises 8 members, consisting of 5 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
balanced composition of executive and independent non-executive
members upholds the effective exercise of independent judgement.
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The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Xu Wensheng (Chairman)

Kui Man Chun (Chief Executive Officer)

Li Wenjin

Xu Changjun

Hui Lok Yan (Appointed on 14 March 2024)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Tam Chun Fai

Leung Wai Man, Roger

Li Heguo

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time and an updated list of all directors
identifying their role and function is maintained on the Company’s
and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

The biographical information of the Directors and their relationship
among the members of the Board, if any, are provided in the section
titled “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent procedures for
the appointment and succession planning of Directors.

All Directors are appointed for specific tenures subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and subject to re-election
at annual general meeting and the key terms and conditions are set
out in formal letters of appointment.

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company. Subject to retirement and re-election in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and the Listing Rules, the
service contracts shall not exceed 3 years and may otherwise be
terminated in accordance with the terms of the respective service
contracts.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has been
appointed for a fixed contract term of one year, subject to renewal
on a yearly basis and re-election in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws and the CG code and may otherwise be terminated in
accordance with the terms of the respective service agreement.
Further appointment of any Independent Non-Executive Director
having served for more than 9 years should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders.
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Training for Directors

Newly appointed Directors receive induction on the occasion of
his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has an appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under applicable laws, rules
and regulations, and the Group’s governance and internal control
policies. The Company also arranges and funds suitable training,
placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties
of a listed company director.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company has arranged and funded in-house trainings for the
Directors in the form of seminar and provision of training materials.
A summary of training received by the Directors during the
reporting period according to the records provided by the Directors
is as follows:

Name of Directors EEHA
Executive Directors: BiTESR .
Xu Wensheng (E3 s

Kui Man Chun EEE

Li Wenjin FXE

Xu Changjun mEE

Hui Lok Yan (Appointed on 14 March 2024) FeER (K2

Independent Non-Executive Directors: BIFRTES:
Tam Chun Fai BIRIE
Leung Wai Man, Roger ZRR
Li Heguo ZFHE

During the year, each of the joint company secretaries attended
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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CULTURE AND VALUES

A healthy corporate culture across the Group is integral to attain its
vision and strategy. It is the Board’s role to foster a corporate culture
with the following core principles and to ensure that the Company’s
vision, values and business strategies are aligned to it.

O]

(i)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Integrity and code of conduct

The Group strives to maintain high standards of business
ethics and corporate governance across all our activities
and operations. The Directors, management and staff are all
required to act lawfully, ethically and responsibly, and the
required standards and norms are explicitly set out in the
training materials for all new staff and embedded in various
policies such as the Group’s employee handbook (including
therein the Group’s code of conduct), anti-corruption policy
and whistleblowing policy. Trainings are conducted from time
to time to reinforce the required standards in respect of ethics
and integrity.

Commitment

The Group believes that the culture of commitment to
workforce development, workplace safety and health,
diversity, and sustainability is one which cultivates sense of
commitment among members of the Group and their emotional
engagement with the Group’s mission. This sets the tone for
a strong, productive workforce that attracts, develops, and
retains the best talent and produces the highest quality work
for the Group. Moreover, the Company’s strategy in business
development and management are to achieve long-term, steady
and sustainable growth, while giving due considerations of the
environment, social and governance aspects.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and achieving sustainable and development for the
Group. It also sets out the Board’s commitment to gender diversity
and other diversity aspects, with the ultimate goal of achieving
gender parity on the Board.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy and reviewed
on an annual basis (“Board Diversity Policy”), under which the
Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors in the Board members’ selection process,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board members’ appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

In March 2024, one female Director was appointed to join the
Board and the Board will take opportunities to increase the
proportion of female senior management over time as and when
suitable candidates are identified.

In respect of the Group’s workforce, the male to female ratio
(including senior management) as at 31 December 2023 was
approximately 63%:37%. The Board considers that the gender
diversity in workforce is currently achieved. With the objective
of further optimising the gender diversity in mind, the Group
will continue to take gender diversity into account in its ongoing
recruitment process, in particular when recruiting staff at mid
to senior level so that we will have a pipeline of female senior
management and potential successors to the Board in due time to
ensure gender diversity of the Board and the workforce.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Four regular Board meetings were held during the year for, among
others, reviewing and approving the financial and operating
performance and respectively the final results for the year ended
31 December 2022, results for the three months ended 31 March
2023, interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2023
and results for the nine months ended 30 September 2023, and
considering and approving the overall strategies and policies of the
Company.
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The attendance of individual Directors at the four regular quarterly
Board meetings (not including other ad hoc meetings of the Board
held from time to time and any other meeting(s) of members of
the Board in compliance with the CG Code), committee meetings
and general meeting of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2023 is set out below:

EREENBE_Z_=F+_A=+—HLFE
HEAATORERFTEEFTE T2 (FEEAMT
REBETZAEREFETRMRBEEEARTRIZ
ERHEMEZERNEGH ZETERMREAE
ZECEREIILT

Audit Nomination

Committee Committee

Meoat

Attendance/Number of meetings*

Name of Directors R4 g3
Xu Wensheng wxE N/A
RER

Kui Man Chun RBE N/A

TEA
Li Wenjin X8 N/A
TEA
Xu Changjun HEE N/A
TEA

Tam Chun Fai FEiRE 212

Leung Wai Man, Roger RER 22

Li Heguo FiE 22

Note:

* Meetings may be attended in person or by electronic means including
telephone or video conferencing as allowed under the Company’s Bye-
laws.

* Ms. Hui Lok Yan, the Group Financial Officer, Joint Company Secretary

and a member of Risk Management Committee of the Company attended
all meetings of the Risk Management Committee during the year ended
31 December 2023. Ms. Hui was appointed as an Executive Director on
14 March 2024.
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Board meeting schedules and agendas are made available to the
Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days in advance, and agendas together with accompanying
board papers are disseminated to the Directors within reasonable
time before meetings. Reasonable notice is, as permitted by the
Company’s Bye-laws under relevant circumstances or otherwise
agreed, given for other Board and committee meetings.

The Company Secretary, as delegated by the Chairman, has been
responsible for preparing the agenda of board meetings, taking
into account any matters the Directors may propose to include,
ensuring that all Directors are given opportunity to include matters
in the agenda and approving the agenda. In order to enable the
Directors to make informed decision, agenda and accompanying
board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors
appraised of the latest developments and/or financial position of the
Company. The Board and the individual Directors also have separate
and independent access to the senior management to make further
enquires or when they require further information in addition to
those volunteered by the senior management.

The Company Secretary and senior management attend all regular
Board meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on, among others, business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for preparing and keeping the
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. The minutes
records sufficient details of matters considered, decisions reached,
concerns raised and any, dissenting views expressed. Draft and final
versions of minutes are circulated to the Directors for comment and
record within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors” inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves conflicting interests of a substantial shareholder or
Director are dealt with at a duly convened physical Board meeting,
at which Independent Non-Executive Directors having no material
interest in the transaction should be present. Any Directors or any
of their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) having
material interests in the transactions shall abstain from voting and
not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving such
transactions.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and responsibilities of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer are clearly defined. The clear division of management of the
Board and day-to-day management of business ensures a balanced
power and authority such that no concentration of power shall vest
in any one individual.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice and established corporate
governance procedures. With the support of the Company Secretary
and the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for
ensuring that the Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information, which must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable
and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings, and
that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner.

The Chairman also encourages the Directors to fully and actively
participate in the Board’s affairs, taking the lead to act in the best
interests of the Company. The Chairman also promotes a culture
to facilitate effective contributions and encourage the Directors
to express dissenting views and concerns and allow sufficient
discussion of issues before decisions are made.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and
operations and is also responsible for developing strategic plans and
formulating the organisational structure, monitoring control systems
and internal control procedures and processes for the Board's
approval.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent Non-Executive Directors possess a wide range
of business and financial expertise, experiences and, through
participation in board meetings, offer independent judgment on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standard of conducts. Through taking the lead
where potential conflicts on interests arise, serving on the Board
committees, examining the Company’s performance in achieving
corporate goals and objectives and monitoring performance
reporting, the Independent Non-Executive Directors have become
an integral part of the healthy growth of the Company.

During the year, the Independent Non-Executive Directors attended
the annual general meeting of the Company held during his tenure,
details of which are set out in page 91 and 92, enabling them to
develop a balanced understanding of the views of the Shareholders.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of Rule
3.10(1), Rule 3.10(2) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board and
with at least one Independent Non-Executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Confirmation of independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors a written annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company considers all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent in accordance with the guidelines for
assessing independence set out thereunder.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 4 committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of affairs.
All Board committees are established with defined written terms
of reference, setting out its authority and duties, and requiring the
Board committees to report back to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations (unless otherwise restricted by legal or regulatory
requirements). To provide transparency, the terms of reference of the
Board committees are available on the Company’s and the Stock
Exchange’s websites and hard copies of which are available to
Shareholders upon request.

All Board committees, save as the Risk Management Committee,
consist of a majority of Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Chairman and members of each Board committee as at the date of
this annual report are set out below:

Audit Committee

Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)*
Leung Wai Man, Roger*

Li Heguo*

Nomination Committee

Leung Wai Man, Roger (Chairman)*
Tam Chun Fai*

Li Wenjin®

Remuneration Committee
Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)*
Leung Wai Man, Roger*

Li Wenjin®

Risk Management Committee
Xu Changjun (Chairman)*
Xu Wensheng”
Li Wenjin®
Hui Lok Yan®
(Appointed as an Executive Director on 14 March 2024)

*  Independent Non-Executive Director

“ Executive Director
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The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties and, upon reasonable and timely request,
are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-Executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise). None of the members of
the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the followings:

(@) to review the financial statements, reports, accounting policies
and practices and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the company’s staff, compliance officers, qualified
accountant or external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b) to review the Company’s relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work they performed, their fees and terms
of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor;

(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, audit process, the Group’s financial
control, internal control system, risk management system and
associated procedures; and

(d) to cooperate with Risk Management Committee to ensure Risk
Management Committee has adequate resources and access to
information necessary to fulfil their duties and responsibilities
with respect to risk assessment and risk management.

Corporate Governance Report

RS IR HS

EXE LS gRRHARERBTRERINEER
FhT aEBEAMFERMRBUEEESR  EAH

/NS

BREEY

EREZEER-LBUFNTEFAR ETEE
—LARCEBEXERN G THEMMBEEEX
Mz BYFNTER - BEREZEGLEMETIF

TRBREINESZBEDZRIEBA

BRZES I BRERRENT

B

BERMHBRE RS FABERER LR
REFER EBARFEL -AREE-AE
EE S IMNER BN 2 EAERHFE
wE|E;

DEINEZHENFTETT TIF - BRARIERIRR
BN RABEERF W BT BRI KRS
ERZEMAESFIREER

BRNABDHUBREGE  BLEF SEEY
FIEh MERE SR B R BIESIE AR
FRERDREBNE ; &

HERERZEEE5F RREAKREERZES
ERRRERMVEER  UBETARRART
HEEREEZBEREE

BFEH (E) BRAR “EC=FFR

97



98

Corporate Governance Report
PR
BN

The written terms of reference describing the authority and duties of
the Audit Committee was prepared and adopted with reference to
the CG Code, “Principles of Auditor Independence and the Role of
Corporate Governance in Monitoring an Auditor’s Independence”
issued by the Technical Committee of the International Organization
of Securities Commissions and “A Guide for The Formation of An
Audit Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2023 to review the half-yearly and annual
financial results and reports, financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems,
effectiveness of internal audit function of the Group during 2023,
the auditor’s independence and objectivity. During the year, the
Audit Committee met with the Company’s auditor twice and
approved their remuneration and terms of engagement. The
Audit Committee has further recommended the re-appointment
of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor and the
Board confirms that it has taken no different view from the Audit
Committee in relation to its recommendations.

As at the end of 2023 and the date of this annual report, there are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2023 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee, as provided
under the terms of reference adopted in compliance with the
requirements under the CG Code, include reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors and assessment of the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals,
business requirements of the Group and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. External recruitment agency may also
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when
necessary.

The Nomination Committee has also adopted a nomination policy
(the “Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and
procedure of nominating, appointing and re-appointing a Director.
The selection criteria used in assessing the suitability of a candidate
include, inter alia, academic background and professional
qualifications, relevant industry experience, character and integrity
and whether he can contribute to the diversity of the Board as
detailed in the Board Diversity Policy, which is regularly reviewed
by the Nomination Committee with a view to achieve a diversified
spectrum of Directors to facilitate a balanced development of the
Company. The procedure of appointing and re-appointing a Director
is based on objective criteria and summarised as follows:—

1. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may nominate
or invite a candidate for appointment as a Director for
consideration;

2. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall evaluate the
personal profile of each of the candidates based on the criteria
as set out under the above section;

3. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of each candidate and make
recommendation for the Board’s consideration and approval;
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4. (for candidate whom may be nominated as an Independent
Non-Executive Director) the Board should assess the
candidate’s independence under the relevant Code Provisions
and the Listing Rules;

5. (for a candidate whom may be elected as an Independent Non-
Executive Director at a general meeting) the Board should
consider the factors set out in the applicable Code Provision(s);

6. (in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors) the
Board shall review the candidate’s overall contribution and
performance, including attendance of committees, board and
general meetings, and level of participation and performance
on the Board, and make recommendations to the Board for
consideration and to the Shareholders for re-election at general
meetings; and

7. the Board will convene a meeting for discussion of
appointment or re-appointment of the candidate as a Director.

Mr. Li Wenijin, being an Executive Director, Mr. Tam Chun Fai and
Mr. Leung Wai Man Roger both being, Independent Non-Executive
Directors, shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting in accordance with Bye-law 87(1). Being
eligible, they will offer themselves for re-election in accordance
with Bye-law 87(2).

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2), Ms. Hui Lok Yan, who was
appointed as an Executive Director by the Board on 14 March
2024 as an addition to the Board, will hold office until and will
be proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on 22 May 2024 (or any adjournment thereof).

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year
to, amongst others, (i) review the structure, size, diversity and
composition of the Board; (ii) assess the independence of
the Independent Non-Executive Directors; (iii) consider the
appointment of new Director and her re-election; (iv) consider
the re-appointment of the retiring Directors; and (v) review the
Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy.

The requisite information of the Directors standing for re-election
are contained in the Company’s circular to the Shareholders for the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives and duties of the Remuneration Committee
are set out in its terms of reference adopted in compliance with
the requirements under the CG Code, which include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management, including but not limited to benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments and other related matters. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing formal
and transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his
associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration, whose
remuneration will be determined with reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company, market practice and conditions
as well as the Group’s goals and objectives.

The Human Resources Department is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration. The Remuneration Committee shall consider
and consult the Chairman and/or the Board about these
recommendations. The Remuneration Committee held one
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2023 to review and
recommend to the Board the remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior management, to establish a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy, to review the
operation and maintenance of the share schemes of the Group and
to assess performance of the Executive Directors and approve the
terms of their respective service contracts.

The remuneration, including employee incentive programmes of
subsidiaries, payable to the senior management (as identified in the
last annual report of the Company) by band for the year ended 31
December 2023 is set out below:

Remuneration band AR B
HK$1,000,001
HK$2,000,001
HK$3,000,001
HK$4,000,001

— HK$2,000,000
~ HK$3,000,000
— HK$4,000,000
~ HK$5,000,000

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 8 and note 40
to the consolidated financial statements.

1,000,001 7T 2E2,000,00078 7T
2,000,001 7T 23,000,00078 7T
3,000,001 75 % 4,000,000 7T
4,000,001 775 25,000,000 75
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Risk Management Committee
Main duties of the Risk Management Committee include the
followings:

(@) to review the Group's risk management and internal control
systems (including financial, operational and compliance
controls), internal audit function, Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, to ensure that effective and adequate risk
management and internal control systems are established and
maintained and that sufficient resources are in place for the
Group's internal audit function;

(b) to consider the effectiveness of the Group’s decision making
processes in crisis and emergency situations and to maintain
the Group’s risk management standards; and

(c) on an annual basis report to the Board on the effectiveness
of the risk management systems and internal control systems
(including financial, operational and compliance controls) for
the Group and Environmental, Social and Governance Report
and adequacy of resources of its internal audit functions.

The Risk Managements Committee held two meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2023 to review and assess the
effectiveness of the Group’s the risk management, internal control
system and internal audit function during the year and considered
them effective and adequate.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties of the Company, including (i) to develop and review the
Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance; (ii) to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management; (iii)
to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employee and Directors and their compliance
of the same and (v) to review the Group’s compliance with the CG
Code and relevant disclosure obligations.

During the year, the Board, at the four regular Board meetings,
performed the corporate governance duties and reported no issues
which may had or might have significant impact on the Company.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board and the Directors

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and complying with other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 108 to 115.

Senior Management

The senior management provides the Board with sufficient
explanation and necessary information enabling the Board to make
an informed assessment of financial and other information put
before the Board for approval.

Monthly updates are also provided by the senior management
to all members of the Board to enable proper discharge of duties
by the Board as a whole or each member individually by giving
them balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospectus in sufficient details.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has developed the Group’s internal control, risk
assessment and management systems and acknowledges its
overall responsibility for reviewing and maintaining an adequate
and effective risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders
and the assets of the Group. It evaluates the effectiveness of the
systems at least annually to ensure the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions and is kept apprised of significant risks that may impact
the performance of the Group.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage and mitigate risks, rather than eliminate
risks, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. We have adopted a bottom-up
approach for identification, assessment and mitigation of risks at all
business unit levels and across functional areas.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems include the establishment of a risk register to keep
track of and record identified risks, the assessment and evaluation
of risks, the development and continuous updating of responsive
procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control procedures
to ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is adopted by the Company
for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that affect the
achievements of its objectives. A risk matrix is adopted to determine
risk rating (L = low risk, M = medium risk, H = high risk) after
evaluation of the risk by likelihood of occurrence and the impact of
the risk event. The risk ratings determine the level of managements’
attention and risk treatment effort required.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks

During the process of risk assessment, each risk owner of
departments and major subsidiaries is required to capture and
identify the key inherent risks that affect the achievement of its
objectives. Each inherent risk is evaluated according to the risk
matrix. After taking into consideration the risk response, such as
control measures in place to mitigate the risk, the residual risk of
each inherent risk is evaluated again. The risk register with the risk
responses and residual risks is reported to the Risk Management
Committee. The Risk Management Committee evaluates the
effectiveness of the systems and reports to the Board. The highest
category of residual risks is subject to the Board’s oversight.
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Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The Internal Control Department of the Company (the “Internal
Control Department”) has performed an ongoing review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems throughout the year (during which an external independent
consulting firm was engaged to offer assistance) covering the
Group’s material controls in financial, operational and compliance
aspects agreed and approved by the Risk Management Committee
and in compliance with the requirements under Code Provision
D.2.

The Internal Control Department reported the review results to
the Risk Management Committee and the Risk Management
Committee was satisfied that there had been no major deficiency
noted in the areas of the Group’s risk management and internal
controls systems, following the implementation of recommendations
against the internal control defects revealed. The Audit Committee
cooperates with the Risk Management Committee to ensure the Risk
Management Committee has access to information necessary to
fulfil their duties and responsibilities with respect to risk assessment
and risk management. Accordingly, the Audit Committee and the
Board considered the risk management and internal control systems
effective and had been implemented with adequate resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of
accounting, internal audit, financial reporting functions, as well as
those relating to ESG performance and reporting during the year.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Board adopts a policy for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The policy stipulates the obligations of
the Group, in respect of the restriction on disseminating non-
public information, handling of rumours, unintentional selective
disclosure, exemption and wavier to the disclosure of inside
information, and also compliance and reporting procedures.
Senior management must take all reasonable measures to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent any breach of disclosure
requirement from time to time. Employees are required to promptly
bring any possible leakage or divulgence of inside information
to the attention of the Chief Financial Officer, or his delegates,
who will notify the Board timely and accordingly for taking the
appropriate action promptly. The policy is subject to the regular
review of the Board. In case of material violation, the Board, or its
designated appropriate personnel, will decide the course of actions
for rectifying the problem and avoiding recurrence.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company
in respect of audit and non-audit services, such as tax consulting
service, for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to
approximately HK$3,880,000 and HK$3,583,000 respectively.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

(a) Procedures for requisitioning a special general meeting
Shareholder(s) holding, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition for a special general meeting, not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
to vote at general meetings of the Company may, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary(ies) signed
and deposited in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws
and the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, require the Directors
to call a special general meeting for the transaction of business
specified in the requisition.

(b) Procedures for putting forward proposals at general

meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 Shareholders
may, at their expense, provide a written request to the
attention of the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited
in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 to put
forward proposals at general meeting.

(c) Communication with Shareholders and investors

General Meetings

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum
of communication between Shareholders and the Board.
The Company held one general meeting during the year.
Notice of the general meeting was sent in accordance with
the requirements under the Listing Rules, the Company’s
Bye-laws and other applicable laws. At the general meeting,
Directors were made available to answer questions, adequate
measures were taken to provide effective communication
with Shareholders, separate issues were proposed as separate
resolutions for the Shareholders’ approval, measures were in
place to familiarise Shareholders with the detailed procedures
for voting by poll and give them sufficient chances to raise
questions. The Company’s external auditor also attended the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 19 May 2023
to answer any questions about the conduct of audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies applied and their independence.
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Other Communications
Shareholders may also contact the Company Secretary to direct
their written enquires to the Board.

The Company also maintains a website at www.hisun.com.hk
to provide Shareholders and the public with updates on the
Company’s business developments and operations, financial
information and other news.

The Company is committed to enhancing communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains an open dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.
The Company'’s shareholders communication policy outlines,
among other things, the procedures and steps taken at general
meetings, the handling of enquiries received and the various
channels of communication and engagement in place.

The Board regularly reviews the shareholders communication
policy (which has been made available at the Company’s
website), to ensure that Shareholders and potential investors
at large are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company,
including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
to enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner, and to allow their active engagement with the
Company.

Based on the review undertaken, the Board considers that
the shareholders communication policy has been properly
implemented and effective during the year.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

By a special resolution passed at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 19 May 2023, the Company adopted the
amended and restated Bye-laws to, among other things, bring the
Bye-laws to conform to the core shareholder protection standards
set out in Appendix Al of the Listing Rules and align the Bye-
laws with the applicable laws of Bermuda and the Listing Rules.
For details, please refer to the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 12 April 2023 and 18 April 2023 respectively.
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To the Shareholders of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Hi Sun Technology (China)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 116 to 271, comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2023;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment
of loan receivables.
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Key Audit Matter
MEEER
Impairment of loan receivables

PR ERURE

Refer to Note 3.1(b)(ii) (financial risk factors), Note 4(a)
(critical accounting estimates and judgements) and Note 19
(loan receivables) to the consolidated financial statements.
BE2REE M BIRRMEES.1b)Gi) GIERARER) kst
4(a) (BB E st s R I RMIzE19 EINERD ©

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s gross loan
receivables amounted to HK$1,682,461,000 and
a provision for impairment of loan receivables of
HK$145,827,000 was recognised in the Group’s
consolidated balance sheet. The impairment losses on loan
receivables in the Group’s consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to
HK$54,699,000.

RIZZ=F+"A=+—H> SEENBRKRERE
B8731,682,461,00087T 1 BEEEGEEERRRRE
SRR ERURE R H#145,827,0008c 1t BEH
BE_Z_=—F+_A=+—HLEENGEHR=mESD
FIFEW SRS B R E RS 8 #354,699,000/8 7T ©

The provision for impairment of loan receivables represents
the management’s best estimates at the balance sheet
date of expected credit losses under Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 9: Financial Instruments.
BURERRERFERREEBRBEEMBREEAE
O EMIT R AR EANBEREEBERFHNRER
&to
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HMINEANARERRESER

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on provision for impairment of loan receivables
included:

R EREEETERRERRERB B EFEE

—  Understood, evaluated and validated the key control

procedures over management’s estimation of expected
credit losses allowance and periodic review on
overdue receivables and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors in association with estimation of expected
credit losses;

— T THERBREEEREGTRREERERHNERS
BEEIEVCRIENRARIEHREF > WHEE BEEHRY
THEEREENHETEHRES BB SHERNEME S &k
HEFRKETHEEATERRMNE S B ;

— for the historical information, discussed with
management to understand the management’s
identification of significant increase in credit risk,
defaults and credit-impaired loans, corroborated
management’s explanation with supporting evidence;

— HRELER HEEESHL TREEEHEERR
BONMEERESRESIEIER > U EBE kS
BIEfERIRERE
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Key Audit Matter
FAfEEtH1E
Impairment of loan receivables (Continued)

PRI ETRE (8)

Management assesses whether the credit risk of loan
receivables have increased significantly since their initial
recognition, and applies a three-stage impairment model
to calculate their expected credit losses. The measurement
models of expected credit losses involves significant
management judgments and assumptions, primarily
including the following:
EEEMLERERZ EERR BT ERERT AR
B WA =RAERESBEEAREERE B
EEBRFEREMIANEREEBHBNRREE
BETHEIE !

—  Selection of appropriate model and determination
of relevant key measurement parameters, including
probability of default, loss given default and exposure
at default;

— EERENSELRE THRTEHMNOFRSE aF
BOME  BEOBRRARNENRRAE ;

—  Criteria for determining whether or not there was a
significant increase in credit risk or a default; and
— EERBRRERERMIENNFIEIRE &

—  Economic indicator for forward-looking measurement,
and the application of economic scenarios and
weightings

— BARAEMFAENEEER CEBRAEBERN
A

We focus on this area due to the magnitude of the loan
receivables and the significant estimates and judgement
involved in determining the expected credit losses
allowance on the loan receivables.

BRI EEN BN ERNERHEE U REE
TERWERTAEERERRBEER S REXGETHH
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HANBEAMARERABRES SRR

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on provision for impairment losses of loan
receivables included: (Continued)
HAYEREERFLENERAEBRER B2
FHE: (@

- for forward-looking measurement, assessed the
reasonableness of economic indicator selection,
economic scenarios and weightings application,
assessed the reasonableness of the estimation by
comparing with industry data; and

— HREIEMSE HEFMERSERER EEBR
PR ARENGEN  BBTEEURLLBEHEES
NEEM ; &

— agreed major data inputs used in the expected credit
losses models on sample basis to the Group’s record.

— RmMEEENRHCEEEEREMERANIEHE
8 BEEERETHR

Based on the above, we found that the estimates and
judgement made by management in respect of the
expected credit losses allowance and the collectability
of the loan receivables were supportable by the available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B N7 A SR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

R EHR A MBHRREENEE

&)

. HEEEARA R BN B R g
SRR B AT

s HEFERAFEBLCETHERNBEMFLRE
i o IRIBPTEEIESHRE  ERDFEHASE
EHHBERAMNERTEENS  HMmA e 8
N EEENRBRCEENEEERERE W
REFRDTFEEATRENR  AIELEEZ
MR SR EAE IRGE M BREDTH
AR E - (REARMNRETE  AIRMEEE
HEMNER - RMNEHREENZBEIRS
B LEPREVISBYZE 1B < A » RIRFBIEHIE R
FIREER EEETEREKE-

o MERAMBREMNEBRIIRASN EBENAN
B BERE URGEUBREREEPERM
B ZMER

o W BEEERERIEFIHNMBERER

TR BENEERE  UERRSMHRERE

ER-RMEEEEBESHNAD BEEMHN
T-RABEAERRAERIEE-

HMEEZEZEGEE EHPEE s 8NEtEE
R ZHE BB AL QRAFESSTHEG
P BB IR E R B R TR ©



AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Hin Gay, Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19 March 2024

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Income Statement

ar e Bk

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE

=gt A=t RLEE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiLEE

2023 2022
—g°= -tk 5
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
g FHET FHT
Continuing operations FHRIRE R
Revenue A 5,6 2,709,164 3,432,728
Cost of sales 5 & B 7 (1,716,987) (2,149,146)
Gross profit EH 992,177 1,283,582
Other income HAA 5 116,918 109,166
Other losses, net HMEsi8 358 5 (22,432) (12,054)
Selling expenses HERX 7 (134,484) (154,260)
Administrative expenses THER 7 (821,129) (744,275)
Credit impairment loss EERERE 7 (56,505) (104,098)
Operating profit REEA 74,545 378,061
Share of results of associated companies FEALEHE N B S 21 402,949 398,533
Gain/(loss) on deemed acquisition and R RS —R
dilution of interest of an associated A YNSIE: fed 6y
company (E518) 21 1,973 (1,077)
Gains on disposals of subsidiaries HERNBAR Z G 35 3,277 2,604
Finance costs R E A 9 (3,757) (59,862)
Profit before income tax PRERTS TR AT &R 478,987 718,259
Income tax credit/(expense) Frigiikee,” (Bs2) 10 35,387 (113,222)
Profit from continuing operations FHERE R 514,374 605,037
Profit from discontinued operation BARIEREEFER 35 - 509,577
Profit for the year FERHEF 514,374 1,114,614
Profit attributable to: FE(GEF :
— Owners of the Company e NCIE 2PN 463,432 939,416
— Non-controlling interests —JEIERE R 50,942 175,198
514,374 1,114,614
The notes on pages 125 to 271 are an integral part of these H125F271BZWEEHZE LM BRFR 2 H AL

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement

ko B %

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HE_Z_=F+_"_A=+—HI-FE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=1+—HLEE

2023 2022
—EBT=fF —E°C
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
k3 FHET FHT
Profit from continuing operations FEALIFERE EF A -
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company —RRBEB A 463,432 466,676
— Non-controlling interests —JEIERS R 50,942 138,361
514,374 605,037
Profit from discontinued operation FE(E B AR LSRR -
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company - YNCIEZ 2PN = 472,740
— Non-controlling interests —JFIER T - 36,837
- 509,577
HKS$ per HKS$ per
share share
sRAET skET
Earnings per share for profit from NI E: 2= N30
continuing operations attributable to REKEER RN Z
the owners of the Company: sREM
Basic =¥N 12 0.169 0.169
Diluted 3 12 0.133 0.142
Earnings per share for profit attributable to ZxA TG AFELREFIZ
the owners of the Company: sREA
Basic =%N 12 0.169 0.340
Diluted #a 12 0.133 0.313

The notes on pages 125 to 271 are an integral part of these H125F271BZWEHZELREMBRFR 2 HAEL

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

ko e i R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &ZEZ

—=Et+-P=t—RALEE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2023 2022
2= itk 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Profit for the year FERiEF 514,374 1,114,614
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of tax ~ HfthZ M (E518) U=
(NpRR1E)
Items that may be subsequently reclassified HEo[fEEN 7T Em >
to profit or loss EHE
Exchange differences on translation of foreign MEBINIBRABIELZ
subsidiaries ERER (89,383) (256,950)
Exchange differences in relation to discontinued E%@JL“(ﬁ% SELZ
operation WAERR = (17,581)
Share of other comprehensive loss of BIEHERT 2
associated companies Hith>HEEE (49,913) (144,958)
Release of reserve upon dilution of interest e MRS SRR
in an associated company e 2 (2,981) 563
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified ~— BEET & E#H DIEEE7m
to profit or loss HH
Change in value of a financial asset at fair value ~ ZAFEFFAEMEE KGR Z
through other comprehensive income THEEEESE (152,846) (476,843)
Share of other comprehensive loss of EE—EME AR 2 HMEE
an associated company E518 - (815)
Total comprehensive income for the year, FA2ENELAE (NRRIE)
net of tax 219,251 218,030
Total comprehensive income for the year EitEREEELEEE :
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company — KR EEBA 185,186 120,085
— Non-controlling interests —JFERED 34,065 97,945
219,251 218,030
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year AT R ABEEANZE
attributable to the owners of the Company: Wz (B518) EEERA -
— Continuing operations —FEREER 185,186 (342,406)
— Discontinued operation — RIS TS = 462,491
185,186 120,085
The notes on pages 125 to 271 are an integral part of these H125F271BZWEHZELRE W HRFR 2 H AL

consolidated financial statements.
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o

ANNUAL REPORT 2023



As at 31 December 2023

Consolidated Balance Sheet

n‘T IZI

A— = —

A AR

CE-=H—H=1—A

As at 31 December

w+ZA=+—H
2023 2022
—E=F BT F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FHET FHET
Assets BE
Non-current assets JERENE E
Investment properties BEYE 13 511 684
Property, plant and equipment W~ BB Fe 52 1 14 77,660 146,796
Right-of-use assets ERESE 15 69,560 55,690
Intangible assets ‘mEEE 16 2,834 25,737
Investments in associated companies REERB 2 ®/E 21 3,606,250 3,399,895
Financial asset at fair value through BATEFFAEHMEER
other comprehensive income Wz EREE 17 - 152,868
Financial assets at fair value through BATESABEmZ
profit or loss TMEE 18 82,321 93,077
Other financial assets at amortised cost RN A FT 2 2 Hih
THBE 24 2,070 4,064
Total non-current assets RS EELE 3,841,206 3,878,811
Current assets RENE E
Inventories =75 22 19,474 18,732
Other current assets HRs&EE 25 27,245 49,551
Other financial assets at amortised cost FREE AN FT 2 2 Hih
THEE 24 170,845 69,648
Amount due from an associated company ~ FEUR — Bt E A B RIE 38 5,000 5,306
Loan receivables EWRER 19 1,536,634 2,647,625
Trade and bills receivables FEW AR R R FE W ZE 4 23 177,055 170,316
Financial assets at fair value through BATESABmZ
profit or loss TRBEE 18 226,885 980
Current income tax recoverable AU B BN ERF 1SR 3,040 10,431
Short-term bank deposits FEHRIRITER 26 = 1,468
Restricted bank balances ZIRHIIRITAS bR 26 3,542,318 1,064,937
Cash and cash equivalents REKRIREEEY 26 3,482,016 3,537,506
Total current assets REMEESE 9,190,512 7,576,500
Total assets BEEME 13,031,718 11,455,311
Equity R
Capital and reserves attributable to owners AT HHE AFELE XK
of the Company f#fE
Share capital (& 27 6,942 6,942
Reserves #fE 28 7,183,993 6,611,653
7,190,935 6,618,595
Non-controlling interests IR T 587,083 935,687
Total equity R AEER 7,778,018 7,554,282
The notes on pages 125 to 271 are an integral part of these H125F271BZWEHZELREMBHRFR 2 HPAEL
consolidated financial statements. gme
B (hE) BRAR —z==x58 (119
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

g A faR

n‘T III
As at 31 December 2023 HRZZE-=F+"F=+—H
As at 31 December
®+ZB=+—H
2023 2022
—ET= BT TF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
b FAT TFAT
Liabilities aE
Non-current liabilities JEREIERE
Lease liabilities HEaR 15 21,545 11,958
Deferred income tax liabilities FIEPRSIR AR 32 17 2,438
Total non-current liabilities JEFRS B ELEEE 21,562 14,396
Current liabilities it I B=RE
Trade payables FEATERR 29 596,415 642,446
Payables for payment and digital services 24 KRB F LR
business e X NE ] 29 3,591,920 965,787
Other payables and accruals H AP (T RIA R FE St RIE 29 932,745 967,734
Amounts due to associated companies FE(T B = A T3R8 38 4,295 4,421
Current income tax liabilities BPRAFREMERE 42,136 110,499
Bank borrowings RITHEM 31 42,688 55,748
Asset-backed securities BESRFBES 30 - 265,058
Written put option liabilities BRI EE 33 - 857,069
Lease liabilities HEAaR 15 21,939 17,871
Total current liabilities B BEEEE 5,232,138 3,886,633
Total liabilities =REEE 5,253,700 3,901,029
Total equity and liabilities EmkaBesE 13,031,718 11,455,311

The financial statements on pages 116 to 271 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 19 March 2024 and were signed on its

behalf.

XU WENSHENG
wXE

Director

EF

The notes on pages 125 to 271 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HE_Z_=F+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

LYNGIE PN
Non-
Share Share Treasury ~ Contributed Other Exchange Retained  controlling
capital premium shares surplus reserves reserve earnings interests Total

ke RGEE EERG  REEE  HftEE  SERE  REEN  FEkER L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn T#n T#n T#n TAn T#n T#n TEn TEn

Balance at 1 January 2023 RoBC=HE-R-B28B 6942 106315 (00000 168434  (676471) (86544 8173081 935,687 7,554,282
Comprehensive income 2EWE
Profit for the year FRia - - - = = s 463,432 50,942 514,374
Other comprehensive loss Hth2EEH
Exchange differences on translation of ~ AEEINIBATEEZ

foreign subsidiaries ERESE - - - - - (72,506) - (16,877) (89,383)
Share of other comprehensive loss of BUEBEASZEMEERR

associated companies - - - - - (49,913 - - (49,913)
Release of reserve upon dilution of BE-mREATEREREY

interest in an associated company g - - - - - (2,981) = S (2,981)

Change in value of a financial asset at fair  ZATFEFARMPENE 2
value through other comprehensive TREEEEEDY
income - - - - (152,846) - - - (152,846)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income 20 (518) /KL% - - S - (152,846)  (125,400) 463,432 34,065 219,251

Share of other reserves of an associated ~ E(SEHE AT 2 E il
company - - - - 73) = = S 73)

Transaction with owners at their capacity %5 ASAELIER A5 172
as owners x5

Purchase of Company's shares for the share {3 52 BT 8 (i) 22E)
award scheme (“Share Award Scheme”)  5t%1)) B AR A ERAD

(Note 27(a)) (Hrat271a)) - - (9,826) - - - - - (9,826)
Issuance of shares under Share Award RIEMRAD Rt 8121 TRD

Scheme (Note 27) (Hrz27) = = 30,000 = - - (14,962) - 15,038
Capital injection from non-controlling ~ FEERERFE

interests - - - - - - - 361 361
Deemed acquisition of shares of RERE-ANBARZRA

subsidiaries

-Vbill (Cayman) (Note 33) —Vbill (Cayman) (W5£33) - - - - 381,304 3,252 - (384,556) -

~Other - - - - - (860) 59 - 801 =
Deemed disposal of shares of RIELERB AT 2 RH

subsidiaries (Note 34) (Hft34) - = S = (1,595) 870 s 13,618 12,893
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 33) HE-BWEAR Hitss) - = 5 5 = (1,015) 5 5 (1,015)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests  BFEERERRS - - - - - - - (12,893) (12,893)

- - 20,174 - 38776 3,166 (14962 (382,669) 4485
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+-RA=+-R
28 6,942 1,063,153 (9,826) 168,434 (2,450,541) (208,778) 8,621,551 587,083 7,778,018

The notes on pages 125 to 271 are an integral part of these — F125F271 B2 Mz hZ SR M ERF 2 H A
consolidated financial statements. 7me
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
G oy 295 2

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZZ-_=F+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

KRR AL
Non-
Share Share Treasury  Contributed Other Exchange Retained  controlling
capital premium shares surplus reserves reserve eamnings interests Total

ke ROEE EERG  BEEER  AtBE  ERE  REEN SRR ast
HKS000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK§'000
TR THEL T TERL TER THERL T TERL TR

Balance at 1 January 2022 RoBCCE-B-BZER 692 1063153 S 168434 Q304019 255129 7233665 1067690 749099
Comprehensive income 2EWE
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - - 939,416 175198 1,114,614

Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hit2E (1) /hE
Exchange differences on translation of ~ AEEINIBAREEZ

foreign subsidiaries ERER - - - - - (187,029) = (69,921)  (256,950)
Exchange difference in relation to BRIELEEBELY

discontinued operation ERER - = = = = (10,249) = (7,332) (17,581)
Share of other comprehensive loss of EEHENT A2 EGE

associated companies - - - - (815) (144,958) - - (145,773)
Release of reserve upon dilution of EA-RRE AT REREL

interest in an associated company [ - - - - - 563 - - 563

Change in value of a financial asset at fair - AT (E:F ARMBENEZ
value through other comprehensive TREEEESY
income - - - - (476,843) - - - (476,843)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2F (5 /KE8E - - - - (477,658)  (341,673) 939,416 97,945 218,030

Share of other reserves of an associated ~ FE(SEHE /AT 2 E
company = i - - 185 - - . 185

Transaction with owners at their capacity BH AMHERAZHETZ
as owners x5

Purchase of Company’s shares for the share 717 5Bzt &) (TR {7128
award scheme (“Share Award Scheme”) 1)) BAKA TR

(Note 27) (Hi#27) - - (30,000) = = = = = (30,000)
Capital injection from non-controlling ~ FFERERFE

interests - - - - - - - 3,692 3,692
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 35) HERBAR (Hz35) - = = = 105,021 = = (181,917) (76,896)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests B3 =R S = = = = = - - (51,723) (51,723)
= = (30,000) S 105,206 = - (229948 (154742)

Balance at 31 December 2022 RZIEZZ&+ZA=+-H
2458 6,942 1,063,153 (30,000) 168434 (2,676,471) (86,544) 8,173,081 935,687 7,554,282

The notes on pages 125 to 271 are an integral part of these — 125F271 8B Z Mz hZEra M BRFz 2 H A
consolidated financial statements. 7me
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
SaBlEhiaf

For the year ended 31 December 2023 HEZZ_=F+_A=+—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_BA=+—HLEE
2023 2022
—T=HF =Sk S
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
MyEE FHET FHT
(Restated)
GS==pl)
Cash flows from operating activities REFTFZIRERE
Cash generated from operations KERISHRE 36(a) 1,235,548 165,411
Interest paid [SENEESS (3,757) (1,620)
Income tax paid, net B FrSiR P48 (25,949) (84,181)
Net cash generated from RETYFRIREFNR
operating activites 1,205,842 79,610
Cash flows from investing activities KREZBZRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment FEE¥)% « BB K& (32,490) (55,094)
Purchase of intangible assets BERTLEE - (8,525)
Acquisition of financial assets at FVPL WEER AT EFTABEZ
TMEE (883,716) =
Proceeds from disposals of financial assets HEZAFE ABRZ
at FVPL EREEZFIEMRA 657,986 -
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - BRERREMS
plant and equipment I 36(b) 522 147
Acquisition of an associated company WE—EBE AT 27(d) - (31,801)
Cash (outflow)/inflow from disposals of HEMRBARZRE ()
subsidiaries, net of cash disposed SR BAAEERS 35 (231) 40,486
Dividend received from an associated BR—EBERBTZERE
company 21 145,600 116,480
Interest received BIFHE 73,758 56,648
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEE (FA) Fr8
investing activities HEF%E (38,571) 118,341

The notes on pages 125 to 271 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

SR Bl R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE

—=Et+-P=t—RALEE

As at 31 December

K+ZRB=+—H
2023 2022
8= T HF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
L FHT FET
(Restated)
(&)
Cash flows from financing activities nﬂﬁ BEZRERE
Settlement of written off put option liability #&& & Hz MRS E (852,188) =
Capital injection from non-controlling 3'5?%527& TE
interests 361 3,692
Proceeds from deemed disposal of shares ~ fR{EH & — B A E]
of a subsidiary f&1p 2 FRiS A 34 12,893 1,666
Payments for purchase of the Company’s ~ ZFEABARRE KD Z
shares by the trustee NEN (9,826) (30,000)
Proceeds from issuance of asset-backed BITREBREEST
securities, priority tranche DM%’%FW?MIE 36(c) = 853,334
Proceeds from transfer of asset-backed EHERERES iéJX X8
securities, priority tranche & S5 PTiS 36(c) 33,097 =
Repayments of asset-backed securities BREEESF ui‘f# 36(c) (292,365) (580,870)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERPTISRRIE 36(c) 63,970 68,357
Repayment of bank borrowings BIERITREN 36(c) (75,520) 2,319)
Principal elements of lease payments HENMRZEZED 36(c) (31,908) (26,444)
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits IRITIFRURL, (GG 0) 969 (483)
Dividend paid to non—controlling interests B FFPERRE R IR 2 I& 8 (12,893) (51,723)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REES) (FRA) PR
financing activities REHEE (1634100 233,544
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3R& R IR& EEYIE M
FER 3,861 431,495
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNRERREFEBY
of the year (1 January 2022: ZE2E_—_F#—H8—H:
HK$40,742,000 is included 40,742,000 705t A48
in the assets classified as held for sale RFEFHEZEE
(Note 35(b)(i) (H1zE35b)(1) 3,537,506 3,295,300
Exchange loss on cash and RekREEBYMZ
cash equivalents PERE 1R (59,351) (189,289)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZRETRIRTEEY
of the year 26 3,482,016 3,537,506
Cash flows of discontinued operation BRIERESEFHE NS
ne 35
The notes on pages 125 to 271 are an integral part of these 55125227182 Mz hZEiR e MRz HH

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the provision of payment and digital services, provision of
Fintech services, provision of platform operation solutions and
provision of financial solutions.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise
stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”), financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL’) and a financial liability at FVPL
which are measured at fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

a0 A 5 W R BT

—RH

SR (FE) BRAE ((RAE) REMRBA
B (B TAER) TERFRE N REF
{EARTS ~ RIS RIBHR AR IRt T R EE MR
BREMRHEERBRST R

KABA— B EREFMRIIZERAR
HE MRt A Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda©

AATDREBHERZAERAT (A )
Lo

BRI BFHEN  IWFGRAMBREUT AT (T
A7) BEAI2S]e

BT G ST

2.1 RBUE%E
RABZ BT HERRDIRIBES BB
HEA (EEVHREEL) REBAT
15 (35622F) Z I BERE MR o &4z
BV BEBRREEERARERR  EEA
FEtAEMEEWE (RATFEFAE
tEmEmNE)) 2 EREE R AFE AR
m (B AT EFABR) 2SMEERE
NFESTABmZEMEBERN HEZA
TEETEC

RUEEBMBREER REVBRE
RAFLETHRE LS EEETAR
ERBAEESHERZBERIELH
B o RE S H BB N R MR Y
REVBEREEAEARENRBRR KA
BSERS I MY EE4T R ER ©

BFEH (E) BRAR “EC=FFR

125



126

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i o W B R B e

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Reclassification in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
The Group previously recorded the increase in restricted
bank balances of HK$361,725,000 for the year ended
31 December 2022 under investing activities in the
consolidated cash flow statement. In the current year, the
Group has revisited the nature of certain of its restricted
bank balances arising from customer reserve accounts
and considered these restricted bank balances represent
payments received on behalf of the merchants to settle
related payment and digital services business. Accordingly,
an adjustment is made to reclassify such increase from
investing activities to operating activities in the Group's
consolidated cash flow statement to align with the current
year presentation.

As a result, the net cash generated from operating activities
of HK$441,335,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022 as previously stated in the consolidated cash flow
statement has been restated to HK$79,610,000, and the
net cash used in investing activities of HK$243,384,000
for the year ended 31 December 2022 as previously
stated in the consolidated cash flow statement has been
restated to net cash generated from investing activities of
HK$118,341,000. The above reclassification has no impact
on the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2022 and the profit for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for the annual reporting
period commencing 1 January 2023:

HKEFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

e Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments
to HKAS 8

e International Tax Reform — Pillar — Two Model
Rules Amendments to HKAS 12

e Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction — Amendments to
HKAS 12; and

e Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments
to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2

The amendments listed above did not have any impact
on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are
not expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i o W B R B e

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy (Continued)
(b) New and amended standards and interpretations not

yet adopted

Certain amendments to accounting standards and
interpretation have been published that are not
mandatory for 31 December 2023 reporting periods
and have not been early adopted by the Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
SR GIEAFISE (BT

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
EEEHEN B9 (BET4)

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

EBU B ELERE 1658
(fE5TA)
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 (Amendments)
SR EAE R
SRMEIREERE7E BFIE)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)

BERESS (B

HKAS21 (Amendments)

ERAEERBE215E (1B5T4)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

EEMBREERHEI05EK
EEGEERF285E (EFTAH)

The Group is in the process of assessing the impact
of adopting these new accounting standards and
interpretation on its future reporting periods and on

foreseeable future transactions.

128

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

2 RREERE

i

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

MEFIFRBEEN DR

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

it LB IERBERE

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

ERARNEEAR

Supplier Finance Arrangements

Mg E L HE

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

ﬁﬁ‘“%ﬁ%ﬁ’]%ﬂ BRABRAREREEZ

SRz niE

Lack of Exchangeability
FRZ AR

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

KREEEREBES AT NG B BN
BEHEITE

A B

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

STECREHE

2.2 St HEREH (8
(b) [ERERANBIAT T RASNEET R R a2

AEEEFERAZSME
RRYARRRERBRIRRHARRK

2 45

B ERZETES] e T A
ERBEE—ZE_=F+"A=+—H
LEEREEAM A R ORI AR BAREAR
EERF R

Effective for
accounting year
beginning on or after
RT7BHNZ &
RENEEEENR

1 January 2024
—E-NFE—B—H

1 January 2024
—ECNE—-RA—H

1 January 2024
—EINF—HF—H

1 January 2024
—ETNFE—B—H

1 January 2024

“Z2TNF—F—H

1 January 2025

“ETRF—RF—H

To be determined

TEE

stERIK



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
% /N & >3
sE o B R M EE
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES IN 2 {RrBIEAENESHEESES @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 S5t HERES (8
€ BHEERAREZEIFEIRH

2.2 Changes in accounting policy (Continued)
(c) Change in accounting policy on offsetting arrangement

in long service payment scheme in Hong Kong

In June 2022, the Hong Kong Government enacted
the Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance
2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”) which will be
effective from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”).
Under the Amendment Ordinance, any accrued
benefits attributable to the employer’s mandatory
contributions under mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF Benefits”) of an entity would no longer be
eligible to offset against its obligations on long service
payment (“LSP”) for the portion of the LSP accrued
on or after the Transition Date. There is also a change
in the calculation basis of last monthly wages for the
portion of the LSP accrued before the Transition Date.

Prior to 1 January 2023, the Group applied practical
expedient in HKAS 19 paragraph 93(b) (the “practical
expedient”) to account for the offsetable MPF Benefits
as deemed employee contributions to reduce the
current service costs in the period in which the related
services were rendered.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” (the “Guidance”) which
provides clarified and detailed guidance on the
accounting considerations relating to the abolition
of the offsetting mechanism. The Guidance clarified
that following the enactment of the Amendment
Ordinance, LSP is no longer a ‘simple type of
contributory plans” to which the practical expedient
had been intended to apply.

By following the Guidance, the Group has therefore
changed its accounting policy and ceased to apply
the practical expedient and reattribute the deemed
employee contributions on a straight-line basis from
the date when services by employees first lead to their
benefits in terms of the LSP legislation in accordance
with HKAS 19 paragraph 93(a).

The abovementioned change in accounting policy
does not have material impact to the financial
statements as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors.
The directors identified and evaluated financial risks in
close co-operation with the operating units of the Group.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group's foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), HK$,
US dollars (“US$”), Euro (“EUR”) and British
Pounds (“GBP”). The majority of assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB and HK$
and there are no significant assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies. The Group is
subject to foreign exchange rate risk arising from
future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities which are denominated in
a currency other than HK$ or RMB, which are
the functional currencies of the major operating
companies within the Group. The Group currently
does not hedge its foreign currency exposure.

As HKS$ is pegged to US$, management believes
that the exchange rate risk for translations
between HK$ and US$ do not have material
impact to the Group. RMB is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government. The Group
manages its foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency
rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

For subsidiaries with HK$ as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2023, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$9,150,000
(2022: HK$461,000) higher/lower, mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of RMB denominated cash and cash
equivalents as well as current accounts with group
companies (2022: RMB denominated current
accounts with group companies).

At 31 December 2023, if EUR had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$2,714,000
(2022: HK$3,577,000) higher/lower, mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of RMB denominated current accounts
with group companies.

At 31 December 2023, if GBP had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,647,000
(2022: HK$927,000) higher/lower, mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of RMB denominated current accounts
with group companies.

For subsidiaries with RMB as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2023, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$2,909,000 (2022: HK$3,744,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of HK$ denominated
current accounts with group companies.

At 31 December 2023, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, the impact to post-
tax profit for the year would be immaterial.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(b)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Financial instruments at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Financial instruments at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group's
interest rate risk arises mainly from bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, loan receivables, bank
borrowings and asset-backed securities. Other
financial assets and financial liabilities are non-
interest-bearing and are measured at amortised
cost.

At 31 December 2023, if interest rates on
interest-bearing bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents had been 100 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year of the Group would have
been approximately HK$34,818,000 (2022:
HK$35,389,000) higher/lower due to interest
income earned on market interest rate.

(iii) Price risk
The Group is not exposed to commodity price
risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from financial asset at FVOCI, other
financial assets at amortised cost, loan receivables,
financial assets at FVPL, amount due from an
associated company, trade and bills receivables, bank
deposits, restricted bank balances and cash and cash
equivalents.

The carrying amounts of financial asset at FVOCI,
other financial assets at amortised cost, loan
receivables, financial assets at FVPL, amount due from
an associated company, trade and bills receivables,
bank deposits, restricted bank balances and cash and
cash equivalents represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Risk management

To manage this risk, deposits of the Group are
mainly placed with reputable banks. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made
to reputable and creditworthy customers with
an appropriate financial strength, credit history
and appropriate percentage of down payments.
It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
authorisation of credit limits to individual
customers and recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables to ensure the
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

For its fintech services business, the Group
leverages on its proprietary credit risk
management and fraud prevention system while
it also has established a comprehensive credit
risk management process which include credit
origination, credit review, credit approval,
disbursement, post-disbursement monitoring, and
collection.

Management considers the credit risk for amount
due from an associated company to be minimal
after considering the financial position of the
entity. Management has performed assessment
over the recoverability of the balances and
management does not expect any losses from
non-performance by these entities.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Risk management (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk. Sales
of goods and services to the largest customer
accounted for 5% (2022: 4%) for the total
revenue from continuing operations, and top
five customers constituted 10% (2022: 9%) of
the Group’s revenue from continuing operations
for the year ended 31 December 2023. They
accounted for approximately 50% of the gross
trade receivable balances as at 31 December
2023 (2022: 53%).

Collections of outstanding receivable balances
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis to
minimise such credit risk.

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables for sales of goods of the
Group and from the provision of services and
loan receivables are subject to the expected
credit losses (“ECL”) model. While cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank balances,
bank deposits, amount due from an associated
company and other financial assets at amortised
cost are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring ECL which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.
The Group measures the ECL on a combination of
both individual and collective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment allowance. The
Group also estimates the provision for ECL on a
collective basis by grouping the trade receivables
based on shared credit loss risk characteristics
and collectively assessed for likelihood of
recovery, and applying ECL rates to respective
gross carrying amounts of the receivables.
The ECL rates are based on the external credit
ratings of individual customers with reference to
credit rating agencies or historical credit losses
experienced up to 3 years and are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information
on factors affecting the ability of the customers
to settle the receivables. Credit ratings are
periodically monitored.

As at 31 December 2023, the ECL of the
collectively assessed receivable balances from
customers of the sales of electronic power meters
and solutions business was HK$9,545,000
(2022: HK$9,885,000) based on expected loss
rates up to 100% (2022: 74.7%) calculated
using the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced up to 3 years. The respective ECL
of the collectively assessed receivable balances
from customers of payment and digital services
business, platform operation solutions business
and financial solutions business, which is based
on the external credit ratings of individual
customers with reference to credit rating agencies,
is immaterial as at 31 December 2023.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as “credit impairment loss” in the
consolidated income statement. When a
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the same line item.
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loan receivables

The Group estimates the ECL under HKFRS 9
ECL models. The Group assesses whether the
credit risk of loan receivables have increased
significantly since their initial recognition, and
apply a three-stage impairment model to calculate
their ECL, the management assesses impairment
loss using the risk parameter modelling approach
that incorporates key measurement parameters,
including probability of default, loss given default
and exposure at default, with the consideration of
forward-looking information.

Loan receivables are categorised into the
following stages by the Group:

Stage 1

Loan receivables have not experienced a
significant increase in credit risk since origination
and impairment is recognised on the basis of 12
months ECL (12-month ECLs).

Stage 2

Loan receivables to customers have experienced a
significant increase in credit risk since origination
and impairment is recognised on the basis of
lifetime ECL (Lifetime ECLs non credit-impaired).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMHFEEKEIE®
3.1 HMERBEZR (@)
b) EEELEE #)
(i) SREERE @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loan receivables (Continued) EWED (@)
Stage 3 FEE

Loan receivables that are in default and
considered credit impaired (Lifetime ECLs credit
impaired).

In assessing whether the credit risk of a loan
receivables has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the loan receivables assessed
at the reporting date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is past
due for more than 90 days. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a loan receivable’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group; and

— the financial asset is past due.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBEBRER®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HBRAKEE (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) b) EEEE (&)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) iy THEERE B
Loan receivables (Continued) W ER (&)
Stage 3 (Continued) B (E)
As at 31 December 2023, the provision RIBE_=F+"A=+—8"
for impairment of loan receivables was REEW T A EREEPTER A
HK$145,827,000 (2022: HK$160,246,000) based B EE EWERRERES
on expected loss rates applied to different stages 145,827,000 (ZE -
as follows: 160,246,000787T) :

As at 31 December 2023
R —E_=F+"A=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
SRR FTRE F=MBR a5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000
FExT THRT FTET TFTHER

Loan receivable =N 1,498,174 72,032 112,255 1,682,461
Provision for impairment FEWE FURE R E

of loan receivables 11,751 30,754 103,322 145,827
Expected loss rate TEHAE IR X 0.78% 42.7% 92.0%

As at 31 December 2022
R_E-_"H+"RA=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
$—MB FoME FSEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET TERT TAERT  TER

Loan receivable FEU &R 2,637,486 26,579 143,806 2,807,871
Provision for impairment  FEWE RURE # &

of loan receivables 21,985 20,005 118,256 160,246
Expected loss rate TERRESIE = 0.83% 75.3% 82.2%

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loan receivables (Continued)
Stage 3 (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
balances, bank deposits, financial assets at FVPL,
financial asset at FVOCI, bills receivables and

other financial assets at amortised cost

Note 41.8 described the impairment policy
of cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
balances, bank deposits, financial assets at FVPL,
financial asset at FVOCI, bills receivables and
other financial assets at amortised cost. There is no
loss allowance for these assets at amortised cost as
at 31 December 2023 (2022: same).

(c) Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group
aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and ensure the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of available financing, including
short-term bank borrowings. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group’s
finance department maintains flexibility in funding
by maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash
equivalents and flexibility in funding through having
available sources of financing.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over
and above balance required for working capital
management are transferred to interest bearing bank
deposits with appropriate maturities to manage its
overall liquidity position. As at 31 December 2023,
the Group maintained cash and cash equivalents of
HK$3,482,016,000 (2022: HK$3,537,506,000) that
is expected to be readily available and sufficient to
meet the cash outflows of its financial liabilities, hence
management considers that the Group’s exposure to
liquidity risk is not significant.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total banking
facilities amounted to approximately HK$276,983,000
(2022: HK$283,978,000), of which HK$42,688,000
has been utilised (2022: HK$55,748,000).

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
their contractual maturities for:

(a) all non-derivative financial liabilities, and
(b) a derivative financial instrument for which

the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBERERE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HBRAKEZR (@)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) © TREEZERE (&
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual R ESREASHNREIRAERN
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 2o ARARIRZ R ER A B 1218 8
months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of WEIHAZ G ERE S I HARE A4S ER

discounting is not significant.

Between Between
Less than 1and 2 2 and 5
1 year years years Total
LR—8% —FEZHF ZFERF Wz
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FHET FHET

At 31 December 2023 RIEBZ=F
+=-BA=+—H
Trade payables FEATERAR 596,415 = - 596,415
Payables for payment and SR FICARTEETRS
digital services business ZENFRIE 3,591,920 = - 3,591,920
Other payables and accruals ~ E.{thf&{J T IE K
fESTFIA 637,506 = - 637,506
Amounts due to associated FEEE ABRIE
companies 4,295 - - 4,295
Bank borrowings RITEM 42,688 - - 42,688
Lease liabilities HEaE 27,635 14,232 3,405 45,272
Total &t 4,900,459 14,232 3,405 4,918,096

BISRE (hE) ARAR —z—=#¢% (141
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Financial Statements

HERRERE @

3.1 BHERBRER (&)

€ HEHELERE (B

Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 2 and 5
1 year years years Total
LR—F —ZEZF _—ELE wast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET AT TFAT FET
At 31 December 2022 N B F
+-B=+—H
Trade payables P& < BR R 642,446 = - 642,446
Payables for payment and ST R FICARTE ETS
digital services business ZERRIE 965,787 - - 965,787
Other payables and accruals ~ EL &I TRIE K
FE St RIB 669,925 = - 669,925
Amounts due to associated FET B AR IA
companies 4,421 - - 4,421
Asset-backed securities BEEYFE 265,058 = — 265,058
Bank borrowing RITER 55,748 = = 55,748
Lease liabilities GER==R 19,562 9,747 1,663 30,972
Written put option liability BHRLHAEEE
(Note 33) (H75#33) 857,069 = - 857,069
Total Hat 3,480,016 9,747 1,663 3,491,426

3.2 Capital risk management

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital.
Total debt includes bank borrowings, lease liabilities, asset-
backed securities and written put option liabilities of the
Group. Total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet plus total debt.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the gearing ratio was

as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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HHERMERE @®

32 BEXEABER (&)
B =ERCECF+H=+—
B> EREELEERNT

As at 31 December

w+=ZB=+—H
2023 2022
—EZ=HF TECTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TFAT
Bank borrowings (Note 31) EET‘ITE (a3 T) 42,688 55,748
Lease liabilities (Note 15) Ba’& Wits) 43,484 29,829
Asset-backed securities (Note 30) ﬁ}%fi?ﬁﬁ% (H#tz%30) = 265,058
Written put option liabilities (Note 33) B He AR EE (W5233) - 857,069
Total debt BEE%E 86,172 1,207,704
Total equity %Eﬁ%%ﬁi 7,778,018 7,554,282
Total capital mE R 7,864,190 8,761,986
Gearing ratio BEARBMELX 1.1% 13.8%

3.3 Fair value estimation
(a) Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses the Group’s financial

instruments carried at fair values as at 31 December
2023 and 2022 by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair values. Such inputs

are categorised into three levels within a fair value

hierarchy as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UBREEE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 X2FEE MG @)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (@) L FEER )
The following table presents the Group’s financial TREFIAEBMBER_Z-=F+Z
assets that were measured at fair values at 31 B=t+—HAFEtESREE-

December 2023.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—R B4R B4R At
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FHET FHET

Financial assets ETHMEE
Financial assets at FVPL BRAFESAERZ
SREE
— Unlisted investment fund —FELHREES = = 82,321 82,321
— Listed equity securities — LR AES 834 = = 834
— Investments at FVPL — AT EF ARG
ZIRE - 226,051 - 226,051
Total a5t 834 226,051 82,321 309,206
The following table presents the Group’s financial TREVNAERENR B _F+Z
assets that were measured at fair values at 31 B=+—HAFEEZEMEE-
December 2022.
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Bk B4R Bk st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAT TFAET THET
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at FVPL BAFESAERZ
SRIEE
— Unlisted investment fund —FLTREEE = = 93,077 93,077
— Listed equity securities — FRRAE 980 - - 980
Financial asset at FVOCI BAFESAREMER
Wiz &MEE
— Listed equity security — R AES 152,868 = - 152,868
Total =1 153,848 = 93,077 246,925

1 44 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
The following table presents the Group’s financial
liability that were measured at fair value at 31
December 2022.

Financial liability ERAaE
Financial liability at FVPL BAFEFABRZ
TREE
— Written put option liability ~—BHZHEAEER
(Note 33) (Hrat33)

3

a0 A 5 W R BT

HERRERE @

3.3 AFE M (@
(a) AFEER )
TREJAEBRN _ZEZ_F+Z
AZ+—HBATEEzEmas.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1R EMR F=R 4t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

- - (4,881) (4,881)

Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair values

At 31 December 2023 N-B-=%+-H8
=+—H

Transfer from Level 1to Level 2~ HE—HREREF R

BE—BERE_FTATEZEE

Assets Liability

BE 81"

Financial ~ Financial ~ Financial  Financial
asset at asset at asset at liability at
FVPL FVPL FVOCI FVPL

- unlisted - listed - listed - written
Investment equity equity  put option
fund  securities security liability

BATE BATE
BATE ®BATE stAHM HAR:
stARE  stAEm  EEE= ZER

ZEMEE ZERE Z&M BfF-Hi
—tWmkE  —JFLEH BE-LH REHES

HEF  REEE REEF f&
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FERT TERT TERT FERT

- - 22 -

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy
are deemed to occur at the end of each reporting
period. Transfers into and out of levels of the fair
value hierarchy are primarily attributable to changes
in observability of valuation inputs and price
transparency of the period.

NFAERE MR 2 BB AR B R AR B
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
There were no significant transfers of financial

assets and financial liabilities between the fair value

hierarchy classifications during the year ended 31
December 2022.

(i)

(ii)

(iii

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

=

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives,
and trading and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted
equity security, unlisted investment fund and
unlisted convertible preference shares.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HERAKBEIE @
3.3 AFEE G @)

(b) EBEXFEREAZIGERN

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(b) Valuation techniques used to determine fair values

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
performs the valuations of financial assets required
for financial reporting purposes, including level 3
fair values. As part of the valuation process, this team
reports directly to the chief financial officer (“CFO”)
and external valuers will be engaged, if necessary.

In applying the discounted cash flow technique,
management has taken into account the estimated
amount that the Group would receive to sell the
instrument at the balance sheet date, taking into
account current interest rates and the current credit
worthiness of the counterparties. Where discounted
cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash
flows are based on management’s best estimates and
the discount rate is a market related rate for a similar
instrument at the balance sheet date.

(c) Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3)
Specific valuation techniques used to value level
3 financial instruments include techniques such as
discounted cash flow analysis and net asset value
model. There are no changes in valuation techniques
during the year (2022: same).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GLAE R e TS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(c) Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)
The following table presents the changes in level 3
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December

MERREE @
3.3 X2FEE MG @)

(c) EHEATETEZRMA BiEZ N\ F
B8 (F=4R) #)
TREINBEE_ZS_=ZF+_A1
=+ —HIFEF=ZHfEsMIE2E

2023:

.

Financial asset
at fair value

through
profit or loss
BATFEEA
BHRZEMEE
unlisted
investment
fund
JEET
KREES
HK$’000
FET
Balance at 1 January 2023 MRIE-_=5—HF—H 26 93,077
Fair value loss on revaluation REGRER B ATERSIE
recognised in profit or loss (8,159)
Exchange realignment PE R e (2,597)
Balance at 31 December 2023 MRIE_=F+"A=+—H2z&% 82,321
Unrealised loss recognised in the profit REE B AR L 2 8w
or loss attributable to balance at the R REIREE
balance sheet date (8,159)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(c) Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

Balance at 1 January 2023

a0 A 5 W R BT

MR EIE @

3.3 AFEME (@)
€ ZHEBATTHEGAZBEZ AT
E51 2 (F=4R) (&)

Financial liability
at fair value
through
profit or loss
HATERA
Bz EMEaRE
written put
option liability
B
HEaR
HK$’000
FET

RZE_=F—H—HZH#&ER (4,881)

Derecognition (Note 33)
Exchange realignment

42 ERERR (MFEE33) 4,863
fE R EEE 18

Balance at 31 December 2023

RIBZ_=F+"A=+—HZ%EHR -

BFEH (E) BRAR “EC=FFR
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UBREEE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 X2FEE MG @)
(c) Fair value measurements using significant (c) 1EHEANO[EEEREA BIE > I\ F
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued) BE1E (F=R) #)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TREJBE_Z__F+°A
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December =E+—HLIFEFE=fESMIACE
2022: g
Financial assets
at fair value
through
profit or loss
BRNFEE A
BonzEMEE
unlisted
investment
fund
JEET
REREE
HK$'000
FET
Balance at 1 January 2022 WRIEZ—F—HF—Hz4&8% 108,200
Fair value loss on revaluation recognised RIBERR T EEATERIR
in profit or loss (6,889)
Exchange realignment PE oS (8,234)
Balance at 31 December 2022 R-EBE-—F+-B=+—Hz2#&% 93,077
Unrealised loss recognised in the profitor A4S BAEHREL 2 A ER
loss attributable to balance R REIREE
at the balance sheet date (6,889)

1 50 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HERAKBEIE @
3.3 AFEE G @)
€ FEHEATGERENZIEZ AT
B2 (B=/H) &)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(c) Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

Financial liability

at fair value
through
profit or loss
BATESTA
BazEMas
written put
option liability
=
LA
HK$'000
FHTT
Balance at 1 January 2022 RZE__F—H—HAZ&R -
Fair value loss on revaluation R Efb AT ERIE
recognised in profit or loss (5,073)
Exchange realignment bE D sR % 192
Balance at 31 December 2022 WIEZZE+ZA=+—B2Z#&H% (4,881)
Unrealised loss recognised in the profit REEE B AL 2 85
or loss attributable to balance at the Rz KBRS
balance sheet date (5,073)
BIRRE (hE) BRAT —g-=xx8 (151
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GLAE R e TS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(c) Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss —
unlisted investment fund

The Group has determined that the audited net
asset value approximates fair value of the unlisted
investment fund after applying a portfolio discount
of 10% (2022: 10%).

Financial liability at fair value through profit or
loss — written put option liability

The Group adopted the binomial option pricing
model for the purpose of valuation of the
financial liability at FVPL written put option
liability as at 23 May 2022 (date of recognition)
and 31 December 2022. The key unobservable
assumption was the expected volatility of
underlying share. The expected volatility of
underlying share as at 23 May 2022 and 31
December 2022 were 34% and 41% respectively.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

3 REREMRE

EE@®

3.3 2FE M @)
(c) EHEATETEZRMA BiEZ N\ F
BErE (F=4) (B

(i)

(ii)

BAFEFAERNEME
E-FFLmREES
AEERET TEBAREASH
0% (CBZE D 10%) B &
BREEFEEFLITREES
ZAFERE -

BAFESAEBRZEME
BE-BHRLA#AE
AEBRAZEAAETERE
HIETTFRBZ+=H R
B R _—F+_H=+—
BEAFESAEBERZEME
E-BHRHAEERETH
BT HRRKAER
R ORER D ey A —
RR+=HRIEZ_F+_
B=+—H  HERMPITERE
ENE D BIA34% Bed1% o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

a0 A 5 W R BT

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HERAKBEIE @

3.4 RERENZEMIA

3.4 Financial instruments by category

As at 31 December

®+ZB=+—H
2023 2022
—Z== S-S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFAET
Financial asset at FVOCI BAFESFAEMEERGE 2
TRBEE - 152,868
Financial assets at FVPL BATESABmZ TMEE 309,206 94,057
Financial assets at amortised cost BBHERA ST EC SRIEE
Other financial assets at BEH AT E 2 ARl
amortised cost BE 172,915 73,712
Amount due from an associated FEW— M HBE A B FIE
company 5,000 5,306
Loan receivables FEU &= 1,536,634 2,647,625
Trade and bills receivables FEUBR R FE U 248 177,055 170,316
Bank deposits RITE - 1,468
Restricted bank balances ZIRHIIRITAEER 3,542,318 1,064,937
Cash and cash equivalents BENBEEEY 3,482,016 3,537,506
Total &t 9,225,144 7,747,795
Financial liability at FVPL BATESF ARGz EHMEAR
Written put option liability BHFLHIAEERE - 4,881
Financial liabilities at amortised cost G IHM A2 EREE
Written put option liability BRI EE - 852,188
Lease liabilities HE&E 43,484 29,829
Trade payables FEAT BRX 596,415 642,446
Payables for payment and digital XA R EARFS E T Z
services business I8 3,591,920 965,787
Other payables and accruals H A& RIE R fE 5T RUE 637,506 669,925
Amounts due to associated FET B AR RIE
companies 4,295 4,421
Bank borrowings RITRE 42,688 55,748
Asset-backed securities BEELFES - 265,058
Total &5t 4,916,308 3,490,283

BFEH (E) BRAR

“ETCFFR
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on assumption about risk of default and expected
credit loss rate. The Group use judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forwarding-looking estimates
at the balance sheet date. Management also assesses
whether the credit risk of receivables have increased
significantly since their initial recognition and apply a
three-stage impairment model to calculate their ECL.

Impairment loss on loan receivables represent
management’s best estimate of losses incurred in the
loan portfolio at the reporting date under ECL models.
Management assesses whether the credit risk of loan
receivables have increased significantly since their initial
recognition and apply a three-stage impairment model
to calculate their ECL. The Group is required to exercise
judgement in making assumptions and estimates when
calculating loan impairment loss, including any observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from loans portfolio and
historical loss experience on the basis of the relevant
observable data that reflects current economic conditions.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of receivables (Continued)

The measurement of the ECL involves significant
management judgments and assumptions, primarily
including the selection of appropriate models and
determination of relevant key measurement parameters,
criteria for determining whether or not there was a
significant increase in credit risk or a default was incurred,
economic indicators for forward-looking measurement,
and the application of economic scenarios and weightings,
management consideration due to significant uncertain
factors not covered in the models and the estimated future
cash flows in stage 3. Refer to Note 3.1(b)(ii)).

Fair value of the unlisted investment fund at FVPL

The fair value of the unlisted investment fund at FVPL that
is not traded in an active market are determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement to
select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at each of the
balance sheet date. The Group has used net asset value
model for the unlisted investment fund at FVPL that is not
traded in active market (Note 3.3).

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.
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(b)

(c)

BFEH (E) BRAR

FEUWR (B (48)
JEHEEGBRE T B REANEEE N
REBR TEQERESBEYLEER
R 228 BEEEERBE T AIE
WMz AZEE B EEELN BIEMTEN
KOBRASIZ > R FE RS R R NS ~ HiE
B RS EATMEEERZER &
BEEZERNERE B (At REKES
e o A2 RMIEE3. 1 (b)) ©

RAFEFABZZIFLEHRERS
2FE

IR BHIER 7 2 AT ET AlBm
ZILETREESZZATFEDRABGEER
TEE ~ERERIENERESES A I
FHEIEZEARSEEHERTRARR -
RAEEBFAELIFDERTHRFH 27
ATESF ARG F LT REESHRAE
EFERRETON (15E3.3)

FRGI BIRIETR A
FEBEFIREEZEERDABMTT
o BEFTSMBHR AL ERHE - R
ERG R EZREMBEEITCMAN
ZE-MREFENRKMBERRRS
ARERAER ARFEEBTEMFLA
R E IR Z PRSI BB AEAR TR B

BRIETHRNEREKRRIBEFEVIELEIRE
BEREEEDR RIS RRERREF
FA (RS RS = RS IR IB R 1R Y15 0 T
B HBRBABERNERAEAER

“EC=FFR

155



156

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i o W B R B e

5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS,
NET

Material accounting policy
(@) Sales of goods

(b)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

The Group engaged in sales of electronic power meters.
Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customers, the customer has accepted the products, the
collection of the related consideration is probable and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due.

Provision of services

The Group recognises revenue from its payment and
digital services business when services are rendered
which coincide with the verification of the underlying
transactions of the merchants (customers of the Group)
by the relevant banks and financial institutions. Revenue
from early settlement services is recognised when the
services are rendered, which generally coincide when the
settlement has been completed.

The Group engaged in provision of platform operation
solutions services and financial solutions services. Revenue
from providing services is recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered. For fixed-
price contracts, revenue is recognised based on the actual
service provided using the percentage of completion
method, because the customer receives and uses the
benefits simultaneously.

If circumstances arise that may change the original
estimates of revenues or costs, estimates are revised.
These revisions may result in increases or decreases
in estimated revenues or costs and are reflected in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which the
circumstances that give rise to the revision become known
by management.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS,
NET (Continued)

Material accounting policy (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Provision of services (Continued)

Some contracts include multiple deliverables, such as the
provision of financial solutions and related maintenance
services. The related maintenance services are accounted
for as a separate performance obligation. Where the
contracts include multiple performance obligations, the
transaction price will be allocated to each performance
obligation based on the stand-alone selling prices. If
contracts include the maintenance services, revenue for
the maintenance services is recognised based on the actual
service provided, using the straight-line basis over the
terms of contracts, because the customer receives and uses
the benefit simultaneously.

If the contract includes a monthly fee, revenue is
recognised in the amount to which the Group has a right
to invoice. Customers are invoiced on a monthly basis and
consideration is payable when invoiced.

Interest revenue

The Group is also engaged in the provision of Fintech
services. Interest income is recognised and accrued using
the effective interest method. When a loan receivable is
credit impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount
to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on credit impaired loan
receivables are recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

Contract liabilities — receipt in advances

A contract liability is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before
the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group
recognised its contract liabilities under other payables
and accruals as receipt in advance from customers in the
consolidated balance sheet.
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5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS,
NET (Continued)

Material accounting policy (Continued)

(e

)

®

(h)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Interest Income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost,
except loan receivables from the Fintech services business,
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of other
income.

Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial asset at FVPL and
financial asset at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as
“other losses, net” in the consolidated income statement
when the right to receive payment is established. This
applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits,
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part
of the cost of an investment. In this case, the dividend is
recognised in other comprehensive income if it relates
to an investment measured at FVOCI. However, the
investment may need to be tested for impairment as a
consequence.

Government grants

Grants from the government for high-tech companies are
recognised in “other income” in the consolidated income
statements at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Group
will comply with all the attached conditions.

Rental income

Rental income from properties letting under operating
leases is recognised in the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, 5 UZA -~ Efthug A R E k558 @

NET (Continued)

Revenue, other income and other losses, net recognised during

the year are as follows:

RERRERZ WA Efthii AR B IR 4R

mr:

For the year ended
31 December

B#E+_HA=+—HLFE

2023 2022
—E_= TEICE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Continuing operations FHEIKE R
Revenue from contracts with customers RBEEEF 540G
Recognised over time FHR B T REST
Provision of services AR 2,482,561 3,186,158
Recognised at a point in time KRNG5 B 4 T 58
Sales of goods HEGm 46,786 36,473
2,529,347 3,222,631
Revenue from other source Ik B H{th 2R R AU =
Provision of fintech services (Note i) REERE R
(Hizi) 179,817 210,097
2,709,164 3,432,728
Other income HMug A
Interest income FEUWA 73,758 56,630
Government grants (Note i) BN (Hazii) 39,859 49,075
Rental income GERLLON 2,886 2,566
Others Hith 415 895
116,918 109,166
Other losses, net HthE5183%
Fair values (losses)/gains on financial BATESFABRZEMEE
assets at FVPL ZATE (BB Wa
— Unlisted investment fund —JELmREES (8,159) (6,889)
— Listed equity securities — RS SE (146) (123)
— Investments at FVPL — B AFEFAERZRE 1,869 =
Fair value loss on financial liability at BAFESABRZ E/MAn
FVPL Z AP EEE
— Written put option liability —BULEREAE - (5,073)
Derecognition of written put option R IEHERR AT ES ABER
liability at FVPL BUHSULHRESE 4,863 -
Impairment of intangible assets (Note 16) B & ERIE (H#16) (20,837) -
Impairment of investment in an associated KA EfE A B ERE
company (22) =
Dividend income from a financial asset REBRAFEEGFAERZ
at FVPL TRBEEZREWA - 31
(22,432) (12,054)
B (hE) BRAR —z-=#x8% (159



160

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS,

NET (Continued)

Note i: Revenue from provision of fintech services represented interest
income recognised and accrued using the effective interest method.

Note ii: Government grants represented value-added tax refund from local
tax bureau and grant from government in relation to sales and
research and development of self-developed software products
in the PRC. There were no unfulfilled condition and other
contingencies attached to the receipts of those grants.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Material accounting policy

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Executive
Directors that make strategic decisions.

Description of segments and principal activities
Management has determined the operating segments based on
the internal reports reviewed by the Board of Directors that are
used to make strategic decisions.

The Board of Directors considers the business of the Group
from a product perspective.

The Group is organised into five main operating segments in
these internal reports:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Continuing operation

(@) Payment and digital services — principally engaged in
provision of payment processing services and related
digital products and solutions;

(b) Fintech services — principally engaged in provision of
micro-lending, supply chain financing, factoring business,
credit assessment services and related products and
solutions;

(c) Platform operation solutions — principally engaged in the
provision of telecommunication and mobile payment
platform operation services and operation value-added
services;

(d) Financial solutions — principally engaged in the provision
of information system consultancy, integration and
operation services and sales of information technology
products to financial institutions and banks; and

Discontinued operation (Note 35(b))

(e) Information security chips and solutions — principally
engaged in the provision of information system
consultancy services, the sales of mag-stripe card security
decoder chips and related products and solutions in
Mainland China.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of earnings/(losses)
before interest expense, taxes, depreciation and amortisation
(“EBITDA"), and segmental operating profit/(loss). EBITDA is
calculated by excluding interest expense, taxes, depreciation,
amortisation and fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets at
FVPL from segmental operating profit/(loss).

6
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 AR (@
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results for the year by FEBFAZWAREEISEDEDIIIT

operating segment is as follows:

Continuing operations

RETEEs
Payment Platform
and digital Fintech operation Financial Total
services services solutions solutions Others Group
%tk SRR TREE &/
HFERH R BRABR BRABR Hith E3ENF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT

Year ended 31 December 2023  HE_Z_-=

+ZB=+—HLEE
Segment turnover NEEER 1,994,129 200,473 166,856 325,437 46,787 2,733,682
Inter-segment turnover DEREERE (690) (2,167) (845) (20,816) = (24,518)
Turnover from external customers ~ RENFER 2S£ 1,993,439 198,306 166,011 304,621 46,787 2,709,164

Segmental EBITDA (excluding fair ~ £}4BEBITDA (FB11E
value gain/(loss) on financial asset A FE ABRZ

at FVPL) ERHEEZATE
Wi/ (518) 297,203 47,748 (5,492) (13,515) (25,069) 300,875

Depreciation e (99,942) (5,898) (5,858) (6,352) (2,116) (120,166)
Amortisation s (722) (739) = = (23) (1,484)
Fair value gain/(oss) on financial ~ EATEF ARG L

assets at FVPL ERHEEZRATE

s/ (B8 = 1,869 (8,159) = = (6,290)

Segmental operating profit/(loss) DB ER]/ (8518) 196,539 42,980 (19,509) (19,867) (27,208) 172,935
Unallocated other income KDEEMUA 24,696
Unallocated corporate expenses KA/ (123,086)
Share of results of associated i = UNSIES

companies 402,949
Gain on deemed acquisition BRkEREE—EHE

and dilution of interest of an NGIL vl 6

associated company 1,973
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary ~ HE—EHBATZUE 3,277
Finance costs REMA (3,757)
Profit before income tax BRETISIRAT R A 478,987
Income tax credit FriERigR 35,387
Profit for the year FREF 514,374
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 EER (@
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results for the year by $$ EERNZWMAREEREEDED AN
operating segment is as follows: (Continued) o)
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
B
BRLEEY HSE
Payment Platform Information
and digital Fintech operation Financial Total  security chips
services services solutions solutions Others Group ~ and solutions
5]
2R SRR TREE i Z25RR
YIRS % BARB%R BARE Hith EEAH BANE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TER TER TER TEL TEL

Year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z_—

+ZRA=+-HLEFE
Segment turmover DNEEETD 2,655,820 229,917 169,483 346,068 36473 3,437,761 246,379
Inter-segment turnover DERHEER (3,813) (1213) (7) - = (5,033) =
Turnover from external REINPEEZEXE
customers 2,652,007 228,704 169,476 346,068 36473 3,432,728 246,379

Segmental EBITDA (excluding ~ %4BEBITDA (R E1fE

fair value gain/loss) on BATES AT
financial asset at FVPL) SRHEEZATE
@/ (518) 695,166 22,099 (12,250) (234) (64,779) 640,002 93,584
Depreciation ik (141,160) (6,497) (5,473) (7,128) (2,102) (162,360) -
Amortisation B (642) (777) = = (71) (1,490) =
Fair value loss on financial BATEFAEGRZ
asset at FVPL SRHEEZATE
E51 = = (6,889) = = (6,889) =
Segmental operating profit/(loss) ) 3B4REER/ (§18) 553,364 14,825 (24,612) (7,362) (66,952) 469,263 93,584
Unallocated other income ADEEHMBA 5,647 =
Unallocated corporate expenses KRB RF2 (96,849) =
Share of results of associated ~ EGE S AT ¥4
companies 398,533 -

Loss on deemed acquisition  1RAUER B E— R
and dilution of interestof an ~ EAB R ZH1E

associated company (1,077) -
Gains on disposals of HERBAR W

subsidiaries 2,604 429,339
Finance costs RN (59,862) (143)
Profit before income tax PRPTISTRADER) 718,259 522,780
Income tax expense FigiR< (113,222) (13,203)
Profit for the year FEREF 605,037 509,577

Bl (E) ARAT —z-=x=8 (163



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 AR (@
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2023 and TR =HF+R=t+—HZOEEENRS
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December BRBEZZ=F+"_A=+—HLFEF
2023 are as follows: MENEEZARENT !

Continuing operations

RREEER
Platform
Payment and Fintech operation Financial
digital services services solutions solutions Others  Unallocated ~ Elimination  Total Group

fth  E@ER  TAEE &
L BH  BAE BARR Eft AR e EEA
HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$'000
Fin TiEn FiEn TiEn FiEn TiEn Fin TiEn

As at 31 December 2023 R-B_=
+ZA=+-A
Segment asss HEBE 6742579 2,357,488 603,153 470,905 37,551 5004890 (474848 13,031,718
Segment liabiltes HEEE G717 O44593) (40573 (U461 (74198  @78853) 2474848 (5,253,700)
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-T-=F+ZH
=+-BLEFE
Additions to non-current assets (excluding  FEFEIEEZFE
investments in associated companies, (FRERBEARZR

financial asset at FVOCI, other financial & RATEsHAEMZ
assets at amortised cost and financial AlGz SHERE B
assets at FVPL) Bt EthEmE
EREATENAERZ
SHEE) 45,986 13,310 8,289 10,305 1,018 92 = 79,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December

2022 are as follows:

a0 A 5 W R BT

DEEN @®

RIZ - —HF+_A=t+—HZOEEERE

BREEZSZ - F+RA=1+—HILEFEF
MAEEZARBUWT :

Continuing operations

S e
Platform
Payment and Fintech operation Financial
digital services services solutions solutions Others  Unallocated ~ Elimination  Total Group
ik &@ER  ToEE £
HF LR k% BARE BARE -1 AR % EEes
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn ThEn TEn Thn TEL Thn
As at 31 December 2022 RIBZZE
+ZB=+-H
Segment asses NEEE 5,569,006 3,669,736 783,224 579,209 347,40 4705968 (4199253)  11,455311
Segment liabilities NEaE (3,719,058 (2,915,726) (337,000 (689,540) (172,093) (266,865) 4199253 (3,901,029)
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE_T-"E+-R
=+-BLEFE
Additions to non-current assets (excluding  JERBIEEZAE
investments in associated companies, (FTBERBEATZE
financial asset at FVOCI, other financial & AT E AHMZ
assets at amortised cost and financial AlGZeREE B
assets at FVPL) B EZ EtERE
EREATEABLZ
SHEE) 43,425 578 7,852 10,365 3,000 4,844 = 70,064
SRR (FED) BRRAF TR SEFR
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

During the year, additions to non-current assets mainly
comprise additions to property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets (2022: property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets).

Information provided to the Board of Directors is measured
in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial
statements. These assets and liabilities are allocated based on
the operations of the segment.

Sales between segments are carried out at normal commercial
terms. The revenue from external parties reported to the Board
of Directors is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement.

The Group is principally domiciled in Mainland China and
Hong Kong (2022: same). The Group’s turnover by geographical
locations, which is determined by the locations in which the
turnover are generated from, is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i o W B R B e

DEEN @®

FNIFRBEEZFETEZOEHME K
FPRuE CRAREERETLEEZRE CF
TTE I YE -BERRE EREEERET
BE) -

MEFERHEZENRBRREYHRE -
ZhAF R REFEEEARRNBZERD
Age

DEMZHER—REEERET DESE
RSN 1 AT 2 M AR B Bt
—Bz R

FEBTEMERTRARERESE (CTEZZ
F AR cAEERME (EZEREEL M
BETE BN ERENT

For the year ended
31 December

B#E+_A=+—HLEFE

2023 2022
B = e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Continuing operations RBREER

Mainland China EaE1PNES 2,555,657 3,234,828
Hong Kong ) 150,804 197,376
Others Hth 2,703 524
2,709,164 3,432,728

Discontinued operation EARIEREER
Mainland China FR[EE A = 246,379

ANNUAL REPORT 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s non-current assets (excluding investments in
associated companies, financial asset at FVOCI, other financial
assets at amortised cost and financial assets at FVPL) and
current assets by geographical locations, which is determined
by the geographical locations in which the asset is located, is as

6

a0 A 5 W R BT

DEEN @®

FrERRME (HREEFRTHIZEUEET) 8
NZIFRBEE TERNMERTZRE
AFEFAREMEEREZ SREE  EH
A 82 HithEREERIZ AT ES AlRx
ZEMEE) RRBEEHSIWT

follows:
For the year ended
31 December
HE+Z“HA=1+—HLEE
2023 2022
—E-= B &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Non-current assets JERENE E
Mainland China P e A e 148,415 223,765
Hong Kong B 2,150 5,142
150,565 228,907
SRR (FED) BRRAF TR SEFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses,
administrative expenses and credit impairment loss are

analysed as follows:

Continuing operations
Auditor’s remuneration

— audit and audit related services

— non-audit services

7 UMEESZRAX

STAREER A HERS THERKEEHR
ERBRZAZDINT :

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_HA=+—HLFE

Commission and incentives paid/payable to B4,/ S ¥ REE1FiE

business channel partners

Interest expenses on asset-backed securities & & % 1558 55 F] B 37 H
Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment (Note 14)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Note 15)

Depreciation of investment properties

(Note 13)

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16)
Employee benefit expenses (including

directors’ emoluments) (Note 8)

Costs of inventories sold (including

provision for inventories) (2022:

reversal of provision for inventories)

(Note 22)

Operating lease rentals in respect of land

and buildings
Research and development costs
(including staff cost)

Gains on disposals of property, plant and

equipment (Note 36(b))

Write off of property, plant and equipment

(Note 14)
Credit impairment loss, net
— trade and bills receivables
— loan receivables (Note 19)
Net foreign exchange loss

2023 2022
—E-=H —E-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Z B EME &
— 2 IZ BB RR TS 3,880 4,943
—IEZBRTS 3,583 3,307
B <& K 5 ED 1,121,088 1,516,954
9,778 7,147
Y- MERREITE Bat14)
97,457 140,394
FREEEINE Wat15)
28,908 27,094
SEYEITE (115E13)
173 173
B EEEE Watie) 1,484 1,490
EBERMHZ (BRESIND
(H15£8) 945,914 843,217
ELEENAN (BEFEEES)
TETTF L FEEEERD)
(Ht5222)
57,785 21,527
THIRIBFZ KEREHRS
10,448 12,630
R FEERA (BIE8 TaA)
303,079 251,422
HEYE BB KR&EZ WE
(Kfz£36(b)) (103) (144)
WY B R E Ffat14)
6 30
EERAERIEFE
— PR BR R R FE W ZE d% 1,806 9,963
—EWER Hfa#19) 54,699 94,135
SNEEESIEFRE 1,073 13,932

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS)

Material accounting policy

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “Pension
Scheme”) set up pursuant to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme. The
assets of the Pension Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administrated
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed to the Pension
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, in accordance with the rules of the Pension
Scheme.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

a0 A 5 W R BT

EEEFRY (BEEEMD)

EREFHER
@ EEBFHEA

EEEZFERRERENZARRE
ReAEEEHRERERFELEHEAMRR
ZEERREEARFLEE-

RESHZFBREBEEREKEZH
B EFR

(b) BHZET

FEBBHMBEEBEEEF—HERER
HlME A B 5T BB 51 2 T §R AR
MERRERNEF B (BRIRETEL) o R
RESEAFEZREEILEAE AN
IRIFIR KT B RR B FE ST A R AR S IR
mERR-BUFABZEERFEREE
PHEFE THBUEEESRE AEE
2 & EHRIE BB IRE BUIF (R B
BEES EAERFHZEEBRHR
FERIRBR AR ZRAERENBREHER
YR BRI ERIROANER-

AEERZAHRBEEEMAREE
HRRNF ISR R ES R T H - B
BB EIER & S0 BAR SRR R R S8 2
HE-

BFEH (E) BRAR “EC=FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

Material accounting policy (Continued)

(b) Pension obligations (Continued)
The Group companies in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) participate in defined contribution retirement
benefit plans organised by relevant government authorities
for its employees in the PRC and contribute to these
plans based on certain percentage of the salaries of
the employees on a monthly basis, up to a maximum
fixed monetary amount, as stipulated by the relevant
government authorities. The government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations
of those employees under these plans. Contributions to
these retirement benefits schemes are charged to the
consolidated income statement as incurred.

(c) Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

(d) Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operate equity-settled share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

e including any market performance conditions;

e excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for example,
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified

time period); and

¢ including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

1 70 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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EEEFARY (BEEEMD) @

Ej{ D+ﬁﬁ (/\3)
(b) BUTEE (#B)

(c)

RepEARHNE (hEL) NEBRTS
MEBER BB S HEETRENES AR
BEEHRBRRENEE LRIERERH
TR —ELAZARZFAEHR &S
THAHFAEMAEFRENEEE R
B o BUN BRPI A GE IR B A FeT BIRIERZ S
EENRKENEME - ZFRINEF 5 E
2R EER BT W@ Rk

R D ERIEAL5TE)

AEBBREES B ARG R
DNERDEERAN  ZFBEHERIEY
ETHREREFSALRBRREMG @
ERRGNEETNATEASIBREESE
Ry > AR FESD A o

(d) LXR17 73BT

DtgmE BRI R AR MRS
AEBBTURREERN RO HE
Bt BEEWESRBIFARNAER
Aotz T A (B NAE- sESRHER
BMERBRENA T EED RS E
FXH2EERBRENATEERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

Material accounting policy (Continued)

(d) Share-based payments (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the subsidiaries issue
new shares. The difference between the proceeds received
and the change in non-controlling interest is recognised in
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

When the options are cancelled during the vesting
period, the Group recognises immediately the amount
that otherwise would have been recognised for services
received over the remainder of the vesting period.

When the options are modified, the Group will include the
incremental fair value granted in the measurement of the
amount recognised for services received as consideration
for the equity instruments granted. The incremental fair
value granted is the difference between the fair value of
the modified equity instrument and that of the original
equity instrument, both estimated as at the date of the
modification. If the modification occurs during the vesting
period, the incremental fair value granted is included in
the measurement of the amount recognised for services
received over the period from the modification date until
the date when the modified equity instruments vest, in
addition to the amount based on the grant date fair value
of the original equity instruments, which is recognised
over the remainder of the original vesting period. If the
modification occurs after vesting date, the incremental fair
value granted is recognised immediately.

a0 A 5 W R BT

EEEFRS (BEEEMD) @

EXREHHR (@)
(d) KR17#=EREINH (8)

Mg m G B URN BERNNRZS
(&)

BN BB (NPT A E R B IR
rI97RIZRN) PIFERD ©

REREER AEEEREFTHER
RIBH I E EXH B ERBOMRE
BE RS B ERBEHAEENHE
() IR R U R RER - AR AR
i

MR N B I BRI T R TR D
FrSTIREIEERERE S HEREN
RERmE BRI

fisl B AR T BR B AR N 518 - A B2 B B By e
07 FE A R B B 2B AR ST P R AR A5 BI AR
IHo

RSB AR 1 > AN HR S 5T 2 RUPRUER
ARFF SRR R E R FTR L R E T EAE
Rt AFTIRBIEEATE-FIREEER
FERSENREIAEA T EERERRET
BATEZZE (BRATESNMESRBHA
flr5t) o ECUN ERBERE & > RIFFIR IR
EATERFEEENRANEERESR
T T B 57 % B HA L B R P U B AR 5 FE SR AY
ERART T LAST A TARIRIR H B H R AR 8
TAERFENREDRRGRIEBEHT
DURERR - i IECR A B B ERR 3 4 » BIPRIX
G 8 N T ERIBS T LAFEST ©

BFEH (E) BRAR “EC=FFR
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8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 8 {EE&EFIFXz (BIFESHE) @
DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
For the year ended
31 December
B#E+_-_A=1+—HLEE
2023 2022
gz kSt 5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Continuing operations RS R
Wages and salaries TERME 772,352 697,356
Pension costs and social security costs BRIRNE ARt B IRER A 158,524 145,861
Share-based payment under Share Award %17 #2 B 51818 S B9 I 1D A1
Scheme (Note 27) (Ma227) 15,038 -
945,914 843,217
Five highest paid individuals IREEHEAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the FERBE_Z_=F+_A=1+—HLEE

Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 included four
(2022: four) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 39. The emoluments payable to the
remaining one (2022: one) individual for the year ended 31
December 2023 are as follows:

hAREHFALTOENS (CE_F  Ug)
BEEREZINEEEMIONTPRIR-EE
TR EE+ R+ —HIEEERNERT—
H(CEIE ) ATZMEIT

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_HA=+—HLFE

2023 2022

—E-=F B F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TFAT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind s “ R R BV = 2,080 1,078

Pension cost — defined contribution plan  3RKE A —EZEERRETE 18 161

Discretionary bonuses FIIBTEAL 1,700 3,328
Share-based payment under Share Award ~ J&{D2ZEI5TEITE VAR 21T

Scheme (Note 27) Hizt27) 846 =

4,644 4,567

1 72 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 8 {EEEMEX (BIFEEMD) @
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued) ZamEHAL @
The emoluments fall within the following bands: M= AR

Number of individuals
A¥
For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiLEE

2023 2022
—g= -
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 75— 5,000,00078 7T 1 1

9 FINANCE COSTS 9 RIS

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_HA=+—HLFE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT

Continuing operations FHEISE R

Finance costs =12 %:
— Bank borrowings —IRITERR 1,886 5
— Lease liabilities —fHEaB 1,871 1,472
— Written put option liabilities — B LR - 58,385
3,757 59,862
BT (FE) BRAF “ET=FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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10 INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)

Material accounting policy

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method provides a
better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
income tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is
also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10 INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (Continued)

Material accounting policy (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign operations
where the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

10 INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (Continued)

BVHRFR 1SR

Current income tax
— Hong Kong profits tax (Note (a))

—BRNEN W)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i o W B R B e

10 FRiSHES, () @

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
—EBC=H —BICE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TERT

- (100)

— PRC Corporate Income Tax (Note (a)) —hE 1 EFER (Hata) (51,635) (126,633)
— Over-provision in prior year (Note (b)) —EFBEEE Watwn) 84,653 =
Deferred income tax IRIEFTISHR 2,369 308
Income tax credit/(expense) FrigRMig®R,/ ) 35,387 (126,425)
Income tax credit/(expense) is FrisiiEs®  (F%) RE :
attributable to:
— Profit from continuing operations —HEKEER RN 35,387 (113,222)
— Profit from discontinued operation — BRI EFER = (13,203)
35,387 (126,425)

Note (a)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) in
accordance with the PRC CIT Law. According to the PRC CIT Law and the
relevant regulations, the CIT tax rate applicable is 25% unless preferential
rates are applicable in the cities where the subsidiaries are located. If a
subsidiary is qualified as High and New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”),
the applicable CIT tax rate is 15%. If a subsidiary is engaged in Encouraged
Industries in the Western Region (“EIWR”), the applicable CIT tax rate is
15%. If a subsidiary is qualified as Software and Integrated Circuit Enterprise
(“SICE”), the applicable CIT tax rate is 0% for the first two years of being
qualified and 12.5% for the next three years.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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10 INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (Continued) 10 FRfEMIRSE GBIk @

Applicable corporate income tax rates of principal TEMBARZBERAEEMRBRAE
subsidiaries

Applicable corporate income
tax rate
BREEMERKRE
For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiLEE

Subsidiaries MEAT 2023 2022
Beijing Hi Sun Advanced Business IREHEEEEXMERAR

Solutions Information Technology (MtmEBEiED)

Limited (“BJ ABS”) 15% 15%
BT XIARAF (“VBill OPCO") BTN XMAARAT (THET) 25% 25%
EEEHMBTRRARAR EEEMBTRXARAR

(“Chongging Xinlian”) (TEEEH) 15% 15%
ERESRRARAT IRESRRARAT

(“Beijing Jiehui”) (MER#EZ)) 15% 15%
Note (b) Hizzb)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the over-provision of current BETE_-F+_A=+—HLFE EFNRIHAMRS
income tax in prior year is mainly attributable to Beijing Jiehui. In May RMBERBEEIERRANIIREZ -RI2=FHA" 1
2023, Beijing Jiehui was accredited as SICE. As a result of the accreditation, RESEIERRG REREREE - HINBRMEE 16
Beijing Jiehui received a tax refund in relation to income tax paid for the REEMBE_S__F+"/F=+— EEEFEHFH
year ended 31 December 2022 of HK$20,695,000 and recognised an over- BRUWEGR#320,695,000E 7T W EE =5+
provision for income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2022 B=1T—HLFENGKREYBRERMET %2 —B__F
calculated at the applicable tax rate of 15% of HK$71,322,000 in the +ZA=1+—HLEFEZERRE 5% ERNSRAX
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2023. HBERRE71,322,000787T

EEEE (FE) BIRAHE ZE=FFR
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10 INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (Continued)

The taxation on the Group'’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities in the
respective jurisdictions as follows:

10 FRiSHES, () @

AEBRRANEN 2 NBERE B AR RAE
ARFEBREEN Z TNt B I1ERm
M ZRWT

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2023 2022
—T_=F T HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Profit from continuing operations before  [RFR SR RIIT B S XTS5 H A
income tax 478,987 718,259
Profit from discontinued operation before FRFT1SHR AT B4R IEASE E 55 HF]
income tax - 522,780
Profit before income tax BRPTEIRATEF 478,987 1,241,039
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates EREERREL &N ZER
applicable to profit in the respective EHRXAEZNIA
countries 57,402 189,566
Tax effects of: MBEE
Income not subject to taxation BIAERKBUTA (84,334) (197,840)
Expenses not deductible for tax LRI S A AR 2 <
purposes 26,231 71,786
Utilisation of previously unrecognised ~ B)RIBERER 2 RIERE
tax losses (3,889) (1,182)
Tax losses for which no deferred IR E PRSI R 2
income tax was recognised MIERE 53,856 53,445
Over provision in prior years BEFEEBREES (84,653) -
Capital gain tax BARRMER - 10,650
Income tax (credit)/expense FTiSi (%) (35,387) 126,425

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 12.0% for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 15.3%). The change
is caused by a change in the profitability mix of the Group's
subsidiaries in the respective countries.

1 78 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Material accounting policy

(1)

(i1)

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

e the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

e by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the
year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account:

e the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares; and

e the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 12 SEF @
(a) Basic @@ E=&
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit SRERBN T RAATHES AEEET
attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted BRUFREEITEBRNETEREE-

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_HA=+—HLFE

2023 2022
Profit attributable to the owners of the ~ &R BB ARELEF] (FH7T)
Company (HK$'000)
— Continuing operations —FHEKEET 463,432 466,676
- Discontinued operation —BRIEEEETR - 472,740
463,432 939,416
Weighted average number of ordinary B &8 17& @RI T 90T
shares in issue less shares held for B2 B2 Bh 5+ BIFFIF AR 1D (F
Share Award Scheme (thousands f2)
shares) 2,745,494 2,763,184
Basic earnings per share attributable to ~ Z"A BB AELERERERT]
the owners of the Company (HK$ per (BRET)
share)
— Continuing operations —FHEKEETR 0.169 0.169
— Discontinued operation —BRIEEEETR - 0.171
0.169 0.340
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
net profit and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all potentially
dilutive shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has
three categories (2022: four) of potentially dilutive shares:
share options issued by an associated company — PAX
Global Technology Limited (“PAX Global”), share options
issued by a subsidiary — VBill OPCO and a written put
option liability issued by a subsidiary — VBill Limited
(“VBill (Cayman)”) (2022: share options issued by an
associated company — PAX Global Technology Limited
(“PAX Global”), share options issued by a subsidiary —
VBill OPCO and written put option liabilities issued
by a subsidiary — VBill Limited (“VBill (Cayman)”)
and a subsidiary before 23 May 2022 - Megahunt
Microelectronics Limited (“Megahunt HK”)).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the exercise of
the outstanding share options in PAX Global (2022: PAX
Global and VBill OPCO) would have a dilutive effect. The
exercise of the share options in PAX Global (2022: PAX
Global and VBill OPCO) would be dilutive if the net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company will decrease. A
calculation is performed to determine the number of shares
that could have been acquired at fair value (determined as
the average annual fair value of the associated company’s
shares (2022: the associated company’s shares and the
subsidiaries” shares) based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to outstanding share options
of PAX Global and VBill OPCO (2022: PAX Global and
VBill OPCO). The number of shares calculated as above is
compared with the number of shares that would have been
issued assuming the exercise of the share options of PAX
Global (2022: PAX Global and VBill OPCO).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the calculation of
diluted earnings per share does not assume the exercise
of the written put option liabilities of VBill (Cayman) as it
would have an antidilutive impact to the basic earnings per
share (2022: the calculation of diluted earnings per share
does not assume the exercise of the written put option
liabilities of VBill (Cayman) and Megahunt HK as they
would have an anti-dilutive impact to the basic earnings
per share).

BFEH (E) BRAR
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 12 EREHN @
(b) Diluted (Continued) (b) &8 @)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

For the year ended
31 December

B#E+_A=+—HLFE

2023 2022
—¥_= —ECfF
Profit attributable to the owners of KABEB AL ET
the Company (HK$'000) (F#E7m)
— Continuing operations —FEREER 463,432 466,676
Assuming exercise of all outstanding BRRAESRKEITZRA
dilutive share options issued by PAX B ARAT R SRR IR T
Global (HK$'000) (F#7m)
— Decrease in share of profit — LS A B ER R
of an associated company (7,837) (9,320)
— Loss on dilution of an associated —BEHE R B 2 E1E
company (86,790) (61,204)
Assuming exercise of all outstanding BREITNETZFRBERR
dilutive share options issued by VABill TR EEREETE
OPCO (HK$'000) (F#7m)
— Decrease in profit attributable to the —RREHEE NEILET
owners of the Company Ve (2,664) (4,229)
Adjusted profit attributable to the owners  FHEE £ A UEESRK
of the Company from continuing S vesh |l /NSIE 2SN
operations used to determine diluted AL B HH (FBT)
earnings per share (HK$'000) 366,141 391,923
Profit attributable to the owners of the KAEHEBR NEG T
Company (HK$000) (F#7T)
— Discontinued operation —BRIHEEER S 472,740
Weighted average number of ordinary SREERN 2 ZERMNE
shares for diluted earnings per share FHEE (FR)
(thousands shares) 2,745,494 2,763,184
Diluted earnings per share attributable to  &NA BB AL SRS
the owners of the Company =B (BRET)
(HK$ per share)
— Continuing operations — B EER 0.133 0.142
— Discontinued operation —BRIEREXET - 0.171
0.133 0.313
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13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13 KREYE

Buildings
’F
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2022 N _-_-_F—H—H
Cost RS 3,457
Accumulated depreciation i (2,600)
Net book amount RENFE 857
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z-__H#+_-_RA=1+—HLEE
Opening net book value FYREFE 857
Depreciation e (173)
Closing net book amount FAEEMFE 684
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_"F+"A=+—H
Cost DS 3,457
Accumulated depreciation i (2,773)
Net book amount EEFEE 684
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE_E_=-F+”-A=+—HULtHEE
Opening net book value FYREFE 684
Depreciation e (173)
Closing net book amount FHRIREZFE 511
At 31 December 2023 RZE2Z=F+=ZHB=+—H
Cost D% 3,457
Accumulated depreciation REHTE (2,946)
Net book amount REDFE 511
As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no unprovided N_Z_=F+_"_A=+—H ' x&EEHER

contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance

(2022: same).

All depreciation expense during the year has been charged to
administrative expenses (2022: same).

k- = = =) K0

F AR ©

BFEH (E) BRAR
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13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The following amounts have been recognised in the

consolidated income statement:

13 REWE @

UTZECRFE W RFER

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

Rental income

Direct operating expenses arising from
investment properties that generated
rental income

2023 2022

—E=F s F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FEBT

A 2,886 2,566
EEHESWAZKREYZEFIESE

CEEKLERY
211) 261)

There were no direct operating expenses arising from
investment properties that did not generate rental income
during the year (2022: same).

The period of leases whereby the Group leases out its
investment properties under operating leases were 1 year
(2022: 1 to 2 years).

The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating
leases with rentals payable monthly. There are no other variable
lease payments that depend on an index or rate.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, the future aggregate
minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

Not later than 1 year B4

FRAHERSRAZKREYETEEETE
PEEEERX (CTT2F 18R -

AEERBCEHEER L R EYE S A
FE(CRTTE 1F2E) o

SEYFRCEHEETHEHR  BAXMEE-
W EMBUR P B R P SR E R

NTEBETTFERCET
R oI s =
BU0T

=#E+-A=+—8>
B2 kR UR S 48

As at 31 December

w+=ZHB=+—H
2023 2022
—®:-= TEIHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
1,037 1,108

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 ¥ -BERKSE
Office
Leasehold  furniture and Plant and Motor
Buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
HE MAZE
BF MERE RARRE BERRHE Pt A%
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAER FTERT FERT FERT FERT FET

At 1 January 2022 WZE--&—RA—H
Cost (D% 42,168 28,379 227,343 730,818 35,524 1,064,232
Accumulated depreciation REITE (27,727) (28,159) (193,202) (511,512) (31,835) (792,435)
Accumulated impairment loss ZEtRERE = = = (7,006) = (7,006)
Net book amount REFE 14,441 220 34,141 212,300 3,689 264,791
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-Z--F+-B=1+—H

HEE
Opening net book amount FREZE 14,441 220 34,141 212,300 3,689 264,791
Additions RE = 1,385 15,076 21,688 2,148 40,297
Disposals (Note 36(b)) HE (Hratsem) - - @) (] = 3)
Written off i = - (30) = = (30)
Depreciation e (1,166) (279) (19,464) (117,684) (1,801) (140,394)
Exchange realignment EREE (1,061) 33) (2,556) (13,940) (275) (17,865)
Closing net book amount EREREFE 12,214 1,293 27,165 102,363 3,761 146,796
At 31 December 2022 RZZ2-_-F+-A=+—H
Cost A 39,019 27,944 218,956 694,944 33,634 1,014,497
Accumulated depreciation REHNE (26,805) (26,651) (191,791) (586,198) (29,873) (861,318)
Accumulated impairment loss KR ERE - - - (6,383) = (6,383)
Net book amount REFE 12,214 1,293 27,165 102,363 3,761 146,796
Year ended 31 December 2023 BEZZ-=F+-B=1+—H

LEFE
Opening net book amount FRERE 12,214 1,293 27,165 102,363 3,761 146,796
Additions HE = 74 10,556 19,637 2,223 32,490
Disposals (Note 36(b)) & (rat36b) - - U] 12) (406) 419)
Written off 6] - - 6) - - (6)
Depreciation TE (1,099) (635) (16,173) (77,986) (1,564) (97,457)
Exchange realignment ERAE (331) (29) (747) (2,530 (107) (3,744)
Closing net book amount FRIEEZE 10,784 703 20,794 41,472 3,907 77,660
At 31 December 2023 RZ2Z=F+-RA=+—8H
Cost (D% 37,956 27,378 215,951 694,709 31,585 1,007,579
Accumulated depreciation REITE (27,172) (26,675) (195,157) (647,036) (27,678) (923,718)
Accumulated impairment loss ZEtRESE = = = (6,201) = (6,201)
Net book amount REFE 10,784 703 20,794 41,472 3,907 77,660

Bl (E) ARAT —s-=x#8 (185
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14 ¥)¥ -BEKRZHE @

Depreciation expense included in cost of sales, selling HERT HEERRITHERTEINITE
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BERDHMT :

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2023 2022
—ECC=F B F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Continuing operations RHRREER
Cost of sales & A A 77,348 117,146
Selling expenses HEMX 66 93
Administrative expenses TIHEHR 20,043 23,155
97,457 140,394
Note: st :
As at 31 December 2023, banking facilities of approximately RIBZ=F+_"B=+—01 RI{TEE#23,860,000
HK$23,860,000 (2022: HK$24,560,000) were secured by buildings with a 7T (CTZ T 124,560,000 7T) MUERE${E2,580,000
net book value of HK$2,580,000 (2022: HK$3,640,000) and a right-of-use BT (CE "4 1 3,640,00087T) ZIEFRR@EZFE
asset with net carrying value of HK$2,582,000 (2022: HK$2,665,000) (Note 2,582,000/ 70 (ZZF T4 : 2,665,000/87T) Z(EBEEE
15(a)). {EIEIR (Mi5E15@) ©
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15 LEASES 15 A5
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance @ RERAEEAREREINEEHE
sheet
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following FEBEEEBERETUTEBRENER
amounts relating to leases in respect of office premises and ITHEEBRNEEE !
factory:
As at 31 December
nr+—A=+—H
2023 2022
—EZ= B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Right-of-use assets EREEE
— Office premises —WMAEYE 61,701 47,385
— Factory — T 7,859 8,305
69,560 55,690
Lease liabilities HEaE
— Non-current —IFRE 21,545 11,958
— Current —RE 21,939 17,871
43,484 29,829
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year REEZZ=F+ZA=1+—HIFE
ended 31 December 2023 were HK$46,512,000 (2022: HIfEFREE E R E 5446,512,00087T (&
HK$26,289,000). Z4F 126,289,000 7T) ©
Same as disclosed in Note 14, as at 31 December 2023, PRIGEF14FTINBEEN KRB =F+_
banking facilities of approximately HK$23,860,000 (2022: B=+—H" 1785 %923,860,000 7T
HK$24,560,000) were secured by buildings with a net — T 124,560,000 7T) LUEREF
book amount of HK$2,580,000 (2022: 3,640,000) and a {B2,580,0007%8 7T (ZZ "4 : 3,640,00078
right-of-use asset with net carrying value of HK$2,582,000 70) 2B F R AREF(E2,582,0008 7T (T
(2022: HK$2,665,000) (Note 14). — 12,665,000 7T) 2 EAEEEFR
18 (fF5E14) ©
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15 LEASES (Continued)

15 A5 @

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (b)

statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following

amounts relating to leases in respect of office premises and

factory:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiLEE

2023 2022
—g°= T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THT
Continuing operations FHRIRE R
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE W27)
(Note 7) 28,908 27,094
Interest expense (included in finance FERZ Gt ARIE N Z)
costs) 1,871 1,472
Expenses relating to leases of BITHAE G 2 HE B RIAR X
short-term leases 10,448 12,630
Discontinued operation BARILREER
Interest expense SR - 143
Expenses relating to leases of B E 2 B E B RIRIR
short-term leases - 860

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED
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15 LEASES (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income

(c)

statement (Continued)

Depreciation expense included in cost of sales,
administrative expenses and selling expenses are analysed
as follows:

a0 A 5 W R BT

15 B @

(b) REFEWmREDNEE (B

ST ASHE RS (T B A R 8 & RS2 RO 3T
EEROTUT

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiLEE

2023 2022
== | F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHET

Continuing operations FHRIRE R
Cost of sales THE RS 6,195 5,926
Administrative expenses THER 18,527 17,713
Selling expenses HERS 4,186 3,455
28,908 27,094

The total cash outflow for leases in the year ended
31 December 2023 is HK$42,356,000 (2022:
HK$39,934,000).

The Group’s leasing activities

The Group leases various office premises. Rental contracts
are typically made for 1 to 8 years (2022: same). The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants.

RBEE_E_=F+_RB=+—BHLEE
MEEZIRE M AR%E542,356,00078 70
(T2 T4 : 39,934,000 7T) ©

(0 FEENHEEED
FERHEZEMRAEYFE -HESORE
BENFIEBE CTZ_F : 18R -AEH
A TEINMERZ2A] -

BFEH (E) BRAR “EC=FFR
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16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16 BR.EE

Patents and
capitalised
Customer software
listand ~ development  In progress Computer
Goodwill  Brand name contracts costs  technology software Total
ik
ERLER BRRELZ
GRS MR B BHBERME  HETREN BIEEY Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TERT TER TAR TET TET
At 1 January 2022 R-E--#—-B—-H
Cost A 127,154 4,892 13,309 29,508 6,538 30,996 212,397
Accumulated amortisation B4 g i = (4,892) (5,591) (25,312) (6,538) (30,996) (73,329)
Accumulated impairment loss REhRESE (113,256) - - - - - (113,256)
Net book amount REFE 13,898 - 7,718 4,196 - - 25,812
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z-“F¥+-B=+-H
tEE
Opening net book amount FNREEE 13,898 = 7,718 419 = = 25,812
Additions B = = = 3,478 = = 3,478
Amortisation % - - (777) (713) = = (1,490)
Exchange realignment ERER (1,082) - (579) (402) = = 2,063)
Closing net book amount FXREEFE 12,816 = 6,362 6,559 = = 25,737
At 31 December 2022 RZE-Z#+-RA=+-H
Cost A 116,228 4,511 12,273 30,594 = 30,980 194,586
Accumulated amortisation REHE - (4,511) (5,911) (24,035) = (30,980) (65,437)
Accumulated impairment loss RtRESE (103,412) - - - = = (103,412)
Net book amount RESE 12,816 = 6,362 6,559 = = 25,737
Year ended 31 December 2023 HEZZ-=F+ZRA=+-H
LtEE
Opening net book amount FNRERE 12,816 - 6,362 6,559 - - 25,737
Amortisation @3 - - (739) (745) - - (1,484)
Impairment (Note) B () (12,536) - (5,483) (2,818) - - (20,837)
Exchange realignment ERBE (280) = (140) (162) = - (582)
Closing net book amount FREERE - - - 2,834 - - 2,834
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+-HA=+-H
Cost A 112,539 4383 11,922 29,722 = 30,975 189,541
Accumulated amortisation Rt - (4,383) (6,476) (24,090) = (30,975) (65,924)
Accumulated impairment loss RibAERR (112,539) - (5,446) (2,798) - - (120,783)
Net book amount REFE - = = 2,834 = = 2,834
Note: et :

Due to the change in market condition and operating environment, goodwill
and customer list and contracts amounted to HK$16,371,000 arising from
the acquisition of Good Chain (Chongging) Technology Co., Ltd. under the

fintech services business segment and goodwill and patents amounted to
HK$4,466,000 arising from the acquisition of Beijing Xuanjia Technology
Co. Ltd under the payment and digital services segment were considered

to be fully impaired by management during the year ended 31 December

2023.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Amortisation expense included in cost of sales and

administrative expenses are analysed as follow:

16 BEEE ®

STASERARITHERNEHEERORINT:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiEE

2023 2022
“EBC=H B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TATT

Continuing operations FHRIRE R
Cost of sales & A AR 23 60
Administrative expenses TIHER 1,461 1,430
1,484 1,490

17 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

17 AT EF AEMMEENR D2 EME
=

As of 31 December
H#E+-B=+—8H

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Non-current asset ERENEE
Listed equity security outside Hong Kong ~ &R F R AE
(Note) (Bt5t) = 152,868
Note: HiaE

Listed equity security outside Hong Kong — Cloopen Group Holding

Limited (“Cloopen”)

The fair value of the American depositary shares (“ADSs”) is based on its
quoted bid prices at New York Time in NYSE and its carrying amount is

denominated in US$.

E#H1HEIN 2 L4535 % — Cloopen Group Holding Limited
(FCloopen )

EETFSER (TEETFSERN ) 2 AT ETRIER AR ZFT
RIBOREBEANBABISH  HREEUETHE

BFEH (E) BRAR “EC=FFR
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18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

18 AT ESH ARz EMEE

As at
31 December
n+=ZHA=+—H
IFFE
2023 2022
—E-= B HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current asset ERBEE
Unlisted investment fund outside EBBRINZIELTREESE
Hong Kong (Note (a)) (#t52@)) 82,321 93,077
Current assets MENEE
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong REBN LR AE
(Note (b)) (H15#b)) 834 980
Investments at FVPL outside EBEINE AT ESABRZ
Hong Kong (Note (c)) RE (H1aE(c) 226,051 -
309,206 94,057
Notes: otz

(@ Unlisted investment fund outside Hong Kong
The carrying amount of the unlisted investment fund is denominated in
RMB.

(b) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong
The fair value of the listed equity securities is based on their current bid
prices in an active market and their carrying amount is denominated in
HKS.

(c) Investments at FVPL outside Hong Kong

The carrying amount of the Investments at FVPL is denominated in
RMB.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recorded in
“other losses, net” in the consolidated income statement.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 LOAN RECEIVABLES

Material accounting policy

Loan receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the loan receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less provision for impairment.

When a loan receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
“credit impairment loss” in the consolidated income statement.

Loan receivables are amounts due from customers in the
ordinary course of the fintech services business and primarily
denominated in RMB.

(a) Aging analysis of loan receivables
The aging analysis of loan receivables based on the
payment due date is as follows:

a0 A 5 W R BT

19 FEIRE®

2R
FEWERN T ZERA B RRRER > FRIF
HAG3ERRERD > AR A FERES -
FERFABBERNENA RO EHEER
B> FILHRABRANRAIZE A0 SR E
BHEETRESE

ERWEREZKE > R EBARRIE AR
s - K2 ROy Fo i i sE S 2RR ST AR S UK
mRIMEEREBEIET -

RWERBNERMEHRBEBNE B XESR
BPERERIRER BERETEZUARE
g

@ MEWERZEIREEDHR
RIBEI AR B Z R E R EREE DA T

As at 31 December

r+ZA=+—A8
2023 2022
—E=HF TETTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current BPEA 1,498,174 2,637,486
1 to 3 months past due BE—Z=@AH 72,032 26,579
Over 3 months past due BEA=EA N 112,255 143,806
Loan receivables, gross FEINE RN 4E %R 1,682,461 2,807,871
Less: provision for impairment of W BT EREE
loan receivables (145,827) (160,246)
1,536,634 2,647,625

BERE chE) BRAT —Eoc=EEg
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19 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19 FERERR @
(@) Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued) (@ FBWERZIREDH (&)
The analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount AR SRR ARE(E L AER R U E R
and the corresponding provision for impairment of loan EREEESZORIT

receivables in relation to loan receivables are as follows:

As at 31 December 2023
R-E_=F+"HA=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B FIREER F=MEER #ast
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT TFTHERT FET TFTER

Loan receivables EWRER 1,498,174 72,032 112,255 1,682,461
Less: Provision for impairment of & | FEWERURE R HE

loan receivables (11,751)  (30,754) (103,322) (145,827)
Loan receivables, net FEWEFUFEE 1,486,423 41,278 8,933 1,536,634

As at 31 December 2022
RIB-—&+Z"A=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B—PEER FMER F=MREK wBEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THAx THET THERT  TET

Loan receivables ERE = 2,637,486 26,579 143,806 2,807,871
Less: Provision for impairment of & | FEWERURE R HE

loan receivables (21,985) (20,005) (118,256) (160,246)
Loan receivables, net R ETUFEE 2,615,501 6,574 25,550 2,647,625

1 94 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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19 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19 RS @
(@) Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued) (@ FBWRERZIREDH (&)
Movements for gross carrying amount of loan receivables: FEW S RRERMEARRRE ST ¢
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
FMEER FTRBE F=RE 45

HK$’000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TExT FAT FERT TFTER

As at 1 January 2022 RZIEBEZZF—HA—H 2,219,046 16,449 122,980 2,358,475
Addition/transfer B EE 7,132,365 28,145 89,930 7,250,440
Repayment =T (6,526,686)  (16,416)  (20,722) (6,563,824)
Written off 24 - - (40,166)  (40,166)
Recovery of loan receivables WS [B1 5f A i 55 Y P LKL
previously written off & - - 2,205 2,205
Exchange realignment PE S oA B (187,239) (1,599)  (10,421) (199,259)
As at 31 December 2022 RIE__F+_41
=+—H 2,637,486 26,579 143,806 2,807,871
As at 1 January 2023 NWZZ2EZ=F—H—H 2,637,486 26,579 143,806 2,807,871
Addition/transfer B EE 2,174,460 260,715 84,460 2,519,635
Repayment BER (3,245,912)  (213,631)  (49,727) (3,509,270)
Written off g - - (67,588)  (67,588)
Recovery of loan receivables Wit [B] 542 AT i 5 Y 8 Ui
previously written off & - (119) 4,390 4,271
Exchange realignment R (67,860) (1,512) (3,086)  (72,458)
As at 31 December 2023 R-B-=F+_"A4
=+—H 1,498,174 72,032 112,255 1,682,461

Bl (E) ARAT —s-==8 (195
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19 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a) Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued)

Movements for provision for impairment of loan

receivables are as follows:

19 EIRER @

@ EWERZEIREDHT (&
FEWETREREEBNT

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

SR FTRE E=MBR w5t

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT FHET FHET

As at 1 January 2022 R_B_"F—F—H 15,333 12,794 102,021 130,148

Addition/transfer BB 8,065 8,436 77,634 94,135

Written off s - - (40,166)  (40,166)
Recovery of loan receivables WS [B] 5 Al i 55 Y FE LKL

previously written off & - - 2,205 2,205

Exchange realignment EREE (1,413) (1,225)  (23,438)  (26,076)
As at 31 December 2022 W2 ZH&+"AH

=+—8 21,985 20,005 118,256 160,246

As at 1 January 2023 N _E _=F—HF—H 21,985 20,005 118,256 160,246

Addition/transfer BB 9,674) 11,727 52,646 54,699

Written off /6] - - (67,588) (67,588)
Recovery of loan receivables Wi [B] 5% A i O e s

previously written off =N - — 4,661 4,661

Exchange realignment BE D EE (560) (978) (4,653) (6,191)
As at 31 December 2023 WIEZ=F+"A4

=+—H 11,751 30,754 103,322 145,827

(b) Effective interest rates on loan receivables

The effective interest rates on loan receivables are normally

as follows:

Loans to borrowers

MBS RHEZEM

(b) BKRERZERMER
FERER 2 BIEFR—RIOT :

For the year ended
31 December
#E+_"_A=1+—HLEFE
2023 2022
= e
4% to 24% p.a.
FRx
4% FE24%

4% to 24% p.a.
FHZE
A%Z24%

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED
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20 SUBSIDIARIES 20 B AT

W_E2__Fk_EB_=F+"B=+—8"
FTENBREZLENT

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2022 and 2023:

Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Limited*

Place of incorporation/

establishment and Principal activities and

Name type of legal entity place of operation
ML/ Rt R
HERERR TEEBRERME
BJ ABS The PRC, limited liability  Provision of financial solutions, services
company* and related products in the PRC
REREE HE BRATY THEREERBARE REMEHER

company in the PRC
BB EREERITERAT: HE BRAT THERETLBERARR
Hangzhou PAX Electronic The PRC, limited liability ~ Manufacturing and sales of electronic
Technology Limited company power meters in the PRC
NEEEFRIERAR B BRAR THERERHE B BER
BT IBRAR- The PRC, limited liability  Provision of payment and digital services
(“Vbill OPCO*") company and fintech services in the PRC
B AERAR (BT ) HE BRAT ERERES I RBFRENR
ERHRES

Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises.

Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Limited is the subsidiary of i Z&kE
ERMARAT (“Hunan Yunrong”). The Company does not have
legal ownership in equity of Hunan Yunrong. Nevertheless, under
certain contractual agreements enacted among the registered owners
of Hunan Yunrong, the Company and a subsidiary of the Company, the
Company controls Hunan Yunrong by way of controlling more than
one half of the voting rights of it, governing its financial and operating
policies and appointing or removing the majority of the members of its
controlling authorities, and casting the majority of votes at meetings of
such authorities. In addition, such contractual agreements also transfer
the risks and rewards of Hunan Yunrong to the Company. As a result, it
is regarded as the subsidiary of the Company.

VBill OPCO is the subsidiary of EEMEITRHEZARAF (formerly
known as EEETREEBARAE) (“Chongqing JIM"). The
Company does not have legal ownership in equity of Chongging JIM.
Nevertheless, under certain contractual agreements enacted among the
registered owners of Chongging JIM, the Company and a subsidiary
of the Company, the Company controls Chongging JIM by way of
controlling more than one half of the voting rights of it, governing
its financial and operating policies and appointing or removing the
majority of the members of its controlling authorities, and casting
the majority of votes at meetings of such authorities. In addition,
such contractual agreements also transfer the risks and rewards of
Chongging JIM to the Company. As a result, it is regarded as the
subsidiary of the Company.

The PRC, limited liability  Provision of platiorm operation solutions

Proportion

Particulars of ordinary

of issued Proportion shares held

share capital/ of ordinary by non-
registered shares held by controlling

capital the Group interests

(%) (%)

Bafika/ rEAREZ EERIERIEZ
EREREE EERLL EERLA

(%) (%)

HK$100,000,000 100% -
(2022: same) (2022: same)

100,000,000 70 100% -
CEZ-F18R) C2--F:18R)

RMB100,000,000 100% S
(2022: same) (2022: same)

AR H100,000,0007 100% =
CEZ2HEER)  CEITHEUER)

RMB53,400,000 100% S
(2022: same) (2022: same)

AR 53,400,007 100% -
C2Z-F:8R) C2Z-F 18R

RMB199,900,000 80.04% 19.96%
(2022: 68.83%) (2022: 31.17%)

B #199,900,0007% 80.04% 19.96%

(CBZZF:6883%) (CEZTE:3117%)

BEAINEEERE-

HEEREREERMARATDANEEREEK
MARAR (THRERL) ZWBAR - AR E Ik
Biirm Rt m A E A # - A R ER
SEMERE A ERBEEARE —HMBABFTEIIL
ZETENHE AAREBEN R ERE+FR
R EHHMBEREERR TREERERZK
BAME  URNZEEMEELRASHR 1t
MIEGINR R - IS BRSO R SR ER
ZRARRERERFARE FILME/EATZ
BT

BTN RERGTRRARAR GIBEERGTTES
BHEARAR) (EEET) ZWBAT - AARIL
EBEREEAETRG EERE R AN REEE
BITEMER A ARBEAAT —HNB AR
U2 ETENR AARBBENERETE
FIRER EFEM B REERR TRAEREMS
ZREDME > URNZEREREE LRASH
R EMERIEEGT LN BRESNHRTRE
BAE1T 2 R R BEREE T AR E - FEIt - ERIIE
KRB ZAFEHBAR

BFEH (E) BRAR T =EFR
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20 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20 MIBATE @

@ EAIFERER

(a) Material non-controlling interest

The total non-controlling interest as at 31 December 2023
is HK$587,083,000 (2022: HK$935,687,000), of which
HK$600,940,000 (2022: HK$948,282,000) is attributed to
VBill (Cayman) and its subsidiaries (“VBill Group”), which
is considered to be material to the Group.

Significant restrictions of subsidiaries with material non-
controlling interests

Cash and cash equivalents of HK$1,915,461,000 (2022:
HK$1,370,704,000) of VBill Group are held in the PRC
and are subject to local exchange control regulations.
These local exchange control regulations provide for
restrictions on exporting capital from the country, other
than through normal dividends.

Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
the VBill Group.

Summarised balance sheet:

AR =F+ R =+ —HZIEERE
THHBEEA587,083,000087C (ZB - —4F
935,687,000/ 75) » EH600,940,0007 7T
(T4 © 948,282,000 7T) EAVBIll
(Cayman)REMB A B ((BEITHEREL) B
B AR mE AERBE A

HEEA IR IE D = W E L5~
ERE
BONERBZ2REESERRESEEY
1,915,461,0008 5 (Z &=
1,370,704,000787T) TH{E P EIFFA W 2RI
S IMNEBHIAIR  ILE EMINEEHIE
HRENZEHEEA (LIFEBEER
B) ZRHle

HEBBEA IR E R B LB 2R
BEHHZE

MBI NER M HERE
BESRRME

As at 31 December

®+=ZB=+—H
2023 2022
= B F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE 112,263 192,290
Non-current liabilities | E=N | (9,378) (4,854)
Non-current netassets JERENRAESE 102885 187,436
Current assets MBEE 7,881,867 5,961,024
Current liabilities REEE (5,003,046) (3,544,788)
Currentnetassets MERESE 2878821 2,416,236 _
Net assets BEESFE 2,981,706 2,603,672
Accumulated non-controlling interests Rzt IFEERRE L 600,940 948,282

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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20 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20 MIBAE @
(a) Material non-controlling interest (Continued) (@) EAIEITERRER (B)
Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with HBEEAXIETREm 2 ENE 2/
material non-controlling interests (Continued) BEKE (&
Summarised income statement: AR E !

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—RAiLEE

2023 2022
—T=HF —EIHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Revenue A 2,202,474 2,893,010
Profit before income tax PRSI AT EF 233,592 514,682
Profit for the year FRET 268,981 412,200
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax Hth2mEEE GORKRIE) (85,115) (214,875)
Total comprehensive income for the year, FAZEUNmABZE FOFRTRIE)
net of tax 183,866 197,325
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for R EEEGFENEE
the year attributable to non-controlling Wz, (B518) 42%8
interests 9,778 (31,615)

Summarised cash flows: BEREME !

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—RAiEE

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#xT FHET

(Restated)

Ge==dl))

Cash generated from operating activities 48 = EEHFTEIRE 1,318,625 125,514
Cash (used in)/generated from REEE) (FTA) /PRiSRE

investing activities (15,085) 18,981
Cash (used in)/generated from REEE) (FRA) Fri8R%

financing activities (978,903) 29,712
Net increase in cash and RERREEBEYIEMELE

cash equivalents 324,637 174,207

The information above is before inter-company U EBRAEERNABBHHR B o

eliminations.
SR (FE) ARAF “ECCEER
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21 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Material accounting policy
(a) Associated companies

(b)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Associated companies are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associated companies are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting (see (b) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in the consolidated
income statement, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable
from associated companies are recognised as a reduction
in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associated companies are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments

is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 41.8.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

21 RBEARZIRE

EXREFHER

(a) BELA

BEARIEAERANEAEARENME
EH NN A ER - ~EH
BERB20%E50%Z TR IR AT
KRB RMERRNZREEREDS
SHEARR (RTXD)) °

(b) #m%

RIFEEE L REV T LA ERER B
BETREUN GRS WS RN RS ER
DEHREN RO G SR MU
EREMEEWEREDAEEDGRESR
SHEMEEWEAEE - B WSS
NENRBED I EREEN R

EREEDEREEESHAARNRERS
BERHBBAGZER B (BEER
HithE g RIAEUGTRR) K> AEETH
E—IHRER RIEFAERAEMERRE
EEE AR

A H B S A TIRIT R MR BB
HFLUES > UAEERZ S EE

R BB FERE ERVRERE D
GEEARNKRENREFAHRER L E
P HETT T » DU (R B2 7 &2 [ P $RA 2 IY

=

REH—

PR g HEANRZKREREBERBENTE
41 8P EBERETTRUE R



21 INVESTMENTS

(Continued)

The balance recognised in the consolidated balance sheet is as

follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o WA 5 A B e

IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

21 FAEEE

REZIE @

As at 31 December

K+ZR=+—H
2023 2022
T =F = =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Associated companies: /NI
— PAX Global (Note (a)) —B BB (W3ta) 3,046,010 2,846,550
— Megahunt Technologies Inc —JKFIBERL RN BRAE
(“Megahunt”) (Note (b)) (DksRIEE)) (Ham)) 529,835 518,630
— Beijing Fangyun Technology Co., Ltd —IERBERARAF
(“Beijing Fangyun”) (Note (c)) (HERAE)) W) - -
- Beijing Zhongjin Yunchuang Software.,, ~—ItRAEZAIMHBRAE
Ltd (“Beijing Zhongjin”) (Note (c})) (MERAPE)) EHz2d) 24,489 28,565
— Beijing Suiyun Technology Co., Ltd —IERBEERZARAT
(“Beijing Suiyun”) (MERBEE) 2,644 2,781
— Shenzhen Guofu Yunlian Technology ABEEERERIRARAT
Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen Guofu”) (MTRYIEE) 3,272 3,369
— Cloopen (Note (e)) —Cloopen (#z%(e)) - -
3,606,250 3,399,895

The amount of share of results recognised in the consolidated

income statement is as follows:

REGE WS RES B EESRRUT

For the year ended

31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2023 2022
—ECCF BT F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Associated companies: NI

— PAX Global (Note (a)) —B =R (WWat@) 390,321 412,159
— Megahunt (Note (b)) —JKERIE 2 (WtaEb)) 15,971 (12,635)
— Beijing Zhongjin (Note (d) —IERRE (W52 d) (3,284) (782)
— Beijing Suiyun —IEREBEE (58) (213)
— Shenzhen Guofu —FHE (1) 4
402,949 398,533

Bkl (RE) BRAT —EC-=HER
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21 INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The amount of gain/(loss) on deemed acquisition and dilution

of interest recognised in the consolidated income statement is

as follows:

21

N

BREIZRE @&

MR ERm RS Z RN R
Wik, (B518) JFERMOT

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_HA=+—HLFE

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
Associated company: BEAT
— PAX Global (Note (a)) —BE BBk (B3 a) 1,973 (1,077)
(a) Investment in PAX Global (@ NEERKZEE
Set out below is an associated company of the Group as TYEIN B _FER_B_=F+_

at 31 December 2022 and 2023, which, in the opinion
of the directors, is material to the Group — PAX Global.
PAX Global has share capital consisting solely of ordinary
shares, which are held directly by the Group; its principal
places of business are in the PRC, Hong Kong, the United
States of America and ltaly.

Name
oy
PAX Global (Note i)

FEEL (i)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Place of incorporation
and kind of legal entity Particular of issued share capital
AL I E R
EEERER BRITRTHE
Bermuda, limited
liability company
BRE BRAF

shares of HK$0.1 each
1,070,214,0008% (ZZZZF !

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

1,070,214,000 (2022: 1,079,695,000) ordinary

1,079,695,000
i) SREE.IETZEER

A=+—HEEXRHFEEMEREX
ZAEEBEAR-BERK - AERX
HERAEERERFAENEBRENZ
ez HEZEEMB S PEFHE R
BERBREARH]

Nature of Effective Measurement
relationship interest held method
FBEZ
MRMEE EREE SERE
Associated  34.01% (2022: Equity
company 33.71%) method
BERT 34.01% ik
[ —c
33.71%)
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21 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
(Continued)

21 RBEAT)ZIRE (@

(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued) (@ NEERKZEE @

On 20 December 2010, as a result of the Group’s spinoff
of PAX Global to be separately listed on the Stock
Exchange, PAX Global became an associated company
of the Group. On the date when control ceased, the
Group's retained interest in PAX Global was fair valued,
and this give rise to the recognition of goodwill being the
difference between the fair value of the investment in PAX
Global and its share of net identifiable assets value of PAX
Global. As at 31 December 2023, difference between the
carrying value of the investment in PAX Global and its
share of net assets value of PAX Global mainly included
goodwill of HK$530,420,000 (2022: HK$530,420,000)
and adjustments to eliminate unrealised profits and losses
on transactions between the Group and PAX Global.

The movement on interest in PAX Global is as follows:

ATE—TE+ R +H BRAER

DB R Lz B 8RN 5
BRI AREE 2 BE AT o FRE 1T
FEEH AEENEERIFRE R
URAFE2 BEHRIEE BREE
BRERE N FEAHEBGEEEREE
FEZER N_ZE_=F+"A=1+—
B REERKZEEREERAEN
BERNEEFEZEZBFTECERSE
530,420,0007%8 75 (Z &~ £ : 530,420,000
BIT) o WETABRMUEEAEER T EIR
IR 3 AR IR F K518 o

RESRNEmZ E8T

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—RAiLEE

2023 2022

—Z== S-S

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET TFAET

At 1 January w—A—H 2,846,550 2,688,668

Share of profit FEAE &R 390,321 412,159

Share of other comprehensive loss ELEME IR (44,180) (137,468)

Share of other reserves e Bt (73) 185
Loss on deemed acquisition and RIEWEE RS D 2 1R P 4R

dilution of interest, net (Note ii) (K &Eii) (1,008) (514)

Dividend received Bl R (145,600) (116,480)

At 31 December ®W+=-—BA=+—H 3,046,010 2,846,550

BFEH (E) BRAR

B FER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21 INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

GLAE R e TS

IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued)

Impairment test for interest in PAX Global

As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of the investment
calculated based on the current bid price of PAX Global
at the balance sheet date is less than its carrying value. An
impairment test is performed to determine the recoverable
amount of the investment. The recoverable amount, which
was assessed by an independent valuer on a value-in-use
basis calculated by a discounted cash flow model, exceeds
the carrying value as at 31 December 2023.

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments to
provide funding relating to the Group’s interest in PAX
Global (2022: same).

Note i: PAX Global is principally engaged in the development and
sales of electronic funds transfer point-of-sales (“E-payment
Terminals”) products, provision of maintenance and
installation services (collectively, the “E-payment Terminals
solution business”).

Note ii: ~ During the year ended 31 December 2023, PAX Global
repurchased a total of 13,759,000 ordinary shares (2022:
11,092,000) on the Stock Exchange, of which 13,355,000
(2022: 11,092,000) ordinary shares were subsequently
cancelled during the year. Certain employees of PAX
Global exercised their share options granted pursuant
to a share option scheme set up on 2 May 2019. A gain
on deemed acquisition and dilution of interest of an
associated company of HK$1,973,000 (2022:
deemed acquisition and dilution of interest of an associated
company of HK$1,077,000) which includes a release of

loss on

reserve debited (2022: credited) to the consolidated income
statement of HK$2,981,000 (2022: HK$563,000) were
recognised in the consolidated income statement. The
Group’s interest in PAX Global increased from 33.71% to
34.01% accordingly.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

21 RBEATZIRE (@

@ MREERKZKE (@

REEIRIKZ B 2 BE A

R ZE=F+-A=t+—H REZA
¥TE?§,@§EEEE.IEHZZ;ETJ§)\{%E+
B ORHEEREE - ETRENSSEETE
KEZPIU[C 48 Tf‘_;ﬁ:_ﬁﬂ— A
=+—H HBIGEMREREERE
SHETRAMIRR S RERAU S E 2 FTIR
O 2REEARE E

BERCEEN BRI ZETRMHES
ZRARBEREE CEZ"F 18R -

Msti: BERRTIBUFRERHEEFZAH
R (MBF 2 IRRIR)) Em » kIR fitisE
R R fRE (RTE B F I AKIRRR S 5
EH) e

Miztic: REE_T_=F+"A=+—H8ItE
B BEIRIKI I 22 PRl & 3£13,759,000
BR AR (T2 "4  11,092,0008%) » &
/113,355,0008% (T = — £ : 11,092,0008%)
TEREBNAEERNGZN AFREE
TERETERE_S—AFERA BRI
ZFERR ST B E IS W 2 B PR AE o AR (E U RS
Feigd—EEE A B e m 2 Wie1,973,000
B (CEIF  REREREE—H
B A BT 2 K5181,077,0008 7T) 4R
AWFRER (CET2FE A ZEE
2,981,0003 7T (ZZ = Z4F : 563,00057T)
PiRERmRARER AL ZEERE S
IREK 2 HERR FR33.71 % E34.01%°



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

a0 A 5 W R BT

21 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
(Continued)

21 REERATZIRE @

(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued) (@ NEERKZEE @

Extracted financial information set out below are the TYFEZzHHRERRES MR EAR
summarised consolidated financial information of PAX ZHAERIKGEMEERBIE
Global which is accounted for using the equity method.
As at 31 December
W+=-—B=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= TEC
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET AT
Current e
Cash and cash equivalents BeEMIREEEY 2,863,597 3,160,238
Other current assets HEMREHEE 4,689,624 5,012,776
Total currentassets RENE }_%__u_% ___________________ 7,553,221 8,173,014
Trade payables FEATBRTR (888,621) (1,699,530)
Other payables and accruals H A AT TR I K FE 517018 (563,338) (689,143)
Other current liabilities HtRngh&ad (36,856) (120,833)
Total current liabilities ’ﬁ@%%}_@% ___________________ (1,488,815) | (2,509,506)
Non-current JETRE
Assets BE 1,522,108 1,317,315
Liabilities =K (100,340) (74,973)
Net assets BEEFE 7,486,174 6,905,850
BBRI (FE) BRAS —z—=##8% (205



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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21 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 21 REEATZIRE @
(Continued)

(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued) (@ REERIKZEE @

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2023 2022

—ECC=F BT F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Revenue WA 6,709,324 8,062,702

Profit for the year FRmT] 1,165,103 1,268,203

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax ~ E1Z2mEEE (0RRIE) (128,042) (401,509)
Total comprehensive income FAZEWAREE FFRRIE)

for the year, net of tax 1,037,061 866,694

Dividends received from the BWEE B ZRKRE
associated company 145,600 116,480

206 ) HI SUNTECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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21 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES 21 REEATIZIRE @
(Continued)

(b) PRAEEZKE

(b) Investment in Megahunt

As disclosed in Note 35, upon the completion of the
transfer of the remaining of 8.37% of the issued share
capital of Megahunt on 23 May 2022, Megahunt
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and was
accounted for as an associated company of the Company.
Consequently, the financial results of Megahunt will no
longer be consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and its assets and liabilities
will be deconsolidated from the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. The Group accounts for its interests
in Megahunt as an investment in an associated company
initially at fair value and will shares the results of Megahunt
as an investment in an associated company using the
equity method going forward.

The movement of interest in Megahunt is as follows:

WM EE3sPTIRE R - "FHA
T+ = HEmR R EE BITRARN
BRT8.37%% > JKFIBER B AL A BB
BAB MERARABIN—REEE R T A
fRoHB  JLNIBEMNM B EER~Ea 0t
AFEBNGEMBREN HEEKRA
BTN EENGEMBRRTPEUSE
HoREBBHENIKAIBEZEAERN
—EERBZRE  F UATFEAR
HEeR D m AN —EEE A B2 RE
DEIKFIEENES

PRI E R B

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—RAiLEE

2023 2022

gz k-t 5

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHETT

At 1 January w—B—H 518,630 =
Recognition of investment in an PRHE—fE W‘J):@ﬂﬁéf

associated company upon disposal eS8 — R

of a subsidiary (Note 35(a)(i)) (#15E35(a)(i)) - 536,584

Share of profit/(loss) ’\15, 2, (B518) 15,971 (12,635)

Share of other comprehensive loss MG EMEEEE (4,766) (5,319)

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 529,835 518,630

BERE chE) BRAT —Eoc=EEg
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21 INVESTMENTS

IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

(Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Investment in Beijing Fangyun

The interest in Beijing Fangyun was initially measured
at fair value. The carrying amount was increased or
decreased to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and movements in other comprehensive income
or loss of the interest in Beijing Fangyun to the extent
the carrying amount of the interest in Beijing Fangyun
reduced to Nil due to losses, after the initial recognition.
As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s share of loss of
Beijing Fangyun exceeded its interest in the ordinary
shares of Beijing Fangyun. As at 31 December 2023,
the unrecognised share of loss of the interests in Beijing
Fangyun is HK$3,086,000 (2022: HK$2,947,000).

Investment in Beijing Zhongjin

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
acquired 20% of the issued share capital of Beijing
Zhongjin, which is principally engaged in the provision
of fintech services business, at a purchase consideration
of approximately HK$31,801,000. A representative from
the Group has been appointed to serve on the board of
directors of Beijing Zhongjin. The Group accounted for
its interest in Beijing Zhongjin as an investment in an
associated company using the equity method.

Investment in Cloopen

During the year ended 31 December 2023, two of the
Group’s representatives were appointed to serve on
the board of directors of Cloopen, which is principally
engaged in providing integrated communication services
based on cloud computing technology. Upon the
appointment effective from 30 November 2023, the Group
ceased to recognise its interest in Cloopen as FVOCI. On
the same date, the Group accounted for its interest in
Cloopen as an investment in an associated company using
the equity method going forward.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

21 FAHE

(o)

(d)

(e)

BREIZRE @&

RIERAEZRE

IR A ENESNTIRAFEE R
IREEUERAEEEGIER S EREN
BEakEtEEmBEREEES) TEE
LR Bt RS ERENIREERESE
BAZR RN _B_=#+"HB=+—8"
AEBEGILRAENGEEBBENRIER
HEZERNESE KB _=F+_H
=+—H kEBNEGILR S EERE

$8433,086,000 BT (ZE T 12,947,000
BIT) ©

RIERHREZRE
BHETZE_—HF+ZA=+—HILFE"
AEBMPBEILRPEEEITIRARN20% > 3%
REFENERESREIEREER W
BEC(E4931,801,000/8 T o AEE —ZRE
BEZTALRTEMNEETERE AE
BERBERABENIER PSR IR
—EERE 2B AR

R CloopenZ & &
BE_Z_—F+_B=+—HLFE>
KEBMBMA R REZER CloopenlIES
F1ER > CloopenT BN FEN E st E il
RHEMBARB -NEAR T =
+—A=+HEEY AEETHERH
T Cloopenfy# A1 A FEF ARMPE
Wk o 1A H > A& ERLE R CloopeniV
mHBRAEDERNEERAT ZREA
fRe
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22 INVENTORIES

o WA 5 A B e

2 78

As at 31 December

nr+-A=+—H
2023 2022
—_E=F B2 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Raw materials E A7 8,524 6,739
Work in progress & m 9,030 7,653
Finished goods SRl om 1,920 4,340
19,474 18,732

The cost of inventories from continuing operations recognised
in cost of sales amounted to HK$57,785,000 (2022:
HK$21,527,000), which included provision for inventories of
HK$1,942,000 (2022: reversal of provision for inventories of
HK$4,801,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the cost of
inventories from discontinued operation recognised in cost of
sales amounted to HK$135,429,000.

R EMAER 2 HESEER 2 FEMAE
57,785,000/87TC (ZZE 24 : 21,527,000/87T) »
BIEFEEE1,942,00087T (CE-_F 78
P f5#5[014,801,0007 7T) ©

BE_ZE__HF+A=+—HIFE 1
EMARRATERIEEEEREF 2 FERE
#5135,429,0005 7T

BERE chE) BRAT —Eoc=EEg
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Material accounting policy

Trade and bills receivables including retention money
receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less provision for impairment.

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
“credit impairment loss” in the consolidated income statement.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i o W B R B e

23 FEARTR R PRI R 15

BEREFHER

FEWERFR W R (BERWRES) DN H
BEEBEETMHEEE R RMRBMERS
P 2 7R o i FE U BR AR R ELth FE W RRIR TR 511
E—FHUN EEXBEBLEBRRAN MR
RERE)) ADERRBEE TR 255
IERBEE-

ERATERDRE EEFRGBRAERYY
HEREYERR (B2 EARRMERDRIRIN - A&
B ARYERT SEREIENRERE ALt
Hig G U BRM R A BN AR ER H

=
==

2 FE YRR ART AT UR OB > 5% s BRAE MR R IR AR B
HERP M - H2 WD R RIS ERAIET A
e WmRPNIEERERER

As at 31 December

m+Z-A=+—H
2023 2022
—ECC=F BT F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
Trade receivables (Note (a)) FEURBR TR (B75E@) 187,243 181,963
Bills receivables (Note (b)) FEUR SR (BaEb)) 5,830 4,850

Less: provision for impairment of L ERWCRIERE R E (W)

receivables (Note (c)) (16,018) (16,497)
177,055 170,316

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23 FEURERFR B FEUNEYE (@)

SREEEAEATERS - BUCRR KBRS
ZIREESDUTIIERSIE

The carrying amounts approximate their fair values. The
carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

As at 31 December

nr+-A=+—H
2023 2022
—ECC=F BT F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
HK$ B 12,880 25,759
RMB AR 139,285 120,884
Us$ E7T 22,946 17,878
Macanese pataca (“MOP”) HPTHE (DRFPIE) 1,920 5714
Singapore dollar (“SGD”) i o (TFrAnTTl) 24 81
177,055 170,316
Notes: et
(@ Trade receivables (@ FEUERRR

FEBBTEZEFAZEER—KRBEIE180ET
%o TRIGUT A MIFH Z FEUERFRERE DI T ¢

The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors normally range from 0 to 180
days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables primarily based on
invoice date was as follows:

As at 31 December

m+Z-B=+—H
2023 2022
=k k- S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current to 90 days BIEAZE90H 145,541 143,537
91 to 180 days 91E180H 13,989 4,844
181 to 365 days 181E365H 3,463 8,748
Over 365 days 365 E 24,250 24,834
187,243 181,963

RIS =F+"A=+—0 BHRERXTIERE
WHRE#3,191,000%8 7T (ZZ 24 © 5,151,000/
70 (SR FE T HEEF B S OTIBLI10%E20%
(CEZZF 1 10%E20%) » ZEREZRELHR
—RE—F-R_Z_=F+"_A=+—H &
BB EAMRERE AR U L ERRES A
1,337,000 (Z 2= =4 : 1,257,000;870) ©

As at 31 December 2023, trade receivables included retention money
receivables of HK$3,191,000 (2022: HK$5,151,000), which represents
approximately 10% to 20% (2022: 10% to 20%) of the relevant
contract sum granted to certain customers in the PRC that have a
retention period of normally one year. As at 31 December 2023, the
retention money receivables aged over 365 days primarily based on
invoice date amounted to HK$1,337,000 (2022: HK$1,257,000).

BERE chE) BRAT —Eoc=EEg
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23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23 FEWERFR B FEIREE @

Notes: (Continued) izt @

(b) Bills receivables b ERERE
ZAERIEEIAE AL RANEA ZRTRRE iR A
ERRKREEZ FIRERAOT

The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity dates
within six months. The maturity profile of the bills receivables of the
Group is as follows:

As at 31 December

(©

R+ZR=+—H
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Falling within 90 days 908 A 588 2,381
Falling within 91 to 180 days 91E180H 5,242 2,469
5,830 4,850

Impairment and risk exposure

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring ECL
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.
To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics. Future cash flows for each group
receivables are estimated on the basis of historical loss experience,
adjusted to reflect the effects of current conditions as well as forward
looking information.

Movement on the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as

follows:

© BERERE
FEEEAEEVBREERFRBEHEHER
HIEEESE > sl A B BRTR L B 2 TR ARG 1R 1
e B ERREERR BUIRREREHRREE
BB - S EBRIENRRIRERETR
BE LB IRGRMAE > X IFH B LUR bR E AR
DR AR BRI 2 o

FEUCERFUR B R FHEFINT

For the year ended
31 December

BE+"_A=1+—HLEE

2023 2022

ZEI=HF TR TF

At 1 January w—A—H 16,497 9,403
Credit impairment loss, net EERERE SR (300) 8,044
Exchange realignment PE R AR (179) (950)
At 31 December n+=ZB=+—H 16,018 16,497

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the R|RE BB 2R ANEERRT LR RN
REZREE AEBRYESEEMIERRERE

does not hold any collateral as security fRo

carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned above. The Group

21 2 HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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a0 A 5 W R BT

24 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED 24 1##timAstE HithEmEE
COST

As at 31 December

®W+=-BA=+—H
2023 2022
== | F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Current portion ik kb
Deposits and other receivables ¥ < Ko ELfhFE U FR I8 170,845 69,648
Non-current portion FERBNER S
Deposits & 2,070 4,064
172,915 73,712

IREEREATERE - IFRBEDIERT
EWAER-ZHENAHEZEMEREE
ZIREEDUTIIERSIE

The carrying amounts approximate their fair values. The
discounting impact of non-current portion is insignificant. The
carrying amounts of other financial assets at amortised cost are
denominated in following currencies:

As at 31 December

®+ZB=+—H

2023 2022
TET=HF BT HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
HK$ BT 2,328 7,544
RMB AR 133,168 61,711
US$ =T 32,107 795
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) HE (THE) 3,803 3,620
Others Hith 1,509 42
172,915 73,712

As at 31 December 2023, the impact of ECL is immaterial to N _E_=F+"_A=+—H REEEEEB

the Group (2022: same).

N EHAERTRER (CEZ_F (R -

BFEH (E) BRAR

—=—=

=

iR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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25 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

25 HitURHHEE

As at 31 December

n+=ZHA=+—H
2023 2022
—ZE-= B _F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Prepayments AR 24,347 41,360
Value added tax receivables JE Y {E 7R 2,898 8,191
27,245 49,551

26 SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED
BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

Material accounting policy

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash

equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with

banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with

original maturities of three months or less.

Short-term bank deposits

FERAIRITE X

26 FEHAIRITERR « R IRFIIRITHEER AR
RERREFEY

EXREHHER
mEREMBRTREARESEMEETR
RE RTERFERKREIHER=EE X
UTZEMEHRsERBRE -

As at 31 December

Restricted bank balances (Note i)
Cash and cash equivalents (Note i)

ZIRWISRITAEER (a2
RERFEFEY Watii)

R+=ZA=+—H
2023 2022
—E°= T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET
- 1,468
3,542,318 1,064,937
3,482,016 3,537,506

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED
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26 SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED
BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Notes:

U]

(if)

In accordance with the notice issued by the Payment and Settlement
Department of the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC"), effective from 14
January 2019, all customer reserve accounts held by the third-party
payment institutions were to be cancelled and the customer reserves
were to be deposited in a dedicated deposit account maintained
centrally by a designated agency. Transfers of funds under this bank
account are governed under certain measures implemented by the
PBOC and hence these customer reserves are restricted in nature. As
at 31 December 2023, the relevant amount under the restricted bank
balances was HK$3,332,241,000 (2022: HK$775,809,000) and are
denominated in RMB.

The remaining amount under the restricted bank balances as at
31 December 2023 of HK$210,077,000 (2022: HK$289,128,000)
represents funds deposited in bank accounts designated for operating
the Group’s cross-border payment business.

Restricted bank balances are denominated in the following currencies:

a0 A 5 W R BT

26 FEHASRITIERR « RIRHIIRT
RERFEFEY @

THREERA R

(i) BEFEARRT (PEARET) IAEERE
HE B2 NF—A+NEE $=1%
T ERENMAEST R HESRPRERE BR
FREcBEFERRIEERBNERTRIRA
FoZIRTIRAPMNESERT PTEARBITENR
NETHEEES ALZETL#ESLAE 2R
MBI =F+"A=+—8 > ZRHIRITHE
FRBITERE S A3,332,241,00058 T (CE - F :
775,809,000/ 7T) » WA RHEFIE

Eﬁ:z:_i—k B=+—8 > ZRHIRTLE
BRB9ER T £%8210,077,0008 T (2 -
289128000/%7@ IERIEERITIRATFEAR
PIRERERBR T EBNES

ZIRFISRITAEERIZU T EBIIE ¢

As at 31 December

®W+=ZHA=+—H
2023 2022
—EBI=HF T THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
HK$ BT 3,727 9,325
RMB AR® 3,340,911 801,710
us$ E7T 101,534 157,412
EUR BT 54,195 71,492
GBP R 32,394 18,516
JPY H 6,534 6,482
Czeoh Koruny (“CZK") el (MR sEA) 1,952 =
Others HAth 1,071 =
3,542,318 1,064,937

As at 31 December 2023, there is no bank deposits with original
maturities within three months which are placed as guaranteed
deposits for tenders included in cash and cash equivalents.

As at 31 December 2022, bank deposits with original maturities within
three months which are placed as guaranteed deposits for tenders
included in cash and cash equivalents was HK$3,142,000.

(i) M-T=F+"A=+—H RERREZEY
AL EBERREMEFEFARISRERFRRS
=BARRZRITER

RIBEZZE+ZA=+—H ReEREEEY
BEREEMEEFARERSKEIRA=EA
M Z $R1TTERR 3,142,000 BT o

Bl (E) ARAT —s-==8 (215
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26 SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED 26 $5HRSR1TERN - ZIRHISRITAS BRI
BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND CASH RERIREEEY @
EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) W15t - ()
Funds of the Group amounting to approximately HK$2,268,469,000 (2022: REBELL52,268,469,0008 7 (T2 -
HK$1,487,945,000) are kept in the bank accounts opened with banks in the 1,487,945,0007870) TF AR EIRITRIR 2 IR1TERP  [BH
PRC where the remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control. BEEERINEET]
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies: REXFCEBEYRUTERIIE
As at 31 December
w+ZB=+—H
2023 2022
—EZ= I THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
HK$ BT 569,390 672,393
RMB AR 2,452,654 1,891,854
uUs$ ET 456,668 967,971
GBP S 547 17
SGP T 2,411 5,271
IPY B 28 -
Others Hih 318 =
3,482,016 3,537,506

@ HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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27 SHARE CAPITAL

a0 A 5 W R BT

27 Bg7s

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each
SREE0.0025B T HiER

No. of shares HK$'000
[ AT
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, W2 —_F—H—H-
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 TE-—F+—-BA=+—8-
“E=F—F—Hk
“E=F+"HB=+—H 4,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRHR:
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, N B _F—H—H-
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 :7::5—1— B=+—8-
BT F—HHK
“E=F+ZA=+—H 2,776,833,835 6,942

Notes:

(@

Share award scheme

The Company operates the Share Award Scheme for the purpose
of recognising and rewarding the contribution of certain eligible
participants to the growth and development of the Group and
providing incentives in order to retain them for continual operation and
development of the Group and attracting suitable personnel for further
development of the Group. Eligible participants of the Share Award
Scheme include the Group’s full-time employees, and Executive and
non-Executive Directors. The Share Award Scheme became effective
on 29 June 2021 and unless otherwise amended or terminated, will
remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years from that date.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a total of 18,339,000
ordinary shares (2022: 31,995,000) were purchased by the trustee on
the Stock Exchange by utilising the funds allocated by the Board out of
the Company’s resources and be held in trust for the relevant eligible
participants until such Shares are vested in accordance with the rules
of the Share Award Scheme. The aggregate purchase consideration is
HK$9,793,000 (2022: HK$29,899,000) and the related expenses is
HK$33,000 (2022: HK$101,000). No shares purchased by the trustee
have been cancelled during year ended 31 December 2023 (2022:
Nil).

et -

@

B 82 m st El

KRB EF—ERMD RS SERETEER
DREDFEENRRRERFIEEMTUSER
BE WIRERBMUISBZEAL S AEEERE
EERER; REDRSIGBASHDEERE—
FER - ZRNHEFABZCERSHEVRELE
B 2BESURIITRIFNITES - ZR7M R
SRR T —F B+ NBEX BRIF&RH
SRR BITEFT AL BRI B Z B 5
HARMD AR AR A A

HEZ=F+"A=1+—HIFE ZTTAE
BEAEARTERAENESHRBHRFTEBAS T
18,339,000/ & 38R (ZZ = Z4F © 31,995,000/ 7T)
WEEARAEMEER2HERE BEEAM
RADIRIBERMDERTERAEB A EEBERE
739,793,000/ 7T (ZF 4 : 29,899,000 7T) K18
BERES 233,000/ 7T (T2 4 : 101,00087T) o &

EZ-HF+R=+t—HLEFE REALE
EHERBARDG CE_F 8 -
BFEH (E) BRAR “EC=FFR
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27 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 27 IR#s (@
Notes: (Continued) Mz - (&)
(@ Share award scheme (Continued) (@ BRISIZENETEl (B
Details of the ordinary shares purchased by the trustee on the Stock ﬁ§_$:_¢+ A=+—HLEE  ZEAR
Exchange during the year ended 31 December 2023 are as follows: TFTBAZ ERRFBENT ¢
Number of ~ Highest purchase Lowest purchase
ordinary shares price per price per
purchased ordinary share ordinary share
SREER SREER
BAEEREE E=BEE RIEBEE
Thousand shares HK$ HK$
T BT BT
Month of purchase BARMG
August 2023 “E=F)N\A 870 0.56 0.50
September 2023 :g: =%FNA 4,224 0.66 0.54
October 2023 —TT=F+A 6,891 0.56 0.52
November 2023 “ET=F+—AR 942 0.55 0.47
December 2023 —E-=F#+"H 5,412 0.55 0.48
Total &t 18,339
Details of the ordinary shares purchased by the trustee on the Stock BHE_ZE__F+__A=+—HLEFE 25
Exchange during the year ended 31 December 2022 are as follows: ANREEIFTEA 2 SRR IBINT ¢
Number of Highest purchase Lowest purchase
ordinary shares price per price per
purchased ordinary share ordinary share
SREER SREER
BALREREE E=HEEE RIEEEE
Thousand shares HK$ HK$
TR BT BT
Month of purchase BAR®
June 2022 A= 22,341 1.00 0.92
September 2022 —m- &8 2,598 0.87 0.83
October 2022 B "F+8 7,056 0.89 0.78
Total CL 31,995
On 17 November 2023, a total of 31,995,000 ordinary shares (2022: RIE=F+—AB+tH  aHEARAR
Nil) were granted to grantees and the share-based payment under 131,995,000/ E3EK (CS & 1 &) » ARt
Share Award Scheme of HK$15,038,000 (2022: Nil) was recognised in R B I am R ST IR 10 BB nfilJIETEﬁuHx%%
consolidated income statement. ERERY{I015,038,0008 70 (ZZB - 4 © ) o
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27 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(©

Share options of the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme since 2021 (the “2021
Scheme”) for the purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating
talented employees of the Group or associated companies (including
executive and non-executive directors) in order to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group. Eligible participants of the
2021 Scheme include the Group’s full-time employees, executive and
non-executive Directors. The 2021 Scheme became effective on 18
May 2021 and unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
valid and effective for a period of 10 years therefrom until 18 May
2031. No share option was granted under the 2021 Scheme.

Issuance of share option of a subsidiary

On 15 January 2018, the directors and shareholders of VBill OPCO
have passed a resolution to conditionally grant options to several
management of VBill OPCO pursuant to the terms of a share option
scheme for VBill OPCO (the “VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme”) a
right to subscribe up to approximately 12% of the enlarged registered
and paid up capital of VBill OPCO at the exercise price of RMB12.51
for every RMB1.00 in the registered and paid up capital of VBill OPCO
within a period of 3 years from the date of grant. The share options are
fully vested as at 31 December 2018.

The VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme was subsequently amended
to extend the exercise period from 3 years to 6 years during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

a0 A 5 W R BT

27 RR7s (@

sz :

(b)

©)

BFEH (E) BRAR

(®
e YNCiPA g
FRBB =T —FREF—RBEKESE (=%

Z—F5tE) - 5TERS| BB A5 SR
AREFRZEE UBAERRRERKERE

B —E_—FHEZOERBEEQELAEE
EREESURITRIFNTES  — 2 - —F&t8
KRB —FHB+/N\BER BRIFAETBI51TE

HEEST BRIRBZERE_R=—FHR+N\
BIE+FHRBNABURER - MERE-T - —
FEBR B EMERE-

BIT—HNB AR Z EikE
RIF-NF-A+EH BIUNEERRFEE
BRER UABTANZSRERBEREREE
Bt - IRIRPETT I RE AR T B (TRETT I BB AR IEST &)
BOfER > ELAR P AR BT IR B BRE 5t = AR
RETAEMRSRERATEARKT.007TEEA
R 812,51 7THTT B » SRBBRETT (AR IR AT M R
EREREMNI2% R _B—N\F+-B=+—8"
fBIREL MRS

BONBRESBBERNBE_Z 25+
=+—HIEFEEEST URTEHB=FLTRE
TN

B FER
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28 RESERVES 28 f#f&
Share Treasury  Contributed Other Exchange Retained
premium shares surplus reserves reserve earnings Total
(Note (i) (Note (ii))
RiVEE  EERE  BRRE Rt EREE  RERA &t

(Haza) (Hiatin)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000
FHERT FHRT FHT FHERT FHT FHT FHERT

AT January 2023 R-E-=£—-F-H 1,063,153 (30,000 168434 (2,676,471) (86,544) 8,173,081 6,611,653
Profit for the year EpiET - - - = S 463,432 463,432
Exchange differences on translation of B EIMIBABEEZ

foreign subsidiaries ERERE - - s = (72,506) s (72,506)
Share of other comprehensive EEBERRZAtEE

loss of associated companies ] - - - - (49,913) - (49,913)
Release of reserve upon dilution of 5 i NGl d

interest in an associated company B G - - s = (2,981) s (2,981)
Change in value of a financial asset BATESARMEZE G

at fair value through other ZEREEBEED

comprehensive income - - - (152,846) - - (152,846)
Share of other reserves of FEMEE AT 2 HtGEE

an associated company - - - (73) - - (73)
Purchase of the Company’s shares RRHEEHBBALAT

for Share Award Scheme (Note 27) Btn (Hat27) - (9,826) = = = = (9,826)
Issuance of shares under Share Award  TRIZRRID S EDSHEI ST RS

Scheme (Note 27) (Wiz27) . 30,000 - , - (14,962) 15,038
Deemed acquisition of shares of NG L))

subsidiaries

~Vbill (Cayman) (Note 33) —Vbill (Cayman) (#75#33) = S S 381,304 3,252 = 384,556

~Other —Hft - - - (860) 59 - (801)
Deemed disposal of shares of RIEELERB AR

subsidiaries (Note 34) (Hizt34) - - - (1,595) 870 - (725)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 35) HE—RINBAR (#at35) - s s = (1,015) = (1,015)
At 31 December 2023 RIBZ=#F

+=B=+-8 1,063,153 98260 168434 (2450541)  (208778) 8,621,551 7,183,993

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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28 RESERVES (Continued)

a0 A 5 W R BT

28 f#fE @

Share Treasury  Contributed Other Exchange Retained
premium shares surplus reserves reserve eamnings Total
(Note (i) (Note (i)
RO EE EERHG BB HitfEE ERHHE REBRF At
(Fvzt) (M)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER FER TER TER FER TERT
At January 2022 R-E-—£-F-0 1,063,153 - 168434 (304019 255129  7233,665 6,416,362
Profit for the year EpiET - - - = = 939,416 939,416
Exchange differences on translation of }@%\}@%WEQEEEZ
foreign subsidiaries REHE - - = = (187,029) = (187,029)
Exchange differences in relation to E%ﬁt“*ﬁ%i’“}’%izﬁ
discontinued operation =5 - - s = (10,249 s (10,249)
Share of other comprehensive EEEE ATz Ht2E
loss of associated companies ] = = = (815) (144,958) - (145,773)
Release of reserve upon dilution of b i g NGkt d
interest in an associated company Bz #E - - - - 563 - 563
Change in value of a financial asset B ;Tﬁ#]\ﬁﬁﬁé@ﬂ&
at fair value through other ZERMEEBES
comprehensive income - - - (476,843) - - (476,843)
Share of other reserves of AL A B 2 ik
an associated company - - - 185 - - 185
Purchase of the Company’s shares RRAERHBBALAT
for Share Award Scheme (Note 27) fin (f27) - (30,000) - - - - (30,000)
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAR (H3235)
(Note 35) - - - 105,021 - - 105,021
At 31 December 2022 gt
+ZA=+—-H 1,003,153 (30,000) 168,434 (2,676,471) (86,544) 8,173,081 6,611,653
Notes: o2

(i) The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share premium account
of Hi Sun Holdings Limited (“HSHL") acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 17 October 2001 as set out in
the circular to the shareholders of HSHL dated 9 August 2001, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof.

() #EBzEHERFEASBERERAR (BB

B RRFEBHR -TZ—F)\BNLBZBRM
o REN_ZT-—F+ATLHETZEREAR

(TE4H) FrE 2 BB ER EBREERRM &
BiR BARBRMULIIAZ BHTROBEZEZH-

BERE chE) BRAT —Eoc=EEg
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28 RESERVES (Continued)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Notes: (Continued)
(i) Major items in other reserves are as follows:

—  the difference between the net proceeds from issuance of
convertible preference shares of subsidiaries and the amount
transferred to non-controlling interests upon their conversion into
ordinary shares in prior years;

—  the impacts from granting employees’ incentive programmes of
subsidiaries;

- change in values of the financial asset at FVOCI;

—  the initial recognition of the written put option liabilities (Note
33); and

- the recognition of gain on the deemed disposals of subsidiaries
(Note 34).

(iii)  PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net
profit to a reserve fund until such fund reaches 50% of the companies’
registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised upon
approval by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to
increase registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered capital.
As at 31 December 2023, retained earnings comprise of statutory
reserve fund amounting to HK$210,874,000 (2022: HK$162,912,000).

29 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR

PAYMENT AND DIGITAL SERVICES BUSINESS
AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Material accounting policy

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Payables are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value

and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023

28

29

f#E @

Hiat (@

(i) HMEFEEOTEEEHTIIMT

- RBTEEESRSEEREAETHEAR
AIRRESIR Z PSR S SRS E IR TR
it

- BHNEATZ R BNTE

— RBRAVESAHtEERGEZ EREEEES
#;

—  VIREIEHRLAEEE (§533) 5 K

— BSRERHEWBASMUE (FEE34)

(i) PEQBNBERABMAZ10%DEERHES  BEE
ZHBREINATFMERZ50%  EAERERL
HRAERIEBRTTAREHRTHEBIIEMAT
HEMEA HZHESREAEFNABEMEAR
225%KF - RIB=F+"_RA=+—H RER
M EBEEH#BEE210,874,0008T (CE - _4F .
162,912,0007 7T) °

ERMKREA RS T RHEFE
ARTE 5 2 (S R IE R ELfth FE (4 7R IR
R &5t RRIE

BEREFHER
BERAEASEBERTRMESEER
mBRBMES 2 EE - W TRIEFH B
A—EHUAN FEXBEBLEEBEIRN AR
RERE)) BARBERIBRRDER-T
A 27 RIERBEE.

FESBR R M FE (S TR A & 3% T (B ST »
HENBERA R A BHR A -
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29 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR 29 FE(IERFIRFEMNERE X RHFIE
PAYMENT AND DIGITAL SERVICES BUSINESS BR75 S 2 (IR R HthfE =B
AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS B FESHRRIE (@)

(Continued)

As at 31 December

R+ZB=+—H

2023 2022

—¥_= B F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Trade payables (Note (a)) FEFTERR (Hat(@) 596,415 642,446
Payables for payment and digital services ~ SZ{J KRB FILRREEF 2

business (Note (b)) FETFRIE (BY3EDb)) 3,591,920 965,787
Other payables and accruals (Note (c)) HAth FE S R IE K FE 5T IE

Htat(c) 932,745 967,734

5,121,080 2,575,967

Trade payables, payables for payment and digital services

business and other payables and accruals are denominated in

the following currencies:

R XA RBFERBEF ZBIREA
R B A TR e FE ST RRIR L T S ¥ 5IME

As at 31 December

m+=ZHB=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= BT HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET
HK$ BT 75,176 67,290
RMB AR 4,808,511 2,219,194
Us$ ETT 178,087 206,780
JPY = 10,337 3,741
EUR BNt 28,692 70,575
GBP i 13,823 8,363
SGD Frhnig o 1,341 24
Others H1th 4,113 =
5,121,080 2,575,967

B (FE) ARAT —s-=gax (223
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29 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR
PAYMENT AND DIGITAL SERVICES BUSINESS
AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(Continued)

Notes:

(@ Trade payables
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the ageing analysis of the trade
payables primarily based on invoice date was as follows:

29 FEIIRAKEA RS T REFIE
ARFE 75 2 R RRIE R HLAth (S 7R IE
R FESHRRIA @)

st -

@

FEATRRAR
RIZZ=ZFKRZZB-__F+-RA=+—H FZ&
RET AL 2 EABRTERE: IO T ¢

As at 31 December

®+ZB=+—8H
2023 2022
—E=HF 2T HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET
Current to 90 days BNEAZE90H 318,313 294,502
91 to 180 days 91E180H 110,708 194,648
181 to 365 days 181ZE365H 156,504 145,038
Over 365 days 3650 E 10,890 8,258
596,415 642,446

The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days.

(b) Payables for payment and digital services business
Payables for payment and digital services business mainly represent
payment received from the relevant banks and financial institutions on
behalf of the merchants. The amounts are required to be settled with
merchants upon the respective contractual settlement clearance dates.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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29 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR 29 FE(IERFIRFEMNERE X RHFIE

PAYMENT AND DIGITAL SERVICES BUSINESS ARTS R 15 2 FE AT R IR B ELfth FE R TH
AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS R FESTRRIA (&)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued): Hisz (&)
(¢) Other payables and accruals (0 HtEARIERESRIE
As at 31 December
®+ZHA=+—H
2023 2022
—F_= —B-F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Accrued staff costs and pension obligations fEst B TARKRIKEEE 256,214 234,408

Deposits & 35,154 42,546

Receipt in advance from customers (Note i) AL WENE B 2 I8 (ffati) 24,023 43,678

Advance from business channel partners KEEHRRESIERNRR 424,893 426,295

Others Hith 192,461 220,807

Total CL 932,745 967,734

Note: sz -

(i) A contract liability is recognised when a customer pays () BHEEREEEREDERBAR RERX
consideration, or is contractually required to pay consideration ARERSORERXINEESEERIMAR
and the amount is already due, before the Group recognises the WS - AEENGABEERBRRPHEIEAM
related revenue. The Group recognised its contract liabilities FERUERESHRIBIE TR A NaERTERN
under other payables and accruals as receipt in advance from WRERZHIE
customers in the consolidated balance sheet.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December RBEZZ_=F+"B=+—HILFE®ST
2023 that was included in the contract liability balance at the W5t AFF SN E BB Z A %340,177,000
beginning of the year amounted to HK$40,177,000 (2022: BT (CTZE T 168,939,000/ 7T) ©

HK$68,939,000).

BIERE (RE BRAS —z-=xa8 (225
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30 ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES 30 BEELFEES

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Material accounting policy

As part of its operational activities, the Group securitises
financial assets, generally through the sale of these assets to
structured entities which then issue securities to investors.
The Group holds all of the subordinated tranche notes, which
are not transferrable before both the principals and interests
of the priority tranche notes are repaid. The assets under
securitisation are used to repay the principals and interests of
the priority tranche notes first after deducting related taxation
and expenses, and the remaining assets under securitisation are
repaid to the Group and subordinated tranche notes investors.
The Group derecognises the transferred assets in full or in part
based on the extent of the risks and rewards retained over.
The Group evaluates the extent to which it transfers the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets to the other
party and determines whether it retains control while applying
the accounting policy in respect of asset securitisation. The
financial asset is derecognised when the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset. The financial asset continues to be recognised
when the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset.

Current BIHA
Asset-backed securities (Note)

BEEXFES W)

BEREFHER

FEREKERHT BERBOEHMEED
EEBTEIR BhEBEIRRREEET
EEXFES REMEERF L ~EERF
BEE2BRPEEXFES RRBEEXFRS
HERAREEZFRFTEENTENTRFE
FoRFLEEENRANBMRA 2%
ARENBERBEEIRESNAR BN
BRHBNEERAEBREMNREEZFE
SHEEMB TEERBEREESMEE
PRENERMDREZE BRI DK LR
RZEcMEE - TERIRSFTCEREENE
HHRE - AEECEBEBEHMERNESR
BEEMAERBNRHRNEEEE - E45H
BEEZTMEEMMAEEAD BERMNEER
B AERKIEIZENEE EAERRE
ZEREEPTAREARE D RBRMEIRE > &
EEiEERSREREE-

As at 31 December

w+=-—B=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= BT F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
= 265,058

ANNUAL REPORT 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES (Continued)

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 6 RBEITIEERBAERA
&) (Beijing VBill Commercial Factoring Co. Ltd.), a subsidiary of the Group,
has obtained approval from the Shanghai Stock Exchange for issuance
of asset-backed securities (the “ABS”) in the PRC under an asset-backed
securities scheme (the “ABS Scheme”). The ABS are backed by the Group’s
loan receivables and administrated under a trust. The maximum issue size
of the ABS Scheme is RMB1,000,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,230,000,000) and the ABS can be issued in not more than 15 phases
by 31 December 2023.

On 27 January 2022, the first phase of the ABS Scheme with an issue
size of RMB309,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$380,070,000)
was established. The ABS are classified into (i) priority tranche with total
principal of RMB277,000,000 (equivalent to HK$340,710,000) which are
listed and traded on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with expected maturity
date on 29 July 2022 and with coupon rate of 4.8% per annum; and (ii)
subordinated tranche with total principal of RMB32,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$39,360,000) with expected maturity date on 31 October 2022 and with
no coupon rate.

The principal and interest of the priority tranche ABS shall be repaid
monthly in six instalments. The holders of the priority tranche of the ABS
shall have priority in receiving coupon interest and repayment of the
principal amount of the ABS over the holders of the subordinated tranche
of the ABS. The subordinated tranche is not listed and was subscribed by 16
RIS B R AR Fl(Beijing Suixin Yunlian Technology Ltd.) (“Beijing
Suixin Yunlian”), a subsidiary of the Group.

On 20 May 2022, the second phase of the ABS Scheme with an issue
size of RMB362,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$419,920,000)
was established. The ABS are classified into (i) priority tranche with total
principal of RMB324,000,000 (equivalent to HK$375,840,000) which are
listed and traded on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with expected maturity
date on 31 January 2023 and with coupon rate of 4.87% per annum; and (ii)
subordinated tranche with total principal of RMB38,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$44,080,000) with expected maturity date on 28 February 2023 and with
no coupon rate.
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30 BEXFES @

sz -

BE_Z-_F+B=+—HULFE ERETHEE
RIEERAT (FEE—EHEBAR) BES LEESFRS
FREOHLE  IRIRE E R85t 8 ((EEZ RSS2
RHESETEESRES (BEZREE) BEXRH
FUAEBNERER AR UIREETETER &
EZ RSN E TR L IRA A K #1,000,000,0007T
(HHEH2491,230,000,000787T) » BEELFHFAINR_ZE
CT=F+ZRB=1+—BaEr a5 T

RIBEZZF—AZ++tH F—HEEXFESH
B BITRIES AR309,000,0007T FBER L
380,070,000787T) - BEZFHEFDANIEEEAAR
#%277,000,0007t (16E72340,710, 000/%713) HBLE R
REBBEARZMLETKREE BN S -_"FtA
ZHABEE ZEFAERIE ; Ri)ASBEAAR
#£32,000,0007¢ (FBE7239,360,000787T) IR AR B 4R » 85T
RIZ2ZZHF+A=+—HIH BERmFA=R-

BRBEEFEFNASRANERIZA D HAEEE
EERBEXESNFAEANENEEXRESRR
REBEASEHEBENRRBREEXFBFNEE
AN RIBBHIAR LT AXERNMBARILRBEREE
BRRARAR (DERFEEEH) B

RIS ZHFRAZ+RH F_HEEZFHST
BIpLIL BITRIES AR362,000,0007T FHERL
419,920,000/87T) - BEZFEHF DA RBEAARE
324,000,0007T (FHE72375,840,00057T) VBB L
,Em% XA L REE BN R = FE—RA=1+—
EH ZEENERLIE ; RiVESREAARE
38,000,0007T (HEE 144,080,000 7T) BIRARE 4 > FBEHT°
TEC=FTAT/\HEE EEmEAIE

BFEH (E) BRAR T =EFR
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30 ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

The principal and interest of the priority tranche ABS shall be repaid
monthly in six instalments. The holders of the priority tranche of the ABS
shall have priority in receiving coupon interest and repayment of the
principal amount of the ABS over the holders of the subordinated tranche
of the ABS. The subordinated tranche is not listed and was subscribed by
Beijing Suixin Yunlian.

On 30 December 2022, the third phase of the ABS Scheme with an issue
size of RMB303,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$339,360,000)
was established. The ABS are classified into (i) priority tranche with total
principal of RMB265,000,000 (equivalent to HK$296,800,000) which are
listed and traded on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with expected maturity
date on 30 November 2023 and with coupon rate of 5.00% per annum; and
(i) subordinated tranche with total principal of RMB38,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$42,560,000) with expected maturity date on 30 November 2023 and
with no coupon rate.

The principal and interest of the priority tranche ABS shall be repaid
monthly in six instalments. The holders of the priority tranche of the ABS
shall have priority in receiving coupon interest and repayment of the
principal amount of the ABS over the holders of the subordinated tranche
of the ABS. The subordinated tranche is not listed and was subscribed by
Beijing Suixin Yunlian.

Since Group holds all the subordinated tranches of the ABS, substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the loan receivables are retained,
the Group continues to recognise the loan receivable in its entirety and
recognises a financial liability for the consideration received.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the principals of the priority
tranche ABS under the first and the second phase of the ABS Scheme have
been repaid in full.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s asset-backed securities with carrying
amount of approximately HK$265,058,000 were collateralised by the loans
receivable of the Group with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$331,143,000 (Note 19).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the principals of the priority

tranche ABS under the third phase of the ABS Scheme have been repaid in
full.
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31 BANK BORROWINGS

32

Current
Bank borrowings

fE'fT{El A

31

RITEM

As at 31 December
r+ZA=+—8

2023 2022

—E-= B _F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

42,688 55,748

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, bank borrowings of the
Group born a fixed interest rates and carried at amortised
cost. The bank borrowings approximate its fair value are

denominated in RMB and are repayable within 1 year.

As at 31 December 2023, the bank borrowing is pledged
by buildings (Note 14) and right-of-use assets (Note 15)
and certain loan receivables (2022: secured by certain loan
receivables) of the Group.

AR =FRIEITF+ZA=+—8
REBBITERUBENZFE > WL
AREER c ME AN FERENRTERUARE
sHE > WEREREERE

R-ZB_=F+_A=+—HRITERHEL
EEET (f5114) REAREE (H5E15) K&
TREERFER CE22F  WETRKE
FRIEHRAR) o

DEFERRED INCOME TAX 32 IRIEFRISIA
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities FRIREFMSNEERSBZEBNT -
during the year is as follows:
Deferred income tax liabilities IRIEFRISIREE
2023 2022
IEIZE B E
Accelerated tax  Revaluation of Accelerated tax Revaluation of
depreciation  intangible assets Total depreciation  intangible assets Total
MERBRE  EREEESM Bt MERERE  EVEEER s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
At T January r—A—H 40 2,666 2,706 87 3,216 3,303
Credited to the consolidated income statement st ALREWEE 23 (2,369) (2,392) (47) (308) (355)
Exchange realignment ERER - (59) (59) - (242) (242)
At31 December Rr+ZR=+-H 17 238 255 40 2,666 2,706
Set-off deferred income tax assets BHEEFMEREE (238) (268)
Deferred income tax liabilities, R+ZA=+—A%
net at 31 December EEFRERaRsE 17 2438
SR (FE) BIRAR TEFFR
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets

32 IRIEFRISIR @
REFFEMEE
2023 2022
== B2 F

Revaluation of
intangible assets

Revaluation of
intangible assets

BREEEM ®BEEEEM

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAET FHT

At 1 January w—A—H (268) (334)
Charged to the consolidated income SFAGRER@mR

statement 23 47

Exchange realignment BE 52 5A T 7 19

At 31 December w+ZA=+—H (238) (268)

Set-off deferred income tax liabilities IREHIRIEFT IS IR B 18 238 268

Deferred income tax assets, net at 31
December

R+ZB=+—88
BIEFTISIRE EFE

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carry forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. As at
31 December 2023, the Group had unrecognised tax losses
to be carried forward to offset against future taxable income
amounted to HK$1,151,529,000 (2022: HK$922,208,000),
which were subject to agreement with respective tax
authority. These tax losses have no expiry date except that
HK$767,270,000 will expire from 2024 to 2028 (2022:
HK$623,585,000 will expire from 2023 to 2027). The potential
deferred income tax assets in respect of these tax losses which
have not been recognised amounted to HK$216,831,000
(2022: HK$175,921,000).

As at 31 December 2023, deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the withholding tax that would be payable on unremitted
earnings of certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounting
to approximately HK$494,019,000 (2022: HK$336,583,000)
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Z)\FHIRIE R (CR 2 623,585,00055 7T
N_E-=FFZ T CEHEEW N ZE
W@éﬂaiﬁ)ﬂ?ﬁiaﬁﬂ R ZERIER A
R B RIEPTSIN B E43216,831,00078 7T (=
T4 1 175,921,000587T) ©
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33 WRITTEN PUT OPTION LIABILITIES

Material accounting policy

The Group has written put options over the equities of
subsidiaries which permit the holders to put their shares in the
subsidiaries back to the Group at agreed prices on specified
dates over a three-year period. The amounts that may become
payable under the options on exercise are initially recognised at
the present value of the redemption amount within “written put
option liabilities” with a corresponding charge directly to equity
within “other reserves”.

The liability is subsequently accreted through finance charges
up to the redemption amount that is payable at the date at
which the option becomes exercisable. In the event that the
option expires unexercised, the liability is derecognised with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

The Group also has written put option over the equity of an
associated company which permit the holders to put their
shares in the associated company back to the Group at agreed
prices on specified dates over a three-year period. Such written
put option is classified as financial liability at FVPL and is stated
at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss.

a0 A 5 W R BT

33 BHRERERRE

EREFER
FEEEEHHMB AR RENLRE 2
FFRTA AR Z 8BRS E B R IBE B
HRMBABNRNBEAER - RIFTER
fe P SEFE (I RURRIB ) 1% T8 s A Bt &
&) PR BRIRIRIRERES AR ERINRE
TRt AR R

ZAREREBMEERLERSERBRE
BI1TE B AAFE (T RO BB () £ 58 - i B AR R B AR
178 QIR IERESR B R WARMERRE =t

AEETCE L —BEBE QS RENEH
> AFFAAR=ZFHBZSERSBNHE
BREANBMEADNRNBELAER -ZE
HELHIED ERRATESABRZSRE
&> WRAFEIER EMTEBEENEAUWE
TR I IR AR

As at 31 December

nR+-A=+—H
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THT

Current portion BPHEAER 5>

—VBill (Cayman) (Note (a)) —VBill (Cayman) (#75%(a)) = 852,188
— Megahunt HK (Note (b)) — KB BT b)) - 4,881
- 857,069
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33 WRITTEN PUT OPTION LIABILITIES (Continued)

33 BHVEERRE @

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2023 2022
8= T HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FHT
At 1 January *—HA—H 857,069 902,581
Unwinding of discount B - 58,385
Settlement (Note (a)) m:.% (/WE(&)) (852,188)
Derecogpnition (Note (b)) FESD (H1a2 b)) (4,863) (104,249)
Fair value loss on revaluation recognised in EATEM RZEMATEBE
profit or loss (Note (b)) (H1&£mb)) = 5,073
Exchange realignment BE 50 5 22 (18) (4,721
At 31 December R+=ZR=+—H - 857,069
Notes: hat -
(@ In 2019, the Company, certain shareholders of VBill OPCO, including @ RIZ-—AF AR -BETNETRE > SIES

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Shen Zheng (also acts as the director of VBill (Cayman)), Li Huimin,
Xue Guangyu and Ge Xiaoxia (collectively the “VBill Management
Shareholders”), ELECTRUM B.V. (the “VBill Investor”), VBill (Cayman)
and VBill OPCO entered into a subscription agreement (the “VBill
Subscription”), pursuant to which, the VBill Investor had agreed to
acquire approximately 11.21% effective shareholding in VBill OPCO
through subscription of the issued shares of VBill (Cayman) at a
subscription price of RMB588,000,000 or US$86,730,000 (equivalent
to HK$676,494,000). The VBill Subscription was completed on 12
November 2019.

As a part of the VBill Subscription, VBill (Cayman) granted a put option,
allowing the VBill Investor could request VBill (Cayman) to repurchase,
redeem and/or cancel all the VBill (Cayman)’s shares of the VBill
Investor at its discretion within 3 to 5 years after the completion date
of the subscription under certain conditions at an exercise price of
RMB588,000,000 or US$86,730,000 (equivalent to HK$676,494,000)
plus 8.0% interest per annum.

The fair value of the written put option liability was derived based
on the present value of the exercise price of RMB588,000,000 or
US$86,730,000 (equivalent to HK$676,494,000) plus 8.0% interest
per annum, by applying a discount rate of 8%, with the assumption
that the put option will be redeemable on 12 November 2022. The
written put option liability was denominated in US$ and classified
under current liabilities as at 31 December 2022.
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33 WRITTEN PUT OPTION LIABILITIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(Continued)

On 14 November 2022, VBill (Cayman) received from the VBill
Investor a put notice in relation to the exercise of the put option.
Pursuant to which, the VBill Investor requested VBill (Cayman) to
repurchase, redeem and/or cancel all of the VBill Shares held by
the VBIill Investor within 60 business days after the date of the put
notice at the consideration of approximately RMB755,550,000
or US$109,255,000 (equivalent to HK$852,188,000). The share
repurchase was completed on 14 February 2023, and the written put
option liability was settled.

Upon the settlement of the written put option liability, the Group's
interest in VBill (Cayman) increased from 85.99% to 100%.
Accordingly, the carrying amount of the noncontrolling interest
amounted to HK$384,556,000 was derecognised and the accumulated
currency translation differences of HK$3,252,000 was re-attributed to
the owners of the Company. Such adjustment resulted from the change
in ownership interest between the controlling and non-controlling
interest was recognised in the other reserve.

On 4 December 2019, the Company, Megahunt, Megahunt HK,
the management team members and certain investors entered
into a subscription agreement (the “Megahunt Subscription”).
The management team members include Li Li, Liu Zhan-li, Xu
Changjun, Xu Wensheng, Yang Lei, Hui Lok Yan and Song Jie. The
investors include Wonder Pax Technology (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd (a
subsidiary of PAX Global), L/ERRRCEREREERERLE
BE2ho (BEREH), SHMS (FTEFRAERE BERERL
(BIR&E) (collectively the “Megahunt Investors”). Pursuant to the
Megahunt Subscription, the Megahunt Investors have conditionally
agreed to subscribe for an aggregate of approximately 14.55% of
the enlarged registered capital of Megahunt at a subscription price
of RMB80,000,000 (equivalent to HK$87,441,000). The Megahunt
Subscription was completed on 30 March 2020.

As a part of the Megahunt Subscription, Megahunt HK granted a put
option, allowing the Megahunt Investors to request Megahunt HK
to repurchase all the Megahunt's shares of the Megahunt Investor at
its discretion from 31 December 2023 to 31 December 2025 under
certain conditions at an exercise price of RMB80,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$87,441,000) plus 8.0% interest per annum.
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34

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

GLAE R e TS

WRITTEN PUT OPTION LIABILITIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

Prior to the completion of the disposal as detailed in Note 35, the
carrying value of the written put option liabilities was approximately
HK$104,249,000.

As disclosed in Note 35, upon the completion of the transfer of the
remaining of 8.37% of the issued share capital of Megahunt on 23
May 2022, Megahunt ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company
was accounted for as an associated company of the Company. As a
result, the relevant written put option liability originally measured
at amortised costs and was derecognised with a corresponding
adjustment to equity. The written put option liability was reclassified
and recognised as a derivative financial liability at FVPL thereafter.
Such written put option liability was denominated in RMB and
classified under current liabilities as at 31 December 2022.

On 29 June 2023, upon the formal submission of the listing application
of Megahunt on the Science and Technology Innovation Board of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, the written put option was extinguished
as agreed between Megahunt HK and the Megahunt Investors. Such
written put option liability of HK$4,863,000 was derecognised and the
gain on derecognition of the written put option liability was recorded
in “other losses, net” in the interim condensed consolidated income
statement.

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SHARES OF A SUBSIDIARY

In November 2023, VBill (Cayman), VBill Management
Shareholders and CodeOne Data Limited (“CodeOne”) (a
subsidiary of the Group) entered into a subscription agreement
(the “CodeOne Subscription”),
(Cayman) and the VBill Management Shareholders had agreed
to subscribe for and CodeOne agreed to allot and issue
ordinary shares at HK$4,000 and HK$12,893,000 respectively.
The CodeOne Subscription was completed on 1 December
2023. Upon the completion of the CodeOne Subscription,
CodeOne remains as a subsidiary of the Group. The Group
was deemed to have disposed of approximately 2.24% of
CodeOne, resulting in a decrease in shareholding from 82.28%
to approximately 80.04%.

pursuant to which, VBill
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34 DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SHARES OF A SUBSIDIARY 34 {HR{EHE—RIMEBATRG @

35

(Continued)

Loss on deemed disposal of shares of CodeOne Data for the BE_Z_=—F+_B=+—HLLFE RIF

year ended 31 December 2023 is calculated as follows:

tlj’gm iﬁ%%ﬁféﬁﬂﬁ RUEIRATEIT ¢

For the year

ended
31 December
2023
BE
+-A=+—H~
IEFE
HK$'000
FHETT
Proceeds received from the CodeOne Subscription BMIERBEEWE Z FrEmIE 12,893
Less: recognition of non-controlling interests i HESRIF IR (13,618)
Add: proportionate share of accumulated currency m: A DMER RSt EEIRE
translation differences re-attributed to EREWNEASFERE D
non-controlling interests (870)
Loss on deemed disposal of shares of CodeOne S ELfth 4 e SR AV AR 1F L1 & 4%
recognised in other reserves gl oE| (1,595)
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 35 HEHEAR
Material accounting policy BEARGHR
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held SERBEE IHEAR) WEREBETIER
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally ﬂﬁﬁ%’\%ﬁ'ﬁﬁFLLh%ﬁ@fﬁﬁLﬁ@uﬁlﬁﬁj
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use ERE MNEAFAHE - ZEEEMHER
and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured HERA :FTE/HE&%EEKEW%Z%«TK%JE’
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs MHRIEIRIEEE -RETENMELEZEE &
to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets NEFEARZ ERHEERREYESEENUR
arising from employee benefits, financial assets and investment RSN TSN EIEERRILTERER
property that are carried at fair value and contractual rights 4he
under insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from
this requirement.
BEEE (FE) BRRAF TEC=EER
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35 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Material accounting policy (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent
write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases
in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group),
but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously
recognised. A gain or loss not previously recognised by the
date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is
recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a
disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while they
are classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses
attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as
held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets
of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented
separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. The
liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are
presented separately from other liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that
has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and that
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, is part of a single coordinated plan to
dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is
a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The
results of discontinued operations are presented separately in
the consolidated income statement.
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35 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35 HEMRBAE @
(a) Disposal of Qumaimai (Shenzhen) Network (@ HEBEE (F) MEEKZBRAR
Technology Company Limited
On 15 June 2023, the Group disposed of its 100% equity ﬁ(\: T _—FA+TAB FxEEU
interests in Qumaimai (Shenzhen) Network Technology EHENBEE (R AREXERAR
Company Limited (“Qumaimai”) to a third party at the (MBEE)) N100%KEFE=7 X
consideration of RMB1 (equivalent to HK$1) upon which BAARKIT BER1ET »HEAX
the Group lost its control over Qumaimai. EBRAEHHBEBRYES
Details of the disposal of Qumaimai HEBSEENFE
At date of
disposal
RHER
HK$'000
FHETT
Consideration B
Proceeds received BUFrISRIA —*
Less: Net liabilities disposed of W FTHEaE S 2,262
Less: Release of exchange reserve upon disposal R E R R AR 1,015
Gain on disposal of Qumaimai recognised in RiRE R mREDRHE
consolidated income statement BE B2 IWm 3,277
*  The balance represents an amount less than HK$1,000. * o AEERIE/LHA, 0008 TR EE
In the consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended RBEE_E_=F+"A=+—HL
31 December 2023, net cash outflow from disposal of FENGEERSERER LEBEEN
Qumaimai of HK$231,000 represents proceeds received I F 8231,0008 04 B WS
of HK$1, less cash and cash equivalent disposed of REIBTREMEERERREEE
HK$231,000. #1231,0007 7T ©

Bl (E) ARAT —s-=za8 (237
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35 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Disposal of Megahunt

On 15 December 2021, Megahunt HK entered into
share transfer agreements with certain purchasers
(the “Megahunt Purchasers”), pursuant to which
Megahunt HK has conditionally agreed to dispose of
an aggregate of approximately 20% of the issued share
capital of Megahunt at an aggregate consideration
of RMB208,727,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$254,647,000). The Megahunt Purchasers include ;2%
BESRESUREREGBLE (BREGE), XEDE
MEEBEE (BRER), RECENKABEE (B
[RE%) and XRECHHREBEE (BRSH). Upon
completion of all share transfer agreements, the Group's
interest in Megahunt would decrease from approximately
65.73% to approximately 45.73%. Completion of each of
the share transfer agreements was not inter-conditional to
each other.

As at 31 December 2021, transfer of an aggregate
of approximately 11.63% of the issued share
capital of Megahunt at an aggregate consideration
of RMB116,364,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$142,324,000) was completed. The associated assets
and liabilities of Megahunt and its subsidiary (together the
“Disposal Group”) were presented as held for sale in the
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2021.

On 23 May 2022, the transfer of the remaining of
8.37% of the issued shares capital of Megahunt at an
aggregate consideration of RMB92,363,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$108,382,000) was completed,
Megahunt ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company
and was accounted for as an associated company of the
Company.

Previously, the Group’s sales of information security chips
and solutions business is engaged by the Disposal Group.
The above disposal constituted a discontinued operation
under HKFRS 5, and accordingly, sales of information
security chips and solutions business are reported in the
current period as a discontinued operation.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

35 HEMEAE @

(b) HEIRAIEE

RIZEZ—F+ZA+HB  HKAEEA
ETER (WNIEZER) 5T R DERE
= BRI BB EEBRERRHE I
1B A HA20%NBETIRA  BREAA
E18208,727,0007t FHE T %9254,647,00078
70) KB EERBIEREZEZRESH
RN EEPE (BREE) - RETER
ReaptE AREE RELBHES
BHE BEREER) REKEECHEABE
¥ (BREE) -ERAERDEERES
REPIKIBEZ A A FHAI65.73%7H
F4945.73% o SER S 10 BRID ERsR R E 1L IE
A&

N _E - —F+_B=+—H RERE
ANE 116,364,000t FEEFL4142,324,000
A7) ERGNIEE A E4911.63%M B 81T
BARBERR - N B _—F+_B=+—
Ho kB EREKWB AR MBIHESE
E) WERMEERABNRGEMHBERERN
2 AFEHE

RIBE__FRB_+=B #HERBA
E1592,363,0007T (18 &E71449108,382,00078
7o) EEIJKANIBERR T8.37% B BTR AL
SR KIEERB AR RBINKEB AR
WEAZA BN —MEEE AT AR

HEERENEFAEENHESEEZE
SR RBBRTTREF - LIHERRE S
AR EER B ERIEREET
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35 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Disposal of Megahunt (Continued)
(i) Details of the disposal of Megahunt

For the year ended 31 December 2022

a0 A 5 W R BT

35 HEMEBEAE @

(b) HEIJKAEE (&)
() HEJKIEZERFIE

BE_ZE-__H+"HA=+—HILEE

At date of
disposal
RHERL
HK$'000
FHT
Consideration RE
Proceeds received B PTERIE 108,382
Fair value of retained interest REERPAFE 536,584
644,966
Less: Net assets disposed of: B PMHEBESE !
Property, plant and equipment Y E RV 54,696
Right-of-use assets FREEE 5,601
Intangible assets BmILEE 18,666
Other financial assets at amortised cost R AT EZ
HithEmEE 2,060
Inventories 7B 185,749
Other current assets HiRsEE 53,637
Amount due from an associated company e —FE B & A B R IE 59,630
Trade and bills receivables P LA AR 0 sz P U 2 4% 68,502
Cash and cash equivalents HEnREEEY 62,577
Lease liabilities HE&RE (4,780)
Trade payables FE AT BR R (42,897)
Bank borrowings RITE™R (10,732)
Other payables and accruals ELAth A& T TR I8 e fE 51 R IE (35,046)
Current income tax liabilities BNHAFR SR aE (12,668)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEAT R 2 Bt B 2 B R IE (4,427)
(400,568)
Add: Non-controlling interests disposed of P EIFERE T 184,102
Add: Release of exchange reserve up on disposal 1l : PAHERBHNER HE 1,611
Less: Release of other reserves upon disposal B E R A EL R (772)
Gain on disposal of Megahunt recognised in RiRaWmRETNOHE
consolidated income statement JEEEZE 2 W 429,339

In the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year ended 31 December 2022, net cash inflow for
disposal of Megahunt HK$35,155,000 represents
proceeds received of HK$108,382,000, less cash and
cash equivalents disposal of HK$62,577,000 and
capital gains tax of HK$10,650,000.

The fair value of the 45.73% retained equity interest as
at date of disposal as part of the consideration received
was valued by an independent valuer.

REE_E-_"F#+"B=+—HIt
FEZEEREREBXTN HENR
M ACFEE35,155,00058 018 B W AR S
FIE108,382,0005 7T » HIBRFTHEIR
2 RIREEBEY62,577,0008 TR B
F18#:10,650,00078 7T

FRREE45.73%IREIN HE BHIZ A

B ((FRE2 EWAE HE—%81
fh{EEMEITIAE

BFEH (E) BRAR “EC=FFR
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35 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Disposal of Megahunt (Continued)
(if) - Financial performance and cash flow information of
discontinued operation
The financial performance and cash flow information
presented are for the period from 1 January 2022 to 23

35 HEMEBEATE @

(b) HEJKIEE @)

(i) EARUAREEFENGERERIEZ
TREEN
BE_E__F—H—HE_Z__fF
AR+ =HABZzPFHRERES

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

May 2022. MEBEKRIZ7WT -
For the
period from
1 January
2022 to
23 May 2022
—BA—HZE
=St =
ERZ+=H
HAFS
HK$'000
FHTT
Revenue WA 246,379
Cost of sales HER K (105,387)
Gross profit ER 140,992
Other income EHUgA 6,939
Selling expenses tHERS (4,811)
Administrative expenses THER (49,536)
Operating profit REER 93,584
Finance costs BB R (143)
Profit before income tax IRFRS IR A& 93,441
Income tax expense PRSI B (13,203)
Profit after income tax of discontinued operation =~ B#RIEEEEFEY
PREFIS TR 7 80,238
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary LE—RENBARZ W 429,339
Profit from discontinued operation BRI RS ER R 509,577
Exchange difference in relation to discontinued BRIEKEEREL Y
operation bE = 2B (17,581)
Total comprehensive income from discontinued BRIMEEEH 2 2ENEHEER
operation 491,996
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35 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35 HEMBAR @
(b) Disposal of Megahunt (Continued) (b) HEJKAIEE (&)
(i) Financial performance and cash flow information of (i) BRI S ERERI A RIE R I+
discontinued operation(Continued) TEEN #B)

For the
period from
1 January
2022 to
23 May 2022
Skt
—H—H=
EAZ+=H
HAS
HK$'000
THT
Profit from discontinued operation attributable to: LA TFE(L B AR LR EFEEA ¢
— Owners of the Company - YNCIEZEUN 472,740
— Non-controlling interests —JFERED 36,837
509,577
Total comprehensive income UTRLERLEREXE S
from discontinued operation attributable to: EENEAEEE :
— Owners of the Company —KABHEB A 462,491
— Non-controlling interests —JFERED 29,505
491,996
Net cash inflow from operating activities REEHNIRERAFEE 34,766
Net cash inflow from investing activities KEEHNIRERA SR 16,717
Net cash inflow from financing activities REEFNIRS AP 10,165
Net increase in cash generated HEEEELEZRE
by the Disposal Group EINEE (BEHE
(Including proceed from —REM B AR FRSRIE)
disposal of a subsidiary) 61,648

SRR (hE) BRAR —z=-=x5% (241



242

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i o W B R B e

35 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35 HEMBAR @

(c) Disposal of Jiehang Yunchuang (Beijing) Shuzi (©
Technology Ltd.
On 18 January 2022, the Group also disposed of its
entire equity interests of Jiehang Yunchuang (Beijing)
Shuzi Technology Ltd. (“Jiehang Yunchuang”) to a third
party at a consideration of RMB15,300,000 (equivalent to
HK$18,096,000).

Details of the disposal of Jiehang Yunchuang

HEZTER IR BFRKARAHR

AZEZTF—A+NB REEGFUML
B AR¥15,300,0007T FHEF218,096,0007%5
70) M—RBE=FHEERGETES 065
HFREBRAE (417281 AR
o

HEBITERZF#1E

At date of
disposal
RHERE
HK$'000
FH7T
Consideration RE

Proceeds received BUWFTERIE 18,096
Less: Net assets disposed of B FTHEEERE (12,748)
Less: Non-controlling interest disposed of P E IR R (2,185)
Less: Release of exchange reserve up on disposal 8 : 7AHERFEH 2 [E R 4 (559)

Gain on disposal of Jiehang Yunchuang RiEalRamRERZHELTERIZ
recognised in consolidated income statement Wz 2,604

In the consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended
31 December 2022, net cash inflow for disposal of Jiehang
Yunchuang of HK$5,331,000 represents proceeds received
of HK$18,096,000, less cash and cash equivalent disposed
of HK$12,765,000.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

REE_Z__S£+_R=1+—HILEE
ZEREREMERAN HELTEAIWIR
A FEEAS5,331,00078 7T BDFTUSKER PR
153/TE18,096,00078 7T M A HENIRES K&
IBEHEY12,765,000/8 78



36 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash
generated from/(used in) operations

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4=

@ FRFRGMANEFELEZHRE (PR
) WIREZ HER

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T_A=+—HLFE

2023 2022
—B_=f E-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FET
(Restated)
(GEdl)
Profit before income tax from PRATISIR AR
Continuing operations SRS 478,987 718,259
Discontinued operation BRLEEEER - 522,780
Profit before income tax including PRATISINAER (B ER RS
discontinued operation ) 478,987 1,241,039
Adjustments for: HE ) o
Depreciation of property, plant and ME-BERBENE
equipment . 97,457 140,394
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TCRESENE 28,908 27,094
Depreciation of investment properties REMERTE 173 173
Amortisation of intangible assets B S ERE 1,484 1,490
Share-based payment under Share Award Fe 17 82 Eh 5t 8178 SR A D 2 AT
Scheme ) o 15,038 -
Fair values losses on financial assets at FVPL BRAFESIABRZEMEEL
ATEEE ~ 6,436 7,012
Fair value loss on financial liability at FVPL BATEFABGZERMEs s
ATEEE s 5,073
Derecognition of written put option liability RIS A TES ABTR L
at FVPL BHFHRESR (4,863) =
Gains on disposals of property, HEME -BERZEZ WG
plant and equipment ) (103 (144)
Write off of property, plant and equipment MEE B R Rt 6 30
Impairment of intangible assets EVEERE 20,837 =
Impairment of investment in an associated REE AR ZRERE
company 22 =
Provision for/(reversal of provision) inventories 77 & #15 / (/& 0] 1,942 (4,801)
Share of results of associated companies REMEAREE (402,949) (398,533)
(Gain)/loss on deemed acquisition and dilution  RAWEREE—BHE AT ER
of interest of an associated company, net W) /E5189%8 (1,973) 1,077
Gains on disposals of subsidiaries HEWB ARz W (3,277) (431,943)
Credit impairment loss EERERE 56,505 104,098
Interest income FEWA (73,758) (56,648)
Finance costs = (RN 3,757 60,005
Operating profit before working capital EEESEEF 2 LSRN
changes o 224,629 695,416
Decrease in bank deposits RIT IR 467 5,450
Increase in inventories EFEEm (3,226) (33,380)
Increase in trade and bills receivables RE LT AR o0 e PR M 2 4838 1 (12,429) (14,633)
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables rERAD G8m 989,730 (686,490)
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets REHRAGT B2 At ERMEE
at amortised cost (gm /mb (101,332) 12,093
Decrease in other current assets HMRENS &R B 22,246 2,016
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from an el — B A B 2 IR/ (5
associated company 156 (29,584)
Increase in restricted bank balance for S RAFIEREER 2
payment and digital services business 52 MR I SR T A AR 1 0 (2,516,313) (361,725)
Increase in trade and bills payables, payables for FETER K FE(T 248~ % (R B F1E
payment and digital services business and other  ARF5=5 75 < & 11 20 18 DU E At
payables and accruals FETRRIE B FE 5Tk IRE 2,631,620 576,248
Cash generated from operations REMFIRE 1,235,548 165,411
EEEE (FE) BIRAHE ZE=FFR
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36 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 36 fZ&RERERME @
STATEMENT (Continued)
(b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposals b) REEFRERP HEWE -BEKRR
of property, plant and equipment comprise: HRRSRIAELE :

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t+—HiEE

2023 2022
= TEITHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FHT
Net book amount (Note 74) ARTEVEE (BH5E14) 419 £
Gains on disposals of property, HEVME - -BERZEZ
plant and equipment Wi 103 144
Proceeds from disposals of property, — HEYIZ  BE MR EFTSHR
plant and equipment 522 147
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) MEIFELXZEEHIR
activities
This section sets out the movements in liabilities arising REFIE2NNFEREETHELZEER
from financing activities for each of the years presented. 5o
Asset-backed
securities  Bank borrowings Lease liabilities Total
BESES RITHER HEaf CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TiEx TR ThEx
As at 1 January 2022 R_E__F-F—H = 2,446 37,455 39,901
Cash flows RHeneg 272,404 06,038 (26,444) 312,058
Additions ME - - 26,289 26,289
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HERBAT = (10,732) (4,780) (15,512)
Exchange realignment ERAZE (7,4006) (2,004) (2,691) (12,101)
As at 31 December 2022 RZB__F+-A=1+-H 265,058 55,748 29,829 350,635
As at 1 January 2023 R_E_=F£-A—H 265,058 55,748 29,829 350,635
Cash flows Beng (259,268) (11,550) (31,908) (302,726)
Additions hE - - 46,512 46,512
Exchange realignment ERHE (5,790) (1,510) (949) (8,249)
As at 31 December 2023 RZB-=£+-RA=1+-H - 42,688 43,484 86,172
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37 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2015, the Company entered into a performance guarantee
agreement with a customer (the “Performance Guarantee
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to
provide the customer with a guarantee in relation to the due
and punctual performance of a service project of a subsidiary
of the Company with a surety of not more than HK$60,000,000
and to indemnify the customer against any third-party claim
of intellectual property right infringement resulting from
the acts of the said subsidiary. The Performance Guarantee
Agreement remained in full force and effect as at 31 December
2023. Following the completion of the service project, the
Performance Guarantee Agreement was accordingly terminated
and there will be no obligation on the part of the Company
in relation thereto. As at 31 December 2023, the Company
did not recognise any liability in relation to the Performance
Guarantee Agreement.

In 2020, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement
with Megahunt and an independent manufacturer (“OEM”)
(the “2020 OEM Guarantee Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Company shall guarantee to repay Megahunt’s due
and unsettled debts of up to US$10,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$78,000,000) owed to the OEM incurred in relation to such
manufacturing orders placed against the OEM should it cease
or fail to honour its payment obligations. As at 31 December
2023, the Company did not recognise any liability in relation
to the 2020 OEM Guarantee Agreement. The Directors consider
the possibility of reimbursement is not probable (2022: same).

In 2021, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement
with Megahunt, Megahunt HK and Tianjin Meghunt
Microelectronics Company Limited (“Tianjin Megahunt”)
(the “2021 Manufacturer Guarantee Agreement”), pursuant
to which the Company shall guarantee to repay the due
and unsettled debts of Megahunt HK and Tianjin Megahunt
individually and/or collectively of up to US$20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$156,000,000) incurred in
relation to such manufacturing orders placed against the named
manufacturer by Megahunt HK and Tianjin Megahunt, should
any of them individually and/or collectively cease or fail to
honour its payment obligations. As at 31 December 2023, the
Company did not recognise any liability in relation to the 2021
Manufacturer Guarantee Agreement. The Directors consider the
possibility of reimbursement is not probable (2022: same).

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent
liability as at 31 December 2023 (2022: same).

BFEH (E) BRAR

o WA 5 A B e

37 HAEE

AR R ARBE—REPEI B
RipsE (BAERGE) I ZRABEEM
KRBl —HERBEABIGE RINHAETIREIES
AEFRERER BEREEEAEIB60,000,000
B wREMRE LR EABMRIEERE=
FRIBEENTASIBNRERZZ A EHE
BoRIRFIBEETME  BNEFRBEBER
b BRAB—ARIIEARBAREEAEE -
T _F+ZA=+—H AR LEERT
AIEENERFENEE.

AR TR AR BRIKAIBER KRBT
%Lm (TR ENERE)) SRR (T
SFEREZHEEERBED BRI K
-ﬂlegfﬂtiﬂ? EBTTENRER ARAA
ERERINEERQRRBREHTTER
RABLSET BT S I BE R R B RS m R HA
%féiﬁ;ﬁ’\]%i‘%/_ﬁﬁuo 000,000 7t (FHE R
78,000,000 7T) e _E-_=F+_"_HA=+—
Ho &R Tjtﬂﬁ?t_v_;ﬁfﬁﬁ B E iR
RipEEDTMER - EZRHREREZA
At'&?m(fvffﬂi HE) ©

ATE T —F AABEIKIEE  JKAEBR
BREIABEFREMBRAR (FBIK) &7
VERGE (T2 —FREEERBED o
BIE I BB R K EILGAER K LR
FIERAREBITENRE D AR B BIERE
BIAEBRRZIAR AR IEEET N ESRE
RS STE RS IS B HA R R EB I EH BB
20,000,000t (FEEH*49156,000,000787T) 7
TEC=F+TA=+ R AABWERT
T —FHEHERPERIATIMNEE -ES
DAREREZAESERAS (CTE-_—F 18
) o

b EXFrIEEN N _E_=ZF+_H
=+—H AEBETEFHIEARREE CE
bt = = =) RO

“EC=FFR
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38 FIERRS

As at 31 December 2023, Rich Global Limited (incorporated in
British Virgin Islands) owns 22.22% of the Company’s shares.
The remaining 77.78% of the shares are widely held (2022:
same).

(a) Transactions with related parties
Except for those disclosed below and other than those
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has no other significant transaction
with related parties during the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: same).

N2 =F+ZA=1+—H REBRXH
E5Ef AL ZRich Global lelted}?&ﬁzﬁ’/_\\a
22.22%B&AD o 87 T77.78% RS A ALEZ
BE(CE_F 4R -

(@ BHRAERZRS
BTXiBEERESYBREEME
DERBEEN RBEE_S :_¢+ ﬁ
=+ —BLIFE  REE R E
THMEARS (CEZ£F: $E|ﬁ) °

For the year ended
31 December

B#E+_HA=+—HLFE

2023 2022
—¥_= b 5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT
Transactions with PAX Global, HMEANT BRI ZR
an associated company:
— Rental income (Note i) — MU A Hati) 1,411 1,483
— Purchase of electronic payment —BEETXNER W)
products (Note ii) - 153
— Sales of mag-stripe card security —HHE IR RN Z RS A
decoder chips (Note iii) (Bt3#iii) = 121,340
— Service charges (Note iv) —RFBER Wativ) 287 1,651
Notes: Baz

() Rental income from an associated company was charged at a
fixed monthly fee mutually agreed between the two parties.

(i) Purchase of electronic payment products was transacted pursuant
to the terms and conditions set out in the framework agreement
entered into by the Group and an associated company dated
19 December 2012. The terms and conditions of the framework
agreement were subsequently renewed on 31 December 2015, 5
December 2018 and 23 December 2021 respectively.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

() RE—BHEQARZBASUASRRETHR
TARE =2 [E] E B AU °

iy WEETIZNERNREAERRE—BEER
BN ZE—F+ A+ NHT L2 ER R
FRE IR AR TR 5 o BRI R 2 R
BEEBDIINR_Z—AFE+B=+—H"
- N\F+ZBAREERZZE—%+ZAH
“+=B8#%&:T°



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) Sales of mag-stripe card security decoder chips were transacted

pursuant to the terms and conditions set out in the framework

agreement entered into by the Group and an associated
company on 21 February 2013. The terms and conditions of
the framework agreement were subsequently amended and/or
renewed on 31 December 2013, 30 December 2019 and 10
September 2021 respectively. As discussed in Note 35(b), upon

the completion of the transfer of the remaining of 8.37% of the
issued share capital of Megahunt on 23 May 2022, Megahunt
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and was accounted
for as an associated company of the Company. Consequently, the

transactions between Megahunt and PAX Global since 23 May

2022 were not regarded as related party transactions.

(iv)

Service charges were transacted pursuant to the terms and

conditions mutually agreed between the two parties.

(b) Balances with associated companies

(c)

Amount due from an assoicated
company (Note i)

FEW— B E A B

(Ht5Li)

a0 A 5 W R BT

38 FAERRS @

(@ HFEARZRS
bzt (@)

(%)

IHERIR TN SR HiREAER
BMEARNR_S—=F"FC + EIJ_LZK
RGBT IR RAFHFEITRR S - ZER R
Z 15 )\&ﬂxf¢ﬁ1§5ﬁﬁ‘m\77_:¢+_
B=+— —NF+ZA=+BKZ
f—fﬁnEwLEH%J&/jzm;J uﬁwnﬂﬁ.ﬁ
b)Ffstm R_BE__F#RB-+=H5%M
ERIKAIBECSBITRAERT8.37%%  JK
IEBEABARATNHEAS  MIEAER
AN—EHEQARAR AL B2 2F
RAZ+H=HE JKMIEEHGEIRK Z BN
RBABHEAMEB AR

(iii)

IRBERDREEHEE 2 FRRIFFEITR
o

(iv)

(b) BABHE AT ZEER

As at 31 December

Amounts due to associated
companies (Note i)

FEATBE A B RUR

Note i: As at 31 December 2022 and 2023, these balances are

denominated in RMB, unsecured,

on demand.

Key management compensation

interest-free and repayable

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, key
management compensation is equivalent to the directors’
and chief executive’s emolument as disclosed in Note 39.

H+ZB=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= BT TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFAET
MIE
5,000 5,306
(Hiz2i)
4,295 4,421
Btati HA:;E:ZE&_-\,__E-F B=+—
B 2SN AREHE  BER
et B EEREER
(0 TEEEEZHE

BE_ZT_="FK-_FT-_"F+-HA
=T —HULEEE TEEEEZHENRE
PP 5E3 9FF % B8 2 B8 55 o 17 B A £ 2 B
%o

BERE chE) BRAT —Eoc=EEg
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39 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF

THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company

FARZEERER

39 ZABZEERBERKMFEEE

As at 31 December

m+Z-A=+—H
2023 2022
—EZ= TECF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT TFAT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties GBI 763 1,021
Right-of-use assets EREEEE 17,436 18,954
Investments in subsidiaries RSB AR Z®RE 907,074 713,189
Investment in an associated company R —EEE AR ZKE 259,770 259,770
Total non-current assets ERBEEHE 1,185,043 992,934
Current assets RENEE
Other current assets HiREh&EE 1,069 1,094
Other financial assets at amortised cost 3% # #4 A A< 518 = Hth
THBEE 1,384 1,371
Financial asset at fair value through BATEFABGRZ
profit or loss TREE 833 980
Amounts due from subsidiaries e N NI/ R 665,009 538,470
Cash and cash equivalents BERIEEFEY 684,279 641,697
Total current assets MENEEMEE 1,352,574 1,183,612
Total assets BERE 2,537,617 2,176,546
Equity -
Capital and reserves attributable to TAREBEANBEES
owners of the Company K f#E
Share capital 52N 6,942 6,942
Reserves ot (Note a)
(Bizta) 1,418,504 1,338,302
Total equity g k] 1,425,446 1,345,244
Liabilities =R
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accruals H e IR EST
15 34,711 33,144
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEIH B AT RIE 1,062,660 783,358
Current income tax liabilities BNHAFRS R BB 14,800 14,800
Total current liabilities ____________ mBAMARE 12071 831,302 _
Total liabilities =Ripks] 1,112,171 831,302
Total equity and liabilities EnkaBELE 2,537,617 2,176,546

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED
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39 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (Continued)

Note (a): Reserves movement of the Company

FABZEERER (B

Msta): ZAEZR#EZE

39 ZAFZEERBERKMFEED @

Retained
earnings/
Share Contributed Other  (accumulated
premium  Treasury shares surplus reserves loss) Total
(Note)
REEM/
1R i 1E ERFRH BRER Hitfk (Rsti5t8) At
()
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THERT THERT THERT THERT
At1 January 2023 RZE-=%—-A-A 1,290,857 (30,000) 146417 26,900 4128 1,338,302
Profit for the year FRiEf - - - - 74,990 74,990
Purchase of the Company’s shares  FRAZ {742 Bt BIRE A
for Share Award Scheme (Note 27)  ZATEIRRIR (Hf5227) = (9,826) = = = (9,826)
Issuance of shares under IR AL (R 12 B =1 81 17D
Share Award Scheme (Note 27) (Wi27) = 30,000 = = (14,962) 15,038
At 31 December 2023 R-E-=F+-B=+-H 1,290,857 (9,826) 146417 26,900 64,156 1,418,504
At 1 January 2022 RZE-"£-F—H 1,290,857 - 46,417 26,900 (49,973) 1,314,201
Profit for the year FRER] - - = = 54,101 54,101
Purchase of the Company’s shares LR 17 82 B 5H &8 A A A B I1H
for Share Award Scheme - (30,000) - - - (30,000)
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZH+ZF=+—H 1,290,857 (30,000 46,417 26,900 4,128 1,338,302
Note: Vg3

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the

reorganisation over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in

exchange thereof. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a company
may make distributions to its members out of the contributed surplus under

certain circumstances.

FABZEHRFIEREEAMBBZINBRARRMN 2
FEBBAABRMILZRZ BRITROEEZ SR
BRE-NN—FEREE RBAEETEL T HESR

BRI AR ER A E AR R EH 72K

BFEH (E) BRAR

“ETCFFR
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40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 40 EEZEFRiER (GFEL LR

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF (58622%) $3831F% AT WEES
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE FEERD $RH (55622GE) REA L
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE HRAERIEL )

OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (@) EFERITHESRZME
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive BREERITHRIZMESEHIINT :
is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2023: BE_Z—F+"A=1+—HILEEE:

Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director’s
other services
in connection
Remuneration with the
Employer's paid or  management
contribution  receivable of the affairs
Estimated toa  inrespect of the
money value retirement  of accepting  Company or
Discretionary Housing of other henefit office as it subsidiary

Fees Salary bonuses  allowance henefits scheme director  undertaking Total
HESAMER
FARSEME

HHRRERE AREHZAM

Rftigdl  EXZEK AEZZER REZERW
& & HITEAL REEH ([SHENEE  BUMAMR SR e ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T F#En TR TR T TR TR TR Tin

Executive directors WTESE
Kui Man Chun REBE (TH5Z)

(Chief Executive Officer) & 3,020 8,000 & 3,760 18 S & 14,798
Xu Wensheng e = 3,315 8,000 = 3478 18 = = 14,811
Li Wenjin *YE = 2,660 7,600 = 3478 18 5 = 13,756
Xu Chang Jun #eE = 2,956 7,600 = 3,476 18 = = 14,050

Independent non-executive  BUFRTES

directors
Tam Chun Fai EinE 300 - 350 - - - 5 S 650
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 300 - 350 - - - - - 650
Li Heguo FHE 300 - 350 - - - S = 650
Total fst 900 11,951 32,250 = 14,192 7 S = 59,365

@ HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND

HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive
is set out below: (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022:

a0 A 5 W R BT

40 EEZENRER REEATEA
(58622%) 383X AT WEES
FZZEED R (F622GE) REH L
HIRAERELIRE) @

@ EFRTHEZZME (&

BREERTBAHZMERIIN T (B

BE—E- S+ A+ —HIEE

Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of
director’s other
services in
connection
Remuneration with the
paidor - management
Employers  receivable of the affairs
Estimated ~ contribution ~in respect of the
money value to a retirement  of accepting ~ Company or
Discretionary Housing of other benefit office as it subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses  allowance benefits scheme director  undertaking Total
HESEHER
FARHENE
AERRE ARFBZzEM
Aftigdl  BEIZRK AEIZEN  REHzERR
e He Wit RERE (RHENEE  BUHEGR  SEume el fit
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
TR TR TR TiEn TR TR TR TiEn TR
Executive directors HiTER
Cheung Yuk Fung (Note (i) RELE (Ht) 755 - 1,500 - - - - - 2,255
Kui Man Chun REE (7043
(Chief Executive Officer) - 2,895 7,400 - - 18 - - 10,313
Xu Wensheng (&S - 3,199 7,200 - - 18 = = 10,417
Li Wenjin EXE = 2,535 7,00 5 = 18 5 5 9753
Xu Chang Jun GRS = 2,883 6,600 S = 18 = S 9,501
Independent non-executive  BUFHTES
directors
Tam Chun Fai B 276 - 350 - - - - - 626
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 276 - 350 s = = s = 626
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard RIES (i)
(Note (i) 06 - 105 - - - - - 171
Li Heguo FHE 276 - 350 - - - = = 626
Total ait 1,649 11,512 31,055 = = 72 - - 44,288
Note (i):  Cheung Yuk Fung resigned as an executive director of the Kiati): REBR _Z-_FN\ABREERABNT
Company in August 2022. B%-
Note (ii): Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard retired as an independent non- Bzt SRESEN B A RFEATEILIE

executive director of the Company in April 2022.

HiTES-

=GR (FE) BRAR S HEER
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40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2022: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2022: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2022: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
During the year ended 31 December 2023, there are no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing in favour of directors,
or controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors (2022: Nil).

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed, no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2022: Nil).

@ HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
» :I: _\‘\
o MR i aE
41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 41 HEthBESEXEHEEHNE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NIEEARRESZEHERA
(a) WiELE]

41.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible and rights arising from other contractual
arrangements are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases. If the changes of the
relevant facts and circumstances resulting in changes
of relevant elements in the definition of control,
the Group will re-evaluate whether subsidiaries are
controlled.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to Note 41.2).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.

B BB AERERZENEZAE
B (REEBTEEE -Ex£ERS
HEEZEEMESUARETEHA
B[O WAEMNEREIEEERES
ZHENTE LMOR > AEERHZ
BERAENE -ETGEERRDE
S—EEEEAERER AEET
EREREFEER U ERNERNE
ERABUREMEGNZHERE
MkHEZE B ABREHEEE
EXAEEERR2BRG AR IR
EHIERIEEREABES AR W
RIBAEEMN BRIV CEEH T
EERPMIRNBRERE LS
FEEEMAEESEFZSIMNEA
o

AEERBWEEEHEBERSHAR
GE2RMIEE41.2) o

EEABMZRARERS EEFkE
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IRE T LIRSS BRIFA RIS 5 B
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)
(b) Structured entities

(c)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Structured entities are entities that have been designed
so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant
factor in deciding who controls the entities, for
example when any voting rights relate to administrative
tasks only, and key activities are directed by contractual
agreement. Structured entities often have restricted
activities and a narrow and well-defined objective.
Examples of structured entities include trusts,
securitisation vehicles and asset backed financings.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised
in the consolidated income statement. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associated company, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
the consolidated income statement or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRS.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.1 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(Continued)

(c) Changes in ownership interests (Continued)
If the ownership interest in an associated company
is reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated income statement
where appropriate.

41.2 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the:

e fair values of the assets transferred

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

a0 A 5 W R BT
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 41 HEMWEBEESAEHEENE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.2 Business combinations (Continued) 412 EBEAH @B

The excess of the:
e consideration transferred,

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses
arising from such remeasurement are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 41 HEMWEBESAEHEENE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.3 %\ MBI R

41.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investments. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

41.4 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement on a net basis within
“administrative expenses”.
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair values are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at FVPL are recognised in the profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as financial asset at FVOCI are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and

expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of

the transactions); and

(iii

=

all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associated company that includes a foreign operation),
all of the currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in the consolidated income statement. For
all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associated companies
or joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control) the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to the consolidated income statement.

a0 A 5 W R BT

41 HBEEAGSBREE @

414 HNESHE (8)
(€ FEBETLE #)

SRR Y B R AT (S
BRARSINERBERESME &
IR o

(d) HEREDHEBIIEE

RHEBIINER BIHEREINE
SNEB T REMEm S AR A —E
REBIEFZWBRATIEHE D
E WP RREHRBBINEHZE
EhEHEEAEHE  FH KK
EH-—BRAEBINEF ZHELTE
FENZLE) B A RATEBA
IEZEBMNERNRSA ZFAAE
RE ENDEERGWER-

L5 B D W EM T ER A L@ AL
REBINEHZWBAT ZEHIRE
ZRFTERERZEELEAERREN
Rk BAERGGRERT
HESD - RFTE HMEB O HE BIAEH
REBERDHGECEBEA DA
OMAEERAEBREEATES
HHEFER) M ZRTERER
ZEESLEAIER DR E R ES -

BFEH (E) BRAR “EC=FFR

259



260

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i o W B R B e

41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Buildings 5-10%
Leasehold improvements 20% or over lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Office furniture and equipment 18%-33%
Plant and equipment 10%-33%
Motor vehicles 18%-25%

The assets” residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within “administrative expenses” in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 41 HEMWEBESAEHEENE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.6 BREYE

41.6 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
Group, is classified as investment property. The cost of
an investment property comprises its purchase price and
any costs directly attributable to bringing the property
to its intended use. After initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost of the investment property over its estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 5%

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment.

41.7 Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.
The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.7 Intangible assets (Continued)
(b) Brand name, customer list and contracts, patents

(c)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

and capitalised software development costs and
in-progress technology

Separately acquired brand name, customer list
and contracts, patents and capitalised software
development costs and in-progress technology are
shown at historical cost less amortisation.

Brand name, customer list and contracts, patent and
capitalised software development costs and in-progress
technology acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair values at the acquisition date.

Costs incurred on development projects (relating to
the design and testing of new or improved products)
are recognised as intangible assets when it is probable
that the project will be a success considering its
commercial and technological feasibility, costs can be
measured reliably, there is an intention to complete
and use it, there is an ability to use it, there will be a
probable future economic benefits inflow and there
are adequate resources to complete and use it. Other
development expenditures are expensed as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an
expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period.

Brand name, customer list and contracts, patent
and capitalised software development costs and in-
progress technology have a finite useful life and
are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of them over
their estimated useful lives (1.5-5 years).

Computer software

Acquired software are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives (3 to 5 years). Costs associated
with developing or maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 41 HEMWEBESAEHEENE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

418 EERMEEZRE

41.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and is tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

41.9 Investments and other financial assets

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

— those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business

model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in the consolidated income
statement or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at
FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired,
or when a financial asset is transferred, the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership, or when the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all risks or rewards of ownership
of the financial asset but has not retained control of
the financial asset.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial asset carried at FVPL are
expensed in the consolidated income statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends

on the Group’s business model for managing the asset

and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories to classify the debt
instruments:

(i)

Amortised cost

(i)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income, except for interest income generated from
loan receivables which is included in revenue,
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income statement.

Fair value through other comprehensive income

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in the
When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity

consolidated income statement.

to profit or loss. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
“other gains, net” and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
income statement.
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(c)

(d)

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)
(iii) Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in
which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
the consolidated income statement following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in the
consolidated income statement as “other gains,
net” when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in the consolidated income statement
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses (“ECL") associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(“HKFRS 9”), which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 41 HEMWEBESAEHEENE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A0EHER T A

41,10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

41.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour cost and
related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

41.12 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity instruments, for example as the result of a share
buy-back or a share-based payment plan, the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs
(net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable
to the owners of the Company as treasury shares until the
shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary
shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration
received, net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax effects,
is included in equity attributable to the owners of the
Company.

Shares held by the trustee are disclosed as treasury shares
and deducted from contributed equity.
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.13 Bank borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
consolidated income statement as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 41 HEMWEBESAEHEENE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.14 Borrowing cost 4114 fER A A

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

41.15Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.16 Dividends

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

41.17Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the fixed lease payments.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group,
where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received.
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41 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY MATERIAL 41 HEMWEBESAEHEENE @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

41.17Leases (Continued) 4117708 (@&

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of lease liability and any
initial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of premises
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
the consolidated income statement. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (Note 13). Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the consolidated
balance sheet based on their nature. The Group did not
need to make any adjustments to the accounting for assets
held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing
standard.
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ummary of Financial Information

A 5 e

A summary of the published consolidated results and of the
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements
and restated as appropriate, is set as below:

2023
ZEZ=
HK$'000
FTHET
Results E S
Profit attributable to EABIHER NEIEEF
owners of the Company 463,432
Assets and liabilities BEERER
Total assets BERE 13,031,718
Total liabilities BRBE (5,253,700)
Capital and reserves attributable to AT EE A
the owners of the Company BAKG#E 7,190,935

BixEEELMBRRNZBERBREIZA

EEBEALEMBFEE QM

BEEHSRMENT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2022
ZEICF
HK$'000
FHET

939,416

11,455,311

(3,901,029)

6,618,595

2021
B &
HK$'000
FET

3,521,526

10,818,808

(3,327,814)

6,423,304

2020
“ETRF
HK$'000
FHET

656,685

9,717,099

(3,349,595)

5,542,066

A = A
%T =) /\,\E n‘ﬁ =

2019
—hF
HK$’000
FHET

569,111

8,149,068

(2,870,556)

4,687,048
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